
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Planning Commission Thursday, August 10, 2023 Page 1 of 3 
 

 

 
 

HOLLISTER PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 
 

Special Meeting 
August 10, 2023 

6:00 PM 
 

CITY OF HOLLISTER 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 

375 FIFTH STREET 
 HOLLISTER, CA 95023 

(831) 636-4360 
www.hollister.ca.gov 

 
NOTICE TO PUBLIC 
 
Persons who wish to address the Planning Commission are asked to complete a Speaker’s Card and give 
it to the Secretary before addressing the Planning Commission. Those who wish to address the Planning 
Commission on an Agenda item will be heard when the presiding officer calls for comments from the 
audience. City related items not on the Agenda will be heard under the Public Input Section of the agenda. 
Following recognition persons desiring to speak are requested to advance to the podium and state their 
name and address. If you are joining us by Zoom, please click on the bottom of your screen to raise your 
hand. If you are joining us by Zoom using a cell phone, please press *9. After hearing audience comments, 
the public portion of the meeting will be closed, and the matter brought to the Planning Commission for 
discussion. 
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION NOTICE  
 
The public may watch the meeting via live stream at: 
 
Community Media Access Partnership (CMAP) at: 
http://cmaptv.com/watch/  
 
or 
 
City of Hollister YouTube Channel: 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCu_SKHetqbOiiz5mH6XgpYw/featured   
 

http://www.hollister.ca.gov/
http://cmaptv.com/watch/
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCu_SKHetqbOiiz5mH6XgpYw/featured


_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Planning Commission Thursday, August 10, 2023 Page 2 of 3 
 

Public Participation: The public may attend meetings.  
 
NOTICE: The Planning Commission will hold its public meetings in person, with a virtual option for public 
participation based on availability. The City of Hollister utilizes Zoom teleconferencing technology for 
virtual public participation; however, we make no representation or warranty of any kind, regarding the 
adequacy, reliability, or availability of the use of this platform in this manner. Participation by members 
of the public through this means is at their own risk. (Zoom teleconferencing may not be available at all 
meetings.)  
 
If you wish to make a public comment remotely during the meeting, please use the zoom registration link 
below: 
 
https://us02web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_gU4IFDeSRm26cA3w9wCNKA 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
ROLL CALL  Commissioners: Kevin Henderson, Luke Corona, Steven Belong, 

Carol Lenoir 
 
VERTIFCIATION OF AGENDA POSTING  
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES  None  
 
PUBLIC INPUT 
 
This is the time for anyone in the audience to speak on any item not on the agenda and within the subject 
matter jurisdiction of the Planning Commission. Speaker cards are available in the lobby, and are to be 
completed and given to the Secretary before speaking. When the Secretary calls your name, please come 
to the podium, state your name and city for the record, and speak to the City Planning Commission. If you 
are joining us by Zoom, please click on the bottom of your screen to raise your hand. If you are joining us 
by Zoom using a cell phone, please press *9. Each speaker will be limited to three (3) minutes with a 
maximum of 30 minutes per subject. Please note that state law prohibits the Planning Commission from 
discussing or taking action on any item not on the agenda. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 

1. City of Hollister Draft 2040 General Plan Update, Draft Climate Action Plan, Draft Agricultural 
Preservation Program, and Draft Environmental Impact Report - Notice is hereby given that the 
City of Hollister has prepared a Draft EIR (State Clearinghouse No. 2021040277) for the proposed 
Hollister 2040 General Plan, Climate Action Plan, and Agricultural Lands Preservation Program 
(proposed project) and will hold a public meeting to receive comments on the Draft EIR. The 
notice of availability, the Draft EIR, project information, including relevant documents, 
information on upcoming meetings, and ways you can provide feedback can be viewed online at 
https://hollister2040.org/. Comments on the Draft 2040 General Plan Update, Draft Climate 
Action Plan, and Draft Agricultural Preservation Program may be submitted prior to, during, or 
after the public meeting on August 10, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. However, it is noted that the official 

https://us02web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_gU4IFDeSRm26cA3w9wCNKA


_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Planning Commission Thursday, August 10, 2023 Page 3 of 3 
 

comment period on the Draft Environmental Impact Report only closed on June 30, 2023 at 
5:00p.m. Comments will be considered on the Final EIR when it is released for public review. 
Written comments may be addressed to the City of Hollister Planning Division – Attn: Eva Kelly, 
375 Fifth St, Hollister, CA 95023 or via email at generalplan@hollister.ca.gov with “Hollister GPU 
2040, CAP, and ALPP” as the subject. Public agencies providing comments are asked to include a 
contact person for the agency. 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
STUDY SESSION ITEMS 
 
PLANNING DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION REPORTS 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this 
meeting, please contact the City of Hollister’s Planning Division at (831) 636-4360. Notification of 48 hours 
prior to the meeting will enable the City to attempt to make reasonable arrangements to ensure 
accessibility to this meeting [28 CFR 2.102-35. 104 ADA Title II]. 
 
Materials related to an item of this agenda submitted to the Planning Commission after distribution of 
the agenda packet are available for public inspection at the City Clerk’s office at City Hall, 375 Fifth Street, 
Hollister, Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. to noon, 1:00 p.m. to 5:00 p.m. (closed between 12:00 and 
1:00 p.m.). Materials are also available at the Development Services Department office located 339 Fifth 
Street, Hollister, Monday through Thursday, 8:30 a.m. to noon, 1:00 p.m. to 4:30 p.m. (closed between 
12:00 p.m. and 1:00 p.m.).  
 
Notice to anyone attending any public meeting: The meeting may be broadcast live on Cable 17 and/or 
videotaped or photographed. Recent Planning Commission meetings may also be viewed at 
www.CMAP.com and periodically on Cable Channel 17.  
 
The next Planning Commission Meetings are scheduled as follows:  
 

Planning Commission Special Meeting – Thursday, August 31, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. 
 

Planning Commission Study Session – Thursday, September 14, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. 

mailto:generalplan@hollister.ca.gov
http://www.cmap.com/


 
SUBJECT: City of Hollister Draft 2040 General Plan Update, Draft Climate Action 

Plan, Draft Agricultural City of Hollister has prepared a Draft EIR (State 
Clearinghouse No. 2021040277) for the proposed Hollister 2040 General 
Plan, Climate Action Plan, and Agricultural Lands Preservation Program 
(proposed project) and will hold a public meeting to receive comments 
on the Draft EIR. The notice of availability, the Draft EIR, project 
information, including relevant documents, information on upcoming 
meetings, and ways you can provide feedback can be viewed comment 
period on the Draft Environmental Impact Report only closed on June 
30, 2023 at 5:00p.m. Comments will be considered on the Final EIR when 
it is released for public review. Written comments may be addressed 
to the City of Hollister Planning Division – Attn: Eva Kelly, 375 Fifth St, 
Hollister, CA 95023 or via email at generalplan@hollister.ca.gov with 
“Hollister GPU 2040, CAP, and ALPP” as the subject. Public agencies 
providing comments are asked to include a contact person for the 
agency. 

 
STAFF PLANNER: Eva Kelly, Interim Planning Manager (831) 636-4360 

   David Early, FAICP, LEED AP, Placeworks Inc.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Memo from Placeworks – Overview of Draft General Plan, Draft 

Climate Action Plan, Draft Agricultural Preservation Program, and 
Draft Environmental Report 

 
2. Public Comments Received on Draft Plans 

  
RECOMMENDATION:  Receive the report and provide feedback to Staff 
             
              
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The City of Hollister has contracted with Placeworks Inc. to prepare an update to the City of Hollister 
General Plan, as well as a Climate Action Plan, Agricultural Preservation Program, and associated 
Environmental Impact Report (EIR). The Draft General Plan, Draft Climate Action Plan, Draft Agricultural 
Preservation Program, and Draft EIR have been released for public review and comment. City Staff and 
Placeworks have compiled the public comments received so far on the draft plans for the consideration 
of the Planning Commission during their review of the documents. Attached you will find a summary of 
the documents and comments received. The Study Session will provide an opportunity for additional 

 

Planning Commission 
Staff Report 

August 10, 2023 
Item 1 



Staff Report 
General Plan Update Study Session 
Page 2 of 2 
  
public comment as well as the Planning Commission to provide feedback to Staff on the draft plans for 
consideration of the City Council. The City Council will hold an additional study session to hear public 
comments and Planning Commission feedback on September 11, 2023. Adoption hearings for the draft 
plans will be scheduled before the Planning Commission and City Council after the study sessions are 
completed and direction is received. 



 

 

MEMORANDUM  

DATE August 4, 2023 

TO City of Hollister Planning Commission 

FROM David Early and Carey Stone, PlaceWorks 

SUBJECT Overview of Draft General Plan, Draft Climate Action Plan, Draft Agricultural Preservation 
Program, and Draft Environmental Impact Report 

The purpose of this memorandum is to provide an overview of the Draft General Plan, Draft Climate 
Action Plan (CAP), Draft Agricultural Preservation Program, and Draft Environmental Impact Report 
(DEIR) for consideration at the August 10, 2023 Planning Commission Study Session meeting. The draft 
documents are available for review at: https://hollister2040.org/ 

This memorandum includes the following components: 

» Overview of the process to create the draft plans. 
» Summary of the Draft General Plan. 
» Summary of the Draft CAP. 
» Summary of the Draft Agricultural Preservation Program. 
» Overview of community engagement process. 
» Summary of community Input on the Draft Plans. 
» Overview of the Draft Environmental Impact Report. 
» Next Steps. 

UPDATE ON DRAFT GENERAL PLAN PROCESS 
As a brief reminder, the process to update the General Plan included the phases discussed below: 

» Existing Conditions: Researching and documenting baseline environmental conditions in Hollister 
and preparing a series of reports available on https://hollister2040.org/documents-past-meeting-
materials/. 

» Vision and Guiding Principles: Establishing a communitywide vision and supporting guiding 
principles.  The General Plan Vision describes the future of Hollister as the community would like it 
to be in 2040.  The Vision and Guiding Principles guided the development of the goals, policies, and 
actions and land use changes. 

» Policy Development: Developing policy options for key issues identified through input given at the 
General Plan visioning workshops held in Summer 2020 and the three GPAC meetings held in Fall 
2020. On June 22, 2021, the City Council provided final policy direction for the following topics:  

https://hollister2040.org/


 

August 4, 2023 | Page 2 

o Parks 
o New School Funding 
o Farmland Mitigation 
o Sensitive Habitats 
o Heritage Trees 
o Economic Development 
o Retail Leakage 
o Job Creation 
o Industrial Uses 
o Tourism 
o Airport 
o Complete Streets and Safe Routes to School 
o Level of Service 
o Roundabouts 
o Growth Management 
o Special Planning Areas 
o Residential Land Use Designations 
o Inclusionary Housing 
o Historic and Cultural Resources 
o Coordination with Local Tribes 
o Environmental Justice 
o Arts and Culture 
o Climate Change, Sustainability, and Natural Hazards 

» Draft General Plan: On April 4, 2023, the City published the Draft General Plan, Draft CAP, and Draft 
Agricultural Preservation Program for public review and comment. The Draft General Plan carries 
forward the majority of the existing General Plan goals, policies and actions along with the policy 
direction developed through the prior phases and City staff recommended updates all informed by 
feedback collected during community participation processes.  

» Public Review and Adoption: Public review and Council consideration of final documents, including 
the General Plan, and the certification of the Environmental Impact Report are the remaining tasks 
of the General Plan update. This phase includes approximately six months of public review of the 
Draft General Plan and a 45-day public review period of the Draft General Plan, Draft CAP, and Draft 
Agricultural Preservation Program Draft Environmental Impact Report (EIR). In addition, a series of 
City Council and Planning Commission hearings will be held to consider certification and adoption 
of the Final EIR and Draft Plans. See “Next Steps” below for more detail. 

 



 

August 4, 2023 | Page 3 

SUMMARY OF THE DRAFT GENERAL PLAN 
The Draft General Plan includes an introductory chapter and vision chapter, as well as an individual 
chapter for each of the 10 General Plan elements that establish goals, policies, and actions for 
implementing the General Plan. The 10 elements include the eight-mandated topics required by 
California Government Code Section 65302 as well as two additional topics of particular interest to 
Hollister. New goals, policies, and actions are noted with “(new)” at the end of each goal, policy or action 
in each element. The Draft General Plan includes the following elements:  

 Land Use and Community Design Element. This element establishes the type, location, density and 
intensity of development activity in Hollister. It describes the goals and policies that will guide 
Hollister’s future growth patterns and development standards.  

 Circulation Element. This element describes the services, facilities, and capital improvements 
needed to facilitate vehicle, pedestrian, transit, bicycle, and emergency circulation.  

 Community Services and Facilities Element. This element describes the community facilities that are 
necessary in the provision of Hollister’s essential public services.  

 Economic Development Element. This is a new element as part of this update to the General Plan 
and establishes policy guidance to support and maintain an economically viable community.  

 Natural Resources and Conservation Element. This element outlines City policy for the preservation 
of natural resources and provision of outdoor recreation opportunities. 

 Health and Safety Element. This element covers two of the 8 State-mandated elements: safety and 
noise. The safety section of this element identifies and assesses hazards in the community and 
establishes the goals, policies, and actions necessary to ensure community safety and protection 
from noise.  

 Open Space and Agriculture Element. This element outlines City policy for the preservation of open 
space and agricultural areas.  

 Housing Element. This element identifies the housing needs of the city for all income levels and 
strategies and policies for providing housing to meet those needs. Since the Housing Element is 
updated more frequently than the other elements, as required by State law, it exists as its own 
document outside of the proposed 2040 General Plan and is therefore not part of the proposed 
project. The current Housing Element addresses housing needs in Hollister for the 2015 to 2023 
housing cycle and is currently being updated by the City through a separate process.  

 Arts and Culture Element. This is a new element as part of this update to the General Plan and 
outlines City policy for creating a lively arts scene that encourages self-expression and ensures the 
representation of Hollister’s arts and cultural communities.  

 Environmental Justice Element. This is a new element as part of this update to the General Plan and 
identifies impacted communities and sets policy direction to minimize effects of environmental 



 

August 4, 2023 | Page 4 

hazards on these communities, with an emphasis on pollution exposure, food access, and safe and 
sanitary homes.  

Proposed Sphere of Influence Change 
The Hollister Sphere of Influence (SOI) is defined and determined by San Benito County Local Agency 
Formation Commission (LAFCO), although the City can propose the area that it would like its SOI to 
include. Per the direction of the City Council, the City is proposing changes to the currently approved 
SOI near Union Road as shown on Figure 1.  

The current SOI is roughly 1,817 acres or about 2.8 square miles. The proposed SOI expansion would 
add about 289 acres (about 0.5 square miles) to increase to approximately 2,106 acres and 3.2 square 
miles. The proposed SOI would extend further south of the existing SOI, but would remain contiguous 
with the existing SOI border to the east and west. The proposed SOI would expand to Union Road 
between San Benito Street and Southside Road and to Enterprise Road between Southside Road and 
State Route (SR) 25. As described in the Draft General Plan policy guidance for the Union Road Special 
Planning Area, development in this expansion area would be subject to specific guidelines for 
development, including the creation of a Specific Plan for proposed projects within the Union Road 
Special Planning Area. 

Proposed Land Use Changes 
The Draft General Plan land use map, as shown in Figure 2, carries forward the majority of existing 
designations. However, the land use map does propose targeted changes. Figure 3 shows the parcels 
that have a new General Plan land use designation compared to the existing General Plan land use map. 
A summary of the major land use changes as directed by the City Council include: 

 Designate sufficient land as High Density Residential to utilize the Government Code section 
65583.2, subdivision (c)(3)(B) default density standard provision which allows jurisdictions to 
identify Housing Element sites for lower income households without additional analysis such as 
market demand, financial feasibility, or information based on development project experience 
within a zone or zones that provide housing for lower-income households. The California 
Department of Housing and Community Development, also referred to as HCD classifies 
Hollister as Metropolitan jurisdiction which requires a default density standard of a minimum 
of 30 dwelling units/acre.1 Note that the City of Hollister is not required to use the 30 du/ac 
default density standard. However, using the default density standard does make the process 
to identify the Housing Element sites inventory easier and less cumbersome.  

Also, subsequent to the June 22, 2021 Council direction, HCD released a memorandum on 
March 21, 2022 that changed Hollister’s classification from a Suburban jurisdiction to a 

                                                             

1 https://www.hcd.ca.gov/community-development/housing-element/housing-element-
memos/docs/defaultdensity2020censusupdate.pdf 



 

August 4, 2023 | Page 5 

Metropolitan jurisdiction. When Hollister was classified as a Suburban jurisdiction, the default 
density standard was 20 du/ac. As a Metropolitan jurisdiction, Hollister’s default density 
standard is 30 du/ac. Since Council direction was to apply the default density standard, City staff 
suggests the High Density Residential minimum density be 30 du/ac.   

 Apply the Medium Density Residential and Mixed Use designations in the Union Road Special 
Planning Area to create a mix of residential units and new job generating uses. 

 Apply Residential Estate to align with the surrounding uses in the Meridian Street Extension 
Special Planning Area. Also apply the General Commercial designation in this area to improve 
access to commercial services on the east side of the city.  

 For areas outside the SOI, the City Council directed staff to apply the Agricultural designation. 
For already urbanized areas outside the SOI, the City Council directed staff to apply the land 
use designation that matched the existing use. 

 
In addition, the Draft General Plan proposes residential density changes as summarized in Table 1. A 
summary of these changes includes: 

 As discussed, the Draft General Plan increases the High Density Residential designation 
minimum density as directed by the City Council to meet the HCD default density standard. City 
staff also suggests this same minimum density be applied to the Mixed-Use, Downtown Mixed 
Use, and West Gateway Commercial and Mixed Use designations for the same reason.  

 As directed by the City Council, the Draft General Plan increases the upper range of the 
Downtown Mixed Use density to 125 du/ac because the small parcels in the Downtown limit 
what can actually be built. Raising the maximum residential density to 125 du/ac per acre could 
potentially encourage developers to add residential components to their mixed-use projects.   

 To better align with the High Density Residential density range, the Draft General Plan changes 
to the Low Density Residential and Medium Density Residential designation density ranges as 
shown in Table 1.  

 The Draft General Plan also modifies the Medium Density Residential designation to preclude 
single family residential uses as an allowed use to increase the diversity of housing options in 
Hollister.  

 As directed by the City Council, the Draft General Plan measures all densities based on gross 
acres instead of net acres. 

 

 



 

August 4, 2023 | Page 6 

TABLE  1 SUMMARY OF GENERAL PLAN LAND USE DESIGNATION UPDATES 

Land Use Designation Existing GPLU Density Draft GPLU Density 

Residential Estate 1 du/5 ac 0.2 to 1 du /ac 

Low Density Residential 1 to 8 du/ac 6 to 10 du/ac 

Medium Density Residential 8 to 12 du/ac 11 to 29 du/ac 

High Density Residential 12 to 35 du/ac 30 to 65 du/ac 

Mixed-Use Commercial and Residential 25 to 40 du/ac 30 to 65 du/ac 

Downtown Commercial and Mixed-Use 25 to 45 du/ac 30 to 125 du/ac 

West Gateway Commercial and Mixed-
Use 

20 to 35 du/ac 30 to 65 du/ac 

Home Office 8 to 12 du/ac 11 to 29 du/ac 

 

 

  



 

August 4, 2023 | Page 7 

FIGURE 1 EXISTING AND PROPOSED SPHERE OF INFLUENCE 
   



 

August 4, 2023 | Page 8 

FIGURE 2 DRAFT GENERAL PLAN LAND USE MAP 
  



 

August 4, 2023 | Page 9 

FIGURE 3 DRAFT GENERAL PLAN LAND USE MAP CHANGES 
  



 

August 4, 2023 | Page 10 

 

SUMMARY OF THE DRAFT CLIMATE ACTION PLAN 
The Draft Climate Action Plan (CAP) proposes a strategic plan to assess and reduce Hollister’s 
greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions, consistent with State targets and directions. It identifies Hollister’s 
current and projected future sources of GHG emissions, including electricity and natural gas use, vehicle 
travel, solid waste generation, and other activities. The CAP also includes a discussion of how climate 
change may affect Hollister by increasing the frequency and severity of flooding, drought, extreme heat, 
regional wildfires, and other natural hazards. 

The CAP contains a comprehensive set of strategies that reduces these emissions 88 percent below 
1990 levels by the year 2045. Key strategies in the CAP include: 

 Encouraging community members to replace natural gas appliances with electric models. 

 Reducing vehicle travel through improved access to local and regional transit systems. 

 Increasing Hollister’s electric vehicle adoption rate. 

 Transitioning away from diesel-powered construction and landscaping equipment. 

 Decreasing the amount of waste sent to landfills. 

SUMMARY OF THE DRAFT AGRICULTURAL PRESERVATION PROGRAM 
The Draft Agricultural Preservation Program proposes a new addition to the Hollister Municipal Code 
(HMC) Title 17, Zoning. The proposed addition would be adopted and codified as new HMC Chapter 
17.13, Agricultural Lands Preservation Program. The purpose of the proposed Agricultural Lands 
Preservation Program is to ensure the benefits of agricultural activities are maintained by requiring that 
activities that convert existing agricultural lands to non-agricultural uses (i.e., urban uses) directly 
address that loss through a program that funds agricultural conservation easements. As directed by the 
City Council through the policy options phase of this project, the Draft Agricultural Preservation Program 
would require the permanent preservation of two acres of agricultural land for every one acre of land 
that is converted to a non-agricultural use within the City Limits. The land that would be permanently 
preserved must occur within the Hollister Planning Area. 

The Draft Program applies to agricultural land within the City Limits that is proposed for conversion to 
a non-agricultural use and has one or more of the following qualities: 

 Classified as Prime Farmland, Farmland of Statewide Importance, Unique Farmland, or 
Farmland of Local Importance per the State of California. 

 Class I or Class II soils (US Department of Agriculture Natural Resources Conservation Service 
classification). 

 Rangelands that support at least one animal per acre (US Department of Agriculture 
classification). 



 

August 4, 2023 | Page 11 

 Orchards or vegetable farms which produce a minimum annual return of $200/acre. 

OVERVIEW OF COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT PROCESS 
The Draft General Plan, Draft CAP, and Draft Agricultural Preservation Program were developed through 
a public process, consisting of issue exploration, visioning, and policy development as described above. 
A General Plan Advisory Committee provided overall direction, with the assistance of citizen 
representatives who worked closely with the consultant team and City staff to guide the public process 
for updating the plan. 

Table 2 summarizes the outreach events and Table 3 summarizes the meetings undertaken through 
May 2023. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, which began in early 2020, the City collected community 
input primarily through virtual workshops and online activities. Although most of the workshops were 
virtual, they still allowed for dialogue and small group participation so community members could share 
ideas and hear feedback from their neighbors. Note that the original scope of work included a total of 
22 meetings and events (excluding the adoption hearings) and the project team will have completed 29 
meetings once the Council reviews the Draft Plans on September 11, 2023.  

The public input received from the workshops, online activities, survey, and General Plan Advisory 
Committee meetings helped inform the development of the Draft Plans. The Draft General Plan Update 
will be reviewed in public discussion and subsequently refined before adoption based on Council 
direction which will be provided on September 11, 2023.  

The City is also collecting public comments via email and in writing. Attachment 1 includes the public 
comments received through July 30, 2023.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

August 4, 2023 | Page 12 

TABLE 2 SUMMARY OF OUTREACH EVENTS  

# Meeting Date Topic # of Participants 

Workshops   

1 Saturday, June 27, 2020 Visioning Workshop 12 

2 Tuesday, June 30, 2020 Visioning Workshop 18 

3 Wednesday, July 8, 2020 Visioning Workshop 15 

4 Thursday, July 9, 2020 Visioning Workshop 20 

5 Tuesday, March 9, 2021 Policy Options Workshop  16 

6 Wednesday, March 10, 2021 Policy Options Workshop 20 

7 Thursday, May 6, 2021 Spanish Language Workshop 45 

8 Wednesday, May 17, 2023 

Draft General Plan, Draft CAP , and Draft 
Agricultural Preservation Program- Farmers 

Market Pop-up 71 
9 Thursday, May 18, 2023 Draft General Plan and CAP - Virtual Workshop 15 

Online Activities   

1 Summer 2020 Visioning Online Engagement 47 

2 Spring 2021 Policy Options Online Engagement 8 

Source: PlaceWorks, 2023. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

August 4, 2023 | Page 13 

TABLE 3 SUMMARY OF MEETINGS  

# Meeting Date Topic 

GPAC Meetings  

1 Thursday, June 4, 2020 General Plan Kick-off 

2 Tuesday, October 6, 2020 Visioning 

3 Tuesday, November 17, 2020 Existing Conditions 

4 Tuesday, March 23, 2021 Policy Options 

5 Tuesday, March 30, 2021 Policy Options 

6 Tuesday, April 6, 2021 Policy Options 

7 Tuesday, April 13, 2021 Policy Options 

8 Tuesday, April 27, 2021 Policy Options 

Planning Commission Meetings  
1 Thursday, April 22, 2021 EIR Scoping Meeting 

2 Monday, May 24, 2021 Draft Vision Statement and Policy Options 

3 Thursday, August 10, 2023 Draft General Plan, Draft CAP, Draft Agricultural 
Preservation Program, and Draft EIR 

City Council Meetings  

1 Monday, April 6, 2020 GPAC Formation 

2 Monday, March 1, 2021 Project Update 

3 Tuesday, June 22, 2021 Draft Vision Statement and Policy Options 

4 Tuesday, January 18, 2022 Project Update 

Source: PlaceWorks, 2023. 

COMMUNITY INPUT ON THE DRAFT PLANS 
This section includes a summary of the community feedback collected on the Draft Plans from April 
2023 through July 2023 via the May 17, 2023 Farmers’ Market Pop-up Event, May 18, 2023 Virtual 
Workshop, and emails sent to City staff: 

» Property owner requests: 



 

August 4, 2023 | Page 14 

o Request for Low Density Residential designation instead of High Density Residential 
for the approximately 8-acre parcel at the western terminus of Glenmore Drive. 
Surrounding neighbors have also expressed concerns about the proposed density 
increase. 

o Request for Low Density Residential instead of Residential Estate for the 43 acres in 
the Meridian Street Extension Special Planning Area. 

o Request for Medium Density Residential instead of Mixed-Use for a 4.65-acre property 
in Downtown Hollister where Republic Urban Properties is proposing a mixed-use 
development project. The developer indicates the High Density Residential 
designation makes the project financially infeasible. 

o Concern that a proposed senior housing project, located at East North Street and 
North Monterey Street, zoning designation of Performance Overlay could be 
jeopardized. The Draft General Plan maintains the existing designation of High Density 
Residential, but proposes an increased density from 12 to 35 du/ac to 30 to 65 du/ac.  

o Request for parcels along Buena Vista Road and outside the Sphere of Influence 
maintain existing General Plan designation of Low Density Residential instead of 
proposed change to Agriculture. Commenter concerned that changing these parcels 
to Agriculture could affect property values and ability to secure loans for future 
agricultural operations. 

o Request to be included in the SOI for the parcel at the corner of Enterprise and 
Southside Roads (APN 020-290-054). 

o Request for a residential designation for the parcel at Union Round and Southside 
Road (APN 020-280-040), also known as Bertuccio Corners. The property owner states 
that continuing agricultural use will be infeasible given position between two urban 
designations. 

o Request for the property at 1660 Buena Vista Road to be included in the SOI and to 
have a residential designation, as it does under the existing General Plan, instead of an 
Agriculture designation. 

» Expand the SOI to allow for increased housing and job growth opportunities. 
» Extend the SOI to the Urban Service Area or the Planning Area to support comprehensive planning 

and utility service. 
» Do not prohibit single family homes in Medium Density Residential designation. 
» Do not change urban land use designations to agriculture.  
» Amend the North Gateway Commercial zoning district to allow: 

o Research & Development 
o Creative / Flex Office / Maker Space 
o Life Sciences related facilities (including but not limited to, Sales, Manufacturing, 

Fulfillment, Service, Logistics, Warehouse, Wholesaling and Distribution) 



 

August 4, 2023 | Page 15 

o E-Commerce related facilities (including but not limited to, Sales, Manufacturing, 
Fulfillment, Service, Logistics, Warehouse, Wholesaling and Distribution) 

o Robotics related facilities (including but not limited to, Sales, Manufacturing, 
Fulfillment, Service, Logistics, Warehouse, Wholesaling and Distribution) 

o Computer, Artificial Intelligence, and Technology related facilities (including but not 
limited to, Sales, Manufacturing, Fulfillment, Service, Logistics, Warehouse, 
Wholesaling and Distribution) 

o Data Centers and the technological evolution thereof. 
o Electrical Vehicles Services 
o Collision Centers 
o Battery and Other Energy Related Power Systems and their Manufacturing, Servicing, 

and Sales 
o High Density Residential 
o Medium Density Residential 
o Educational uses 
o Professional Offices 
o Convenience Store 
o Food Products / Food Processing 
o Pharmaceuticals 
o Repair and Maintenance - Consumer Products 
o Equipment Sales, Services, Rental 
o Food and Beverage Sales 
o Health / Fitness Clubs (Recreation) 
o Storage, Personal Storage Facilities 

» Redesignate the parcels with a North Gateway designation south of McCloskey Road and without 
access to San Felipe Road to Industrial. 

» Extend the Buena Vista Road Special Planning Area west to SR 156. 
» Extend Mixed Use along San Benito Street, possibly all the way to Nash Road. 
» Include a mechanism in the General Plan to extend sewer service to unincorporated county land. 
» Allow project applicants to decide upon stormwater retention methods. 
» Consider the availability of future water supply and impacts to groundwater when planning for 

future growth. 
» PG&E has gas and electric service deficiencies in the northern portion of the city. 
» Include a link to the Multijurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan in the Safety Element as requested 

by the California Governor’s Office of Emergency Services. 
» Increase protected bike lanes and walking trails throughout the city. 



 

August 4, 2023 | Page 16 

» Increase public transit ridership. 
» Reduce traffic; increase routes to/from the city. 
» Improve sidewalk and street maintenance. 
» Include 4-way stops at the intersection of Dry Creek Road/Cerra Vista Drive/Sunnyslope Road and 

Highland Drive/Sunnyslope Road 
» Increase affordable housing. 
» Slow the amount of development in Hollister. 
» Provide housing for the unhoused. 
» Increase parks and recreation activities and facilities. 
» Increase local businesses. 
» Limited broadband capacity is an economic development issue. 
» Requested policy and action edits: 

o Remove Policy LU 1.5 which calls for the City to wait to accept project applications 
until the land has been annexed.  

o Amend Policy LU-1.7 which calls for the preparation of a Specific Plan for annexations 
over 20 acres to a larger acreage limit. 

o Amend Action LU-2.1 which requires the adoption of a 20 percent inclusionary 
housing ordinance. Commenter states that a 20 percent requirement is not 
economically feasible. 

o Amend Policy LU-2.7 which prohibits single family units in medium and high-density 
designations. Commenter states that a project should be allowed if a project can 
meet the required density. 

o Amend Action LU-13.1 which calls for a fair-share cost development contribution fee 
to support the ultimate development of the Meridian Street extension bridge. 
Commenter states that the bridge would benefit all residents so the cost should not 
be placed solely on new development. 

o Remove Action 13-2, which requires the development of a Specific Plan for the 
Meridian Street Extension Special Planning Area. Commenter states that it would be 
cost prohibitive. 

o Eliminate or amend Policy LU-16.1, which discourages the use of franchise 
architecture and/or corporate branding. Commenter states that this could negatively 
affect national chains.  

o Eliminate or amend Policy LU-18.9 requires 48” box trees for street trees.  
Commenter suggests that this goes against what most arborists recommend. 

o Clarify Policy C-4.6 so that it is clear when Transportation Demand Management 
strategies will be required. 

o Add the following actions to the Community Services and Facilities Element: 



 

August 4, 2023 | Page 17 

 Add an action that mandates that a list of development incentives to be 
achieved in exchange for voluntary mitigation agreements in excess of 
school impact fees be presented these developers at the earliest possible 
point in the development process. 

 Add an action requiring City participation in an intergovernmental 
committee comprised of school districts, City officials and County officials to 
ensure that coordination of development occurs as identified. 

 Add an action that requires every developer to participate in a mandatory 
meeting with the District to discuss (voluntary) mitigation options, as a 
condition of receiving project approval. Extend Sphere of Influence to 
include SBHSD parcel located on Best Road. 

o Amend Policy NRC-1.7, which requires an impact fee paid to the County for every 
home or acre developed within San Joaquin Kit Fox habitat area boundaries. 
Commenter states that there should be no fee due if there are no kit fox detected on 
a given during the preconstruction surveys. 

o Modify Policy NRC-1.8, which requires site assessments within critical California tiger 
salamander (CTS) and California red-legged frog (CRLF) habitat areas.  Commenter 
asks several questions which suggest alternative requirements. 

o Remove Policy NRC-3.8, which requires commercial and industrial projects exceeding 
10,000 SF to be zero emissions operations.  Commenter states that this would make 
projects economically infeasible. 

o Remove Policy OS-2.2m which requires 200-foot agricultural buffers. Commenter 
states that this would be economically infeasible. 

» Redesignate property at the northwest corner of Hillcrest and Fairview within the Meridian 
Special Study Area from General Commercial to Mixed Use. 

» Agricultural Lands Preservation Program comments: 
» City of Hollister should not be able to decide what is and isn’t agricultural land. 
» 2:1 dedication requirement is too large. 
» Lands inside of the City’s Planning Area are more expensive than more remote properties. 

Commenter would like to see a larger area for dedication of development rights to minimize 
costs. 
The requirement that parcels be a minimum size of 20 acres will make it difficult to find 
suitable parcels. 

OVERVIEW OF THE DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT 

As required by the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), the City has prepared an Environmental 
Impact Report (EIR) to address the environmental effects associated with adoption and implementation 
of the Draft General Plan. Because of the long-term planning horizon of the proposed project and the 
permitting, planning, and development actions that are related both geographically and as logical parts 



 

August 4, 2023 | Page 18 

in the chain of contemplated actions for implementation, the EIR was prepared as a program EIR, 
pursuant to Section 15168 of the CEQA Guidelines. 

The CEQA environmental review process started on April 9, 2021, with issuance of a Notice of 
Preparation (“NOP”) of an EIR. A 30-day public comment period for the NOP ended on May 10, 2021. A 
virtual public scoping meeting was held on April 22, 2021, to accept public input on environmental topics 
to be analyzed in the EIR and approaches to the impact analyses. During this time, the City received 
comment letters from the California Department of Fish and Wildlife, Native American Heritage 
Commission, and San Benito High School District.  Issues of particular concern to agencies during the 
environmental review process included: 

 Potential impacts to biological resources. 

 Tribal consultation and compliance with Assembly Bill 52 and Senate Bill 18. 

 Cumulative impact on the capacity to serve future students at San Benito High School. 

A Notice of Availability was issued on May 17, 2023.  The Draft EIR was distributed to local, regional, and 
State agencies and the general public was advised of the availability of the Draft EIR. The Draft EIR was 
made available for review to interested parties on the project website at: www.hollister2040.org.  

The EIR evaluation included a detailed analysis of impacts in eighteen (18) environmental topics, 
analyzing the Draft General Plan 2040, and alternatives to the General Plan 2040, including a No Project 
Alternative. The EIR discloses the environmental impacts expected to result from implementation of the 
General Plan 2040 including the effects of potential future buildout during both construction and 
operational phases. Impacts under the following environmental topics were determined to be less than 
significant with implementation of the General Plan goals, policies, and actions. 

• Aesthetics 

• Biological Resources 

• Cultural and Tribal Cultural Resources 

• Energy 

• Geology and Soils 

• Greenhouse Gas Emissions 

• Hazards and Hazardous Materials 

• Hydrology and Water Quality 

• Land Use and Planning 

• Mineral Resources 

• Population and Housing 

• Public Services and Recreation 

• Utilities and Service Systems 

• Wildfire 

The Draft EIR identified the following impacts, which can be mitigated somewhat by General Plan 
policies and actions, but which would not be able to be mitigated to a less-than-significant level and 
would therefore remain significant and unavoidable.  

• Impact AG-1: Implementation of the proposed project would result in the conversion of Prime 
Farmland, Farmland of Statewide Importance, or Unique Farmland land to non-agricultural land 
uses. 



 

August 4, 2023 | Page 19 

• Impact AG-2: Implementation of the proposed project would result in the loss of agricultural 
land under the Williamson Act. 

• Impact AG-4: The proposed project, in combination with past, present, and reasonably 
foreseeable projects, could result in a significant cumulative impact with respect to the 
conversion of farmland of concern under CEQA and Williamson Act properties to non-
agricultural uses. 

• Impact AIR-1: Implementation of the proposed project would result in the generation of 
substantial operational (long-term) criteria air pollutant emissions that would exceed the 
Monterey Bay Air Resources District’s (MBARD’s) regional significance threshold for Volatile 
Organic Compounds (VOC) and would; therefore, not be considered consistent with the existing 
Air Quality Management Plan.  

• Impact AIR-2a: Operation of development projects that could occur from implementation of the 
project would generate emissions that would exceed Monterey Bay Air Resources District’s 
(MBARD’s) regional significance thresholds for Volatile Organic Compounds (VOC), nitrogen 
oxides (NOx), and Carbon Monoxide (CO). 

• Impact AIR-2b: Construction activities that could occur over the buildout horizon of the 
proposed 2040 General Plan would generate substantial short-term criteria air pollutant 
emissions that would exceed Monterey Bay Air Resources District’s (MBARD’s) regional 
significance thresholds and cumulative contribute to the nonattainment designations of the 
North Central Coast Air Basin (NCCAB).  

• Impact AIR-3a: Implementation of the proposed project could expose air quality sensitive 
receptors to substantial toxic air contaminant concentrations from non-permitted sources 
during operation. 

• Impact AIR-3b: Construction activities associated with potential future development could 
expose nearby air quality sensitive receptors to substantial concentrations of toxic air 
contaminants during construction.  

• Impact AIR-5: The emissions that could occur over the buildout horizon of the proposed 2040 
General Plan could generate a substantial increase in emissions that exceeds the Monterey Bay 
Air Resources District’s (MBARD’s) significance thresholds and cumulatively contribute to the 
nonattainment designations and health risk in the North Central Coast Air Basin (NCCAB).  

• Impact NOI-1.1: Construction activities associated with potential future development could 
expose sensitive receptors in close proximity to a construction site to excessive noise from 
construction equipment. 

• Impact NOI-1.2: Operational vehicle traffic noise increases would exceed the City’s significance 
threshold with implementation of the proposed project. 



 

August 4, 2023 | Page 20 

• Impact TRANS-2: Implementation of the proposed project would result in a significant vehicle 
miles traveled (VMT) impact for VMT per Capita (Residential), VMT per Employee (Office), VMT 
per Employee (Other), and Retail VMT over 50,000 square feet, due to forecasted land use 
growth through 2040, based on a comparison of the VMT rate increment for VMT to the 
corresponding average baseline rates for the San Benito County region. 

• Impact TRANS-5: Implementation of the proposed project would cumulatively contribute to 
regional vehicle miles traveled (VMT).  

Where possible, General Plan 2040 policies and actions, and mitigation measures were identified to 
avoid or minimize each of these significant environmental effects. In addition, the City committed to 
implementing measures in order to reduce the direct and indirect impacts that will result from Draft 
General Plan 2040 activities.  

The Draft EIR was made available for public review for a 45-day public review period through Friday, 
June 30, 2023. There were 11 comments received, five of which were from public agencies. 

NEXT STEPS 
Publishing the Draft Plans and Draft EIR was an important milestone for the Hollister General Plan 
Update project. The remaining key milestones of the General Plan Update include: 

» September 11, 2023 – City Council study session on Draft General Plan, Draft CAP, and Draft 
Agricultural Preservation Program. 

» September 2023 – Publish Final EIR. 
» October 2023 – Publish Final General Plan, CAP, Agricultural Preservation Program and EIR; the final 

plans will incorporate Council direction. 
» October to November 2023 – City Council and Planning Commission considers Final General Plan, 

CAP, Agricultural Preservation Program and EIR for adoption. 
 



From: Eva Kelly
To: Carey Stone
Cc: David Early; Ambur Cameron; Christine Hopper
Subject: FW: City of Hollister Draft General Plan Safety Element - Available for Review
Date: Friday, April 14, 2023 4:17:40 PM
Attachments: image002.png

Good afternoon Carey,
 
We received the comment below from CALOES regarding the safety plan.
 
The City has a direct link to the MJHMP on our website here: https://hollister.ca.gov/wp-
content/uploads/2023/02/San_Benito_County_MJHMP_9.2022_FINAL.pdf
 
But, if you think it would be better to put a non-direct link and directions as was provided as an
option by CALOES, the plan can be found on the City’s Planning Division Page at:
https://hollister.ca.gov/government/city-departments/development-services/planning/
 
Thank you,
Eva
 

Get Involved In Community Planning!
General Plan Update
Hollister2040.org|generalplan@hollister.ca.gov
 
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPT. REGULAR PUBLIC HOURS
Monday - Thursday      8:30a - 12:00p, 1:00p - 4:30p
Friday - Sunday            CLOSED
 
ALL Planning Applications require an appointment with a City Planner for submittal.
 

From: Phan, Tina@CalOES [mailto:Tina.Phan@CalOES.ca.gov] 
Sent: Friday, April 14, 2023 11:15 AM
To: CalOES Mitigation Planning <mitigationplanning@caloes.ca.gov>; Eva Kelly
<eva.kelly@hollister.ca.gov>
Cc: Christine Hopper <christine.hopper@hollister.ca.gov>; Ambur Cameron
<ambur.cameron@hollister.ca.gov>; Newton, Jody (Contractor)@CalOES.ca.gov
<ContractorJody.Newton@CalOES.ca.gov>
Subject: RE: City of Hollister Draft General Plan Safety Element - Available for Review
 
Goodmorning Eva,
Cal OES has reviewed your submission and at this time, the City of Hollister is




not AB2140 complaint.
 
The Safety Element of the General Plan should direct the reader to where they
can find the most current LHMP. This can be done by 1.) including a web link
to the LHMP, 2.) inserting the LHMP itself into the safety element of the general
plan, or 3.) including directions such as where it may be found at a local
library. The benefit of using a link in which the year of the plan isn’t mentioned
is that the Safety Element will not need to be modified to accommodate the
next update of the LHMP. 
 
Please reach out to us again once you have included this requirement.
 
Have a wonderful weekend.
 
Kind Regards,
 
Tina Phan, Emergency Services Coordinator
Local Mitigation Planning | Recovery Directorate
California Governor’s Office of Emergency Services

 
Office:  (916) 845-8238
Cell:      (916) 539-1625
www.caloes.ca.gov/HMGP
 
 
 

From: CalOES Mitigation Planning 
Sent: Friday, April 7, 2023 11:34 AM
To: Eva Kelly <eva.kelly@hollister.ca.gov>; CalOES Mitigation Planning
<mitigationplanning@caloes.ca.gov>
Cc: Christine Hopper <christine.hopper@hollister.ca.gov>; Ambur Cameron
<ambur.cameron@hollister.ca.gov>
Subject: RE: City of Hollister Draft General Plan Safety Element - Available for Review
 
Hello,
We have received and will begin reviewing shortly.
 
Thank you
 
 
Kind Regards,
 
Tina Phan, Emergency Services Coordinator



Local Mitigation Planning | Recovery Directorate
California Governor’s Office of Emergency Services

 
Office:  (916) 845-8238
Cell:      (916) 539-1625
www.caloes.ca.gov/HMGP
 
 
 

From: Eva Kelly <eva.kelly@hollister.ca.gov> 
Sent: Friday, April 7, 2023 9:47 AM
To: CalOES Mitigation Planning <mitigationplanning@caloes.ca.gov>
Cc: Christine Hopper <christine.hopper@hollister.ca.gov>; Ambur Cameron
<ambur.cameron@hollister.ca.gov>
Subject: City of Hollister Draft General Plan Safety Element - Available for Review
 
This Message is From an External Sender 
This message came from outside your organization.

 

Good morning,
 
On behalf of the City of Hollister, I wanted to let you know that the draft Hollister General Plan
Health and Safety Element is available for review at https://hollister2040.org/wp-
content/uploads/2023/04/Hollister_Draft_GeneralPlan_web.pdf. The Health and Safety Element
incorporates by reference the 2022 San Benito County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan, as
authorized by AB 2140. It includes a discussion of the HMP and specific language related to the
incorporation. This language is found on pages HS-2 to HS-3 of the Health and Safety Element. The
General Plan is set to go to public hearings starting September 2023.
 
If you have any questions related to Hollister’s AB 2140 status, please let me know.
 
Thank you,
Eva Kelly
Interim Planning Manager
 

Get Involved In Community Planning!



General Plan Update
Hollister2040.org|generalplan@hollister.ca.gov
 
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPT. REGULAR PUBLIC HOURS
Monday - Thursday      8:30a - 12:00p, 1:00p - 4:30p
Friday - Sunday            CLOSED
 
ALL Planning Applications require an appointment with a City Planner for submittal.
 
WARNING: Do not click links or attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the
email is safe.

 



From: Ambur Cameron
To: Tammy Seale; Carey Stone
Cc: Eli Krispi; David Early; Eva Kelly
Subject: FW: City of Hollister Climate Action Plan Comment
Date: Wednesday, April 12, 2023 8:05:22 AM

Good morning Tammy,
 
Please see the email below from Sustainability Program Manager, Amaury Berteaud, of the
Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments (AMBAG) regarding the City of Hollister’s Draft
Climate Action Plan.
 
Thank you,
 
Ambur

Get Involved In Community Planning!
General Plan Update Hollister2040.org|generalplan@hollister.ca.gov
 
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPT. REGULAR PUBLIC HOURS
Monday – Thursday       8:30a - 12:00p, 1:00p - 4:30p
Friday – Sunday              CLOSED
 
ALL Planning Applications require an appointment with a City Planner for submittal.
 

From: Amaury Berteaud [mailto:aberteaud@ambag.org] 
Sent: Tuesday, April 11, 2023 1:50 PM
To: GeneralPlan <generalplan@hollister.ca.gov>; Ambur Cameron
<ambur.cameron@hollister.ca.gov>
Subject: City of Hollister Climate Action Plan Comment
 
Hi Ambur,
 
I had a chance to leaf through your draft climate action plan, and it was quite the interesting read!
 
I have one small comment: AMBAG is no longer running an Energy Watch program. We still do have
a number of sustainability and energy offerings, so where appropriate I would suggest replacing
language around “AMBAG Energy Watch”, with “AMBAG”.
 
Thank you!
Best,
 



Amaury Berteaud (he/him)
Sustainability Program Manager
Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments
aberteaud@ambag.org
Cell: (281)881-5290
Office: (831)264-5089
 
 



 

 

June 9, 2023 

 
Eva Kelly 
Interim Planning Manager. 
Development Service Department ‐Planning Division  
City of Hollister  
339 Fifth Street  
Hollister, California 95023 
 
RE: Comments on City of Hollister’s GP 2040, CAP, and ALPP Draft Environmental Impact 
Report (State Clearinghouse # 2021040277) 
 
Dear Ms. Kelly: 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to review Draft Environmental Impact Report (DEIR) for the City 

of  Hollister’s  General  Plan  2040,  Climate  Action  Plan,  and  Agricultural  Lands  Preservation 

Program. The following comments are offered for your consideration. 

In Chapter 4  (Environmental Analysis), Chapter 4.8  (Greenhouse Gas Emissions), Chapter 4.11 

(Land Use Planning), and Chapter 4.14 (Population and Housing), Chapter 4.16 (Transportation), 

and Chapter 6 (CEQA Required Assessment), AMBAG requests the following revisions: 

Chapter 4. (Environmental Analysis)  

 On page 4‐8, the DIER states: “Land Use and Planning: The geographic context for the 

cumulative land use and planning effects considers impacts from projected growth in the 

rest of San Benito County and the surrounding region, as forecast  in the 2045 AMBAG 

MTP/SCS” and “Public Services and Recreation: Cumulative impacts are considered in the 

context of projected growth in the rest of San Benito County and the surrounding region, 

as  forecast  by  the  2045  AMBAG  MTP/SCS,  and  contiguous  with  the  service  area 

boundaries of the service providers evaluated in this section.” 

 

Revise the sentences to state “…the AMBAG 2045 MTP/SCS.” 

Chapter 4.8 (Greenhouse Gas Emissions)  

 On page 4.8‐25, revise the sentence regarding the AMBAG Energy Watch Program. The 

AMBAG  Energy Watch  Program  does  not  exist  anymore  and  instead  AMBAG  has  a 

Sustainability Program.  

 



2 
 

Furthermore, the proposed 2023 CAP also supports partnering with CCCE and AMBAG 

Energy  AMBAG’s  Sustainability  Program  by  publicizing  energy‐efficiency  programs 

(Strategies 3, 4, and 7). Thus, implementation of the proposed 2023 CAP would result in 

beneficial impacts to GHG emissions. Implementation of the proposed project would not 

generate GHG emissions, either directly or indirectly, that may have a significant impact 

on the environment and impacts would be less than significant.  

 

 On page 4.8‐26, the DIER states: “The 2045 AMBAG RTP/SCS focuses on achieving GHG 

reduction  goals  by  focusing  housing  and  employment  growth  in  urbanized  areas; 

protecting  sensitive  habitat  and  open  space;  and  investing  in  a  more  accessible 

transportation system.” 

 

Revise the sentences to state “…the AMBAG 2045 MTP/SCS.” 

 

 On page 4.8‐26, revise the citation regarding the adoption date of the 2045 Metropolitan 

Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy. The 2045 MTP/SCS was adopted 

in June 2022, not June 2020. 

 

Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments  (AMBAG), 20222020,  June. Monterey 

Bay  2045  Moving  Forward:  2045  Metropolitan  Transportation  Plan/Sustainable 

Communities  Strategy  (MTP/SCS).  https://www.ambag.org/sites/default/files/2022‐

07/AMBAG_MTP‐SCS_Final_EntireDocument_PDFA_Updated071422.pdf,  accessed 

August 11, 2022. 

 

 On  page  4.8‐27,  the  DEIR  states:  “As  described  in  Chapter  4.16,  Transportation,  the 

proposed 2040 General Plan outlines specific goals, policies, and actions that will help 

reduce VMT and therefore reduce GHG emissions from automobiles. Please see Impact 

Discussion TRANS‐2 for a complete list of these goals, policies, and actions. Furthermore, 

implementation of  the 2040 General Plan  is projected  to  result  in a decrease  in GHG 

emissions on a per‐capita basis. Thus, the proposed project would be consistent with the 

overall goals of AMBAG’s 2045 RTP/SCS in concentrating new development in locations 

where  there  is  existing  infrastructure  and  transit  (see  Chapter  4.11,  Land  Use  and 

Planning). Therefore, the proposed project would not conflict with the land use concept 

plan in AMBAG’s 2045 RTP/SCS and impacts would be less than significant.”  

 

Revise the sentences to state “…the AMBAG 2045 MTP/SCS.” 

 



3 
 

 On page 4.8‐27, the DEIR states: “The proposed 2023 CAP is a strategic plan focused on 

GHG  emissions  reduction  through  recommended  community‐wide  GHG  reduction 

strategies and an implementation plan and does not involve any land use changes that 

would result in indirect growth or change in building density and intensity. Furthermore, 

as discussed under  Impact Discussion GHG‐1,  implementation of  the 2023 CAP would 

result  in beneficial GHG emissions  impacts by contributing to reducing VMT,  increasing 

energy and water use efficiency, and  increasing  renewable energy use. Therefore,  the 

2023 CAP would be complementary to statewide and regional plans to reduce GHG and 

would not interfere with or obstruct the implementation of the CARB Scoping Plan or the 

2045 AMBAG RTP/SCS. Implementation of the proposed CAP would not conflict with an 

applicable plan, policy, or regulation of an agency adopted for the purpose of reducing 

GHG emissions and impacts would be less than significant.” 

 

Revise the sentences to state “…the AMBAG 2045 MTP/SCS.” 

Chapter 4.11 (Land Use Planning)  

 On pages 4.11‐2, the DEIR states “By considering the regional forecasts, and goals and 

policies of  the AMBAG MTS/SCS,  the City of Hollister General Plan  can  support  these 

regional planning efforts. AMBAG  is currently developing  the 2050 MTP/SCS, which  is 

scheduled for adoption in 2026.”  

 

Revise the sentences to state “…the AMBAG 2045 MTP/SCS.” 

Chapter 4.14 (Population and Housing) 

 On page 4.14‐1,  the DEIR states “The Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments 

(AMBAG) is the official comprehensive planning agency for Monterey County, San Benito 

County,  and  Santa Cruz County. AMBAG  is  responsible  for  taking  the overall  regional 

housing  needs  allocation  (RHNA)  provided  by  the  State  and  preparing  a  formula  for 

allocating  that housing need by  income  level across  its  jurisdiction. AMBAG produces 

growth projections on four‐year cycles so that other regional agencies, including the San 

Benito County Council of Governments, can use the forecast to make project funding and 

regulatory decisions. AMBAG projections have practical consequences that shape growth 

and  environmental  quality,  and  the  general  plans,  zoning  regulations,  and  growth 

management programs of local jurisdictions inform the AMBAG projections. The AMBAG 

projections  are  also  developed  to  reflect  the  impact  of  “smart  growth”  policies  and 

incentives that could be used to shift development patterns from historical trends toward 

a  better  jobs‐housing  balance,  increased  preservation  of  open  space,  and  greater 



4 
 

development and redevelopment in urban core and transit‐accessible areas throughout 

the AMBAG region.  

 

AMBAG is the Metropolitan Planning Organization for the tri‐county region of Monterey, 

San Benito, and Santa Cruz Counites and prepares regional growth forecasts for the tri‐

county  region.  AMBAG  is  the  Council  of Governments  for Monterey  and  Santa  Cruz 

Counites. AMBAG develops RHNA for Monterey and Santa Cruz Counties only. The Council 

of San Benito County Governments is the Council of Governments for San Benito County 

and prepares RHNA for the Cities of Hollister and San Juan Bautista and the County of San 

Benito. Please revise this section to correctly state that the Council of San Benito County 

Governments allocates RHNA in San Benito County.  

 

 On page 4.14‐7,  the DEIR states “The  regional projections  for Hollister anticipate a 17 

percent  increase  in population and a 26 percent  increase  in housing units, as shown  in 

Table 4.14‐6, Buildout Comparison of the Proposed 2040 General Plan to Regional Growth 

Projections.  However,  the  table  also  shows  that  the  regional  forecasts  do  not 

accommodate  the City’s  fair  share of 4,163 housing units  for  the 2023–2031 Housing 

Element. Though the RHNA methodology considered the AMBAG 2022 Regional Growth 

Forecast,  the  forecast data were accepted  for planning purposes by AMBAG Board of 

Directors in November 2020 and did not consider the 2023‐2031 RHNA allocations, which 

were  finalized  in  2022.2  Accordingly,  this  indicates  that  the  City  needs  to  plan  for 

development that exceeds the AMBAG 2040 regional growth  forecasts, and the City  is 

appropriately planning in order to provide its fair share of regional housing as part of the 

future Housing Element 2023‐2031.” 

AMBAG  does  not  develop  RHNA  for  the  City  of Hollister.  Furthermore,  the  Regional 

Growth Forecast and RHNA projections are based on different assumptions and serve 

different  purposes.  The  Regional  Growth  Forecast  projects  a  realistic  future  housing 

demand, while  the  RHNA  numbers  include  unmet  existing  housing  need  AND  future 

housing  demand.  Finally,  the  Regional  Housing  Needs  Determination  was  issued  in 

September 2021 to the County of San Benito County Governments, well after the regional 

growth forecast was completed. 

Chapter 4.16 (Transportation) 

 On page 4.16‐30, the DEIR states “Implementation of AMBAG’s SB 375 Measures. Some 

of the key strategies identified in the AMBAG RTP/SCS that would apply to the Hollister 

General Plan  include  land use  strategies,  such  as  improve  job‐housing balance  in  the 

region, focus new growth around transit; and transportation strategies such as improve 



5 
 

transit  network,  promote  and  improve  active  transportation,  and  promote  shared 

mobility.” 

 

Revise the sentences to state “…the AMBAG 2045 MTP/SCS.” 

Chapter 6 (CEQA Required Assessment) 

 On page 6.5, the DEIR states “The proposed project is a plan‐level document and does not 

propose any  specific development; however,  implementation of  the proposed project 

would induce growth by increasing the development potential in the EIR Study Area, as 

shown in Table 3‐3, Proposed 2040 Buildout Projections in the EIR Study Area, in Chapter 

3, Project Description. As shown in Table 3‐3, the 2040 forecast for the EIR Study Area is 

approximately 60,535  total population, 17,640 housing units, 16,985 households, and 

20,025 jobs. State law requires the City to promote the production of housing to meet its 

fair  share of  the  regional housing needs distribution made by AMBAG. While  the City 

provides adequate sites to meet its fair‐share housing obligations, the additional housing 

capacity provided by the project would meet the additional demand generated by new 

job growth. In addition, the proposed 2040 General Plan would result in regional benefits 

by promoting growth  that encourages  less automobile dependence, which could have 

associated air quality and GHG benefits. Encouraging  infill growth  in designated areas 

would help to reduce development pressures on lands outside the City Limits.” 

AMBAG does not prepare RHNA  for  San Benito County. RHNA  for Hollister,  San  Juan 

Bautista,  and  San  Benito  County  is  developed  by  Council  of  San  Benito  County 

Governments.  

Thank you for the opportunity to review the DEIR for the General Plan 2040. Please feel free to 

contact me at hadamson@ambag.org or (831) 264‐5086 if you have any questions.  

Sincerely,  

 

 

Heather Adamson 

Director of Planning 



 

 

- 1 - 

 

 
 

June 15, 2023 

 

City of Hollister 

975 Fifth St. 

Hollister, CA 95023 

TRANSMITTED VIA EMAIL 

 

Re: Comments to Draft 2040 General Plan Update  

 

Dear Sir/Madam, 

 

The Building Industry Association of the Bay Area (BIA) respectfully submits the following 

comments to the City of Hollister’s Draft 2040 General Plan Update. BIA offers these comments 

in the spirit of collaboration and support for the City adopting a comprehensive and productive 

General Plan that paves the way for achieving its challenging housing goals. These comments to 

the Draft 2040 General Plan may also pertain to the Draft EIR as many BIA comments and 

recommendations would touch on the Environmental Impact Report.  

 

BIA is concerned that political opposition to housing production in the City and San Benito 

County has been ingrained in the Draft 2040 General Plan. The City has worked hard to bring 

forward a Draft General Plan that preserves and enhances many wonderful features of the region: 

a productive farming industry, scenic parks and open spaces, and picturesque towns.   

 

Integrating responsible future growth into the Draft General Plan is the key. The Draft 2040 

General Plan is an excellent opportunity to balance and blend the rural, agricultural character of 

Hollister with future well planned residential communities that support families, business and a 

thriving economy.  

 

Still, BIA remains concerned that the Draft 2040 General Plan Update has incorporated several 

concerning new policy proposals, actions and fees that may create major obstacles to housing 

production by choking off land supply, prescribing intractable new rules and burdening each 

home with tens of thousands of dollars in new fees.  

 

Housing Element Law requires that the City identify adequate sites to accommodate its regional 

housing needs allocation (RHNA) at all income levels. BIA encourages the City Council and 

Staff to take steps to revise policies and actions that may potentially constrain the production of 

housing during the lifespans of the 2040 General Plan and 6th Cycle Housing Element.  

 

Policies that may require the City to analyze these rules as severe constraints to housing and 

mitigate accordingly include: 

 



 

 

- 2 - 

 

• Constrained Land Supply – Plan for sufficient land to accommodate housing production 

necessitated by the City’s 6th Cycle RHNA and additional land requirements; 

• Inflexible Transportation Policies – Compliance with Vehicle Miles Travelled (VMT) 

policies in the Plan will present an obstacle to housing under current and future 

transportation systems and development patterns unless mitigated with policies to offset 

this significant hindrance; 

• Onerous Ag Land Mitigation Policies - Agriculture mitigation at a 2:1 ratio plus 

Agricultural Buffer Zone requirements would stymie many projects and land deals; 

• Impracticable Inclusionary Zoning Policy – A requirement of 20% inclusionary 

affordable housing on market rate for sale and rental housing would render projects 

infeasible or require implementation of a massive density bonus program. 

 

Land Use and Community Design Element 

 

The Draft 2040 General Plan Update severely constrains production of housing through limited 

Development Capacity, and tight Sphere of Influence (SOI). Figure LU-2, the Draft 2040 

General Plan Update Land Use Map, when compared to the current General Plan shows that the 

SOI and Urban Service Area are nearly unchanged.  

 

In order to accommodate more housing growth, BIA urges the City to expand the limited 

proposed Sphere of Influence in the Draft Plan to coincide with the Urban Service Line 

especially in the East and South quadrants of the City, incorporating more land for potential 

development where Prime Farmland is less prevalent.  

 

LU-1.3. Development Capacity. Housing element site inventory requirements state that the 

purpose of the housing element’s site inventory is to identify and analyze specific land (sites) 

that is available and suitable for residential development in order to determine the jurisdiction’s 

capacity to accommodate residential development and reconcile that capacity with the 

jurisdiction’s Regional Housing Need Allocation (RHNA).  

 

In the 6th Cycle Housing Element that spans the 8 year time period from 2024 to 2032, the City 

of Hollister must plan the capacity for an unprecedented Regional Housing Needs Assessment 

(RHNA) of 4,163 housing units. In addition, to comply with the “No Net Loss Requirements 

Law” (Government Code § 65863), the State Department of Housing and Community 

Development (HCD) recommend that to reduce the likelihood of having to rezone should an 

identified housing site develop with less units than assigned, it is a best practice to have 30% 

more units listed in the inventory than are required to meet a jurisdiction’s RHNA.  

 

Accommodating a 30%+ buffer capacity of Housing Element Site Inventories would add about 

1248 units for a total housing need of 5,411 units. The Draft General Plan states capacity for 

6,455 units, leaving only 1,292 units in excess capacity through 2040.  

 

Finally, the goal of the Draft 2040 General Plan Update is to create a vision for the City’s next 

20 years of growth. BIA strongly encourages the City to assume now that the 7th Cycle Housing 

Element, spanning the years 2032 to 2040, may require at least another 4,000 units plus a 

capacity buffer of 1500 units. In other words, the Plan is grossly under capacity by more than 



 

 

- 3 - 

 

4,000 residential units just for the City of Hollister’s future RHNA and other units that the City 

may need to absorb from the County.  

 

LUD - Land Use Designations. Table LU-2 General Plan Land Use Designations shows several 

hundred acres identified for Medium Density and High Density Residential. Yet no market study 

or analysis is provided to substantiate that development of these residential densities can be 

feasible in Hollister.  

 

LUD 3.3.3. Medium & High Density Residential. This paragraph is confusing as it lumps High 

Density Residential (30-65 DU/AC) in with Medium Density Residential (12-29 DU/AC). 

Medium Density may support a viable product in the Hollister market in the future, but any 

densities above approximately 20 DU/AC (townhouses) will be very difficult to develop. High 

construction costs and low market demand make the Hollister market a tough sell to 

nonsubsidized multifamily builders. 

 

Additionally, there is no need for High Density Residential land use and zoning in the Plan.  In 

the Housing Element, HCD allows jurisdictions to use zoned density as a proxy for lower 

income, as long as certain statutory requirements are met. These include counting sites zoned at 

20 units per acre as affordable because Hollister is a “suburban jurisdiction” as opposed to an 

“urban jurisdiction”. This is called the default density. BIA strongly recommends that reliance on 

Medium and especially High Density Land Use Designation to achieve housing production 

numbers be reduced.   

 

Policy LU-2.1. Land Supply. This policy claims to ensure that there is adequate land designated 

to meet the projected future housing needs of the City. However, as noted earlier in this letter, 

the Draft 2040 General Plan Update fails to plan for enough housing to support this policy. The 

Draft Plan land supply available for residential capacity must be revised to increase the 

residential capacity through 2040. 

 

Policy LU-2.6. Medium and High Density Residential. Medium Density and especially High 

Density housing development in Hollister is generally financially challenged. For sale medium 

density product above 20 units an acre, such as townhouses, would likely be viable, however 30-

60 DU/AC high density will present a very difficult challenge to develop. 

 

While market rate high density housing is unlikely to develop in Hollister, subsidized 100% 

affordable housing may be feasible. 100% affordable projects require funding from a wide 

variety of sources including local sources. The City should keep the option open for market rate 

projects to pay inclusionary fees so as to amass local funding for affordable housing projects.  

 

Action LU-2.1 Inclusionary Housing. No residential density or housing type is financially 

viable with a 20% inclusionary affordable housing requirement, according to the City’s 

Consultant. To justify the inclusionary percentage, the City would be forced to authorize a 

massive increase in density in every residential zoning district, along with concessions and 

waivers of development standards, impact fees and other development requirements.  

 

Open Space and Agricultural Element 



 

 

- 4 - 

 

 

Policy OS-2.1. Offsets for Loss of Agricultural Land. Requiring 2:1 offset of any agricultural 

land used for development is may represent a loss of developable land that could result in a 

severe constraint to housing, especially if that land is located within the City’s Urban Service 

Area. Monterey County is now forming their new Agricultural Land Offset policy with a 1:1 

mitigation requirement.  

 

Ranking offsets on a sliding scale could be keyed to the soil quality of the mitigation land. For 

instance, the conversion of Prime Farmland might provide a 1.5:1 offset, but other classifications 

including Land of Local Importance, Grazing land, etc. to provide a 1:1 offset.  

 

Policy OS-2.2. Agricultural Buffers. 200 foot buffer zones close to the City’s identified growth 

areas would rule out many developable parcels from proceeding because so much project land 

would be needed for the buffer zone. This policy could be revised to apply only to annexations 

outside the Sphere of Influence and allow the developer to provide a buffer zone proposal for 

projects larger than 40 acres adjacent to productive farmland. Coordinated Ag policies with the 

County of San Benito is key, especially as the City and County are updating their general plans 

at the same time. 

 

The policy should incorporate exemptions and variances to allow building in the buffer area. 

Consider establishing an “Agricultural Policy Advisory Commission” to hear proposals to build 

within a buffer area.  

 

While the County of Santa Cruz applies a 2:1 agricultural buffer, it has established policies that 

ease the burden on projects by addressing buffer zone encroachment with some flexible 

approaches: 

 

 In most cases, agricultural buffer reductions can be approved if features are proposed or 

present that mitigate potential negative impacts to adjacent or surrounding commercial 

agricultural land. Existing mitigations can include changes in topography, permanent 

substantial vegetation, or other physical barriers between the agriculture and non-agricultural 

uses. Proposed mitigations include the establishment of a physical barrier, typically a 6 foot tall 

solid wood fence with a vegetative buffer and the recordation of a Statement of 

Acknowledgement on the property title which acknowledges the potential for conflicts between 

the agricultural and non-agricultural uses. 

 

Circulation Element 

 

4.1.5 Vehicle Miles Traveled. Mitigating VMT on a project by project basis would help pave 

the way to failure for housing production under the Draft 2040 General Plan Update. BIA 

encourages the City to complete an overarching EIR evaluating VMT for the entire City and 

devise cohesive City-wide policies and solutions supported by residential development 

mitigation fees. Impact fees, restrictive land use regulations, infrastructure costs, and rising labor 

costs create serious impediments to addressing the housing affordability crisis the region is 

facing.  

 



 

 

- 5 - 

 

It is critical that the City of Hollister continue to produce housing for all incomes. The City high 

housing costs is a testament to the under production of housing to meet the demands of our 

robust economy. Unless significantly revised, the Draft 2040 General Plan Update represents a 

grave threat to the City’s obligation under RHNA and will almost certainly result in a 

constrained housing supply. The Draft 2040 General Plan Update in effect creates a housing 

moratorium by making it too expensive to build. 

 

Again, BIA offers these comments in the spirit of collaboration and support for the City 

achieving its housing goals. BIA is committed to working with the City of Hollister to find 

creative and community based solutions that benefit current and future residents and support a 

healthy economy and lifestyle.  

 

Please feel free to contact me with any questions or comments. 

 

Very truly yours, 

 

Dennis Martin 

BIA Government Affairs 

 

cc: Mayor Mia Casey 

 Kevin Henderson, Chair, Planning Commission 

David Mirrione, City Manager 

 Christy Hopper, Community Development Director 

 Eva Kelly, Interim Planning Manager 

 Jennifer Woodworth, City Clerk 

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 



From: Eva Kelly
To: Carey Stone
Cc: David Early; Christine Hopper; Ambur Cameron
Subject: FW: GENERAL PLAN, DEJAVU ALL OVER AGAIN, YOGI. REPEATING MISTAKES NEVER SOLVES THE PROBLEMS
Date: Friday, April 7, 2023 1:39:24 PM
Attachments: image001.png

ALBRIGHT030305.LT1.pdf
AMBAG062404.LT1.pdf
AMBAGstealsSBC100606.pdf
AnotherLeech61107.pdf
CanneryLeaving.pdf
CogRejectsCaltrain.pdf
CommunismAsIdeal100105.pdf
CommyHousingTransit.pdf
DysfunctionalTransportPolicy.pdf
FALSEGODSOCIALISM.pdf
HighestTransportPriority.pdf
HighestTransPriority.pdf
IMC-missinglinklocally.pdf
L51.COGsPOLICYFLAWS.pdf
L182.COGsPOLICYFLAWSDejaVu-4nd.pdf
MPOsCOGsWastefulness.pdf
MTCtransitdata.pdf
PrivatizeTransit.pdf
ReformTransPolicySBC.pdf
RejectCaltrain.pdf
RTP04BadIdeas.pdf
SBCGenPlanSolution1.pdf
StructuralReformCOG.pdf
TitanicSanBenito.pdf
TitanicSanBenito-2.pdf
TwoTransitAgenciesSBC.pdf

Good afternoon Carey,
 
Please see the comment below and attached we received for the draft General Plan.
 
Best,
Eva
 

cid:image001.png@01D90AFD.3D6DCCF0

Get Involved In Community Planning!
General Plan Update
Hollister2040.org|generalplan@hollister.ca.gov
 
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPT. REGULAR PUBLIC HOURS
Monday - Thursday      8:30a - 12:00p, 1:00p - 4:30p
Friday - Sunday            CLOSED
 
ALL Planning Applications require an appointment with a City Planner for submittal.
 

From: Joseph P Thompson  
Sent: Friday, April 7, 2023 12:08 PM



To: GeneralPlan <generalplan@hollister.ca.gov>
Cc: SBC Board of Supervisors <sbcsuper@supervisor.co.san-benito.ca.us>; sbcsuper@cosb.us;
supervisorkosmicki@cosb.us; Supervisor Bea Gonzales <supervisorgonzales@cosb.us>;
supervisortiffany@cosb.us; supervisormedina@cosb.us; supervisorsotelo@cosb.us; Angela Curro
<supervisorcurro@cosb.us>; supervisorzanger@cosb.us; Sanbenitocog Info
<info@sanbenitocog.org>; COH City Clerk <coh.cityclerk@hollister.ca.gov>; Roxy Montana
<roxymontana2@aol.com>
Subject: GENERAL PLAN, DEJAVU ALL OVER AGAIN, YOGI. REPEATING MISTAKES NEVER SOLVES THE
PROBLEMS
 
Dear Sirs,
         Thank you for inviting comment to the proposed general plan update, latest version.
          IDENTITY. I am a post-doc student of transportation law and policy. I have represented small and
very small business owners before State and Federal
Courts and agencies for 43 years on the Central California Coast Region. I have been involved in
transportation since beginning work for SPRR in 1964,
and have practiced transportation law here for 43 years, after 16 years with SPRR and UPRR supporting
local ag shippers and receivers in Central California 
including SBC. I was a charter member of SBCCOG Citizens Rail Advisory Committee and SBCCOG
Citizens Transit Task Force. On a probono basis I
have donated substantially to local government, municipal and County, transportation law and policy. I
served on Governor Wilson's Regulatory Reform Roundtable
as a representative from Association for Transportation Law, Logistics and Policy for three years in the
mid-90's. I was formerly a member of the Executive Committee
of the SBC Safe Kids Coalition, and I gave the eulogy for SBCSKC for it at its late Coalition's
Chairwoman's funeral after she was killed in a head-on collision on 
Hwy 25, in memory and gratitude for her sending me to the Lucille Packard Foundation in Palo Alto to
give a speech on the then-newly enacted Federal Motor Carrier
Safety Administration of USDOT. I have done post-doc study of transport law & policy at the Norman Y.
Mineta International Institute for Surface Transportation Policy
Studies, SJSU; Transportation Research Board, Georgetown U; and Library of Congress. I am a member
of Transportation Lawyers Association and a Past-Chair
of TLA's Legislation Committee. In 2008 at the invitation of the Gilroy & Morgan Hill Chambers of
Commerce I debated the Hon. Rod Diridon on Prop. 1A ($10B
bond proposition for construction of Bullet Train), and in 2010 I testified before the Assembly
Transportation Committee in the State Capital in support of proposed
legislation to defund the CAHSRA's Bullet Train.
       COMMENT. I repeat what I've said before about the unsound, unsustainable, and unfair transport
policy both at the City and County levels. Powerful vested
interests continue to plunge us down the Road to Serfdom, contrary to the common sense and good
judgment shown by a few of the local elected leaders I've
witnessed in SBC since moving to Tres Pinos in 1995.
       FOR THE RECORD: Please direct your staff to including my letters, some of which are attached,
which I've sent since I started attending all of the SBCCOG
Regular Meetings, Special Meetings, Public Workshop, and RAC and TTF meetings for ten years, except
when I was attending the annual Transportation Law
Institute in Washington, D.C.
        CONCLUSION: Until we have local elected leaders with the courage and wisdom to counter the
powerful vested interests that dominate our pro-government,
pro-transit, anti-free enterprise transport, anti-automobile, unconstitutional, unelected joint power
authorities like SBCCOG, VTA, TAMC, SCCRTC, FAX, etc.,
we will continue down the same failed route taken by the Soviet Union. Where can we find leaders with
the backbone to standup for taxpayers and motorists?
Respectfully,



Joseph P. Thompson, Esq.

 





Analysis. 
Like all too many policy documents created by government employees, the draft DSMP
! fails to stress the importance of private-sector transport solutions. 
! does not distinguish between legitimate functions of government, i.e., infrastructure

construction and maintenance, from improper invasion of government into the private-sector
industries, i.e., for-hire carriage of passengers. 

! fails to mention the adverse social and economic consequences of nationalization of
transport industry. 

! lumps public-sector transit with road construction as legitimate government activities
without revealing the extraordinarily expensive and inefficient practices of nationalized businesses
like public-sector transit.

! does not reveal or recognize the crushing tax burdens that socialist transit imposes on
taxpayers.

! does not discuss the social inequities caused by socialist transit, e.g., forcing small business
and homeowners to pay 99% of fully amortized costs of public-sector transit riders’ rides.

For example, the draft extols public-sector passenger rail service, i.e., Amtrak & Caltrain,
but never once admits that Amtrak is, in the words of Senator John McCain, “a failed experiment,”
or that the Amtrak Reform Council has recommended its discontinuance, or that the President’s
budget calls for an end to Amtrak’s taxpayer-paid subsidies (stacked in $100 bills it would be taller
than the World Trade Centers stood). No where in the draft do the authors disclose that it would be
cheaper for taxpayers to transport Caltrain riders by limousine.

A glaring mistake by the authors can be found on page 36. As a member of COG’s citizens
rail advisory committee, and having personally witnessed COG’s Directors’ unanimous vote (see
my letter to the Hollister Free Lance enclosed), our County is not “currently studying extension of
commuter services via Caltrain.” Our COG’s Directors rejected extending socialist passenger rail
service from Gilroy to Hollister for the obvious reason that it would tax us into bankruptcy.
Conversely, I believe that our leaders do recognize that private-sector rail service is crucial to the
future economic viability of SBC, and that we must increase rail-oriented economic development
on the Hollister Branch Line to preserve it for future generations. My white paper on ISTEA-style
user fees funded financing for an intermodal facility explained how SBC could see restoration of
passenger service.

The authors of the draft mistakenly believe that sound, sustainable transport can be found in
nationalization of transport industries. Like many other public-sector employees, they are wrong in
this belief, as can be seen by a review of the history of the last century. If they were right in their
belief, then the USSR would have won the Cold War.

The authors of the draft are recommending the wrong answer to Secretary Mineta’s crucial
question. See my letters to HSRA’s chairmen (copies enclosed). The consequences of accepting their
wrong answer to the Crucial Question can be seen in the massive State and federal budget deficits,
the cutbacks to our schools and law enforcement. Since the private-sector is much more efficient,

Caltrans District #5's Error Filled DSMP Ought to be Rejected and Returned for
Corrections for the Future Well-Being of the Residents of the District:
Private-Sector Solutions are Ignored. Why? 2



the authors of the draft are recommending that we choose to worsen our government’s fiscal
condition. Such wastefulness undermines the financial ability of our government to do its core
functions, e.g., road construction and maintenance. 

Having defeated the USSR, do the drafters of the DSMP want us to adopt failed Soviet
policy?

While he was the Chairman of the Surface Transportation Subcommittee in the House of
Representatives, Secretary Mineta said to the annual meeting of the Norman Y. Mineta International
Institute for Surface Transportation Policy Studies at SJSU when I was there doing post-doctoral
study of transportation law and policy: “The crucial question in transportation today is: What should
government do? And what should it leave to others.?”

I believe that our government planners must answer Secretary Mineta’s Crucial Question
with less expensive, more efficient, taxpayer-friendly, business-friendly private sector transport. If
we select the nationalized route, we are planning the same trip that the Soviet planners did for the
USSR.

The DSMP’s authors appear ignorant of the parallel universe of private-sector transport,
willing to condemn the automobile, blaming senior citizens “driving their gas guzzlers to Safeway”
for causing highway congestion and air pollution, yet our MPO’s on the Central California Coast
have left Silicon Valley and Salinas Valley as the largest urban area in North America without an
intermodal facility. I believe that it is our planners, not the District’s residents, young or old, who
are responsible for the sad state of affairs we witness on our highways.

The CEO of the Silicon Valley Chamber of Commerce, former Assemblyman Jim Cunneen,
described our Legislature as a battle ground between “transit dreamers” and “highway Luddites”
during a speech at the Mineta Institute. The policy rupture he described is reflected in the draft
DSMP, in the State’s transport plans, in regional transport plans, and in counties’ transport plans
including SBC’s draft RTP. Until we repair the rupture, we will condemn our residents to the
purgatory (or is it Hell) of disavowing our American heritage of free enterprise, and worshiping the
false god Socialism. Caveat viator!

Respectfully yours,
JOSEPH P. THOMPSON                 

cc: Hon. Norman Y. Mineta
cc: Hon. Sam Farr
cc: Hon. Mike Honda
cc: Hon. Jeff Denham
cc: Hon. Abel Maldonado
cc: Hon. Simon Salinas
cc: Hon. Tom Campbell
cc: Hon. Jim Cunneen
cc: Hon. Don Gage
cc: AMBAG
cc: SBC BOS
cc: SBC COG

Caltrans District #5's Error Filled DSMP Ought to be Rejected and Returned for
Corrections for the Future Well-Being of the Residents of the District:
Private-Sector Solutions are Ignored. Why? 3





organization to which I belong, but are only my own ideas as a student.
Background. I have written and submitted many letters and papers to COG’s Directors on

the subject of COG’s dysfunctional transport policies, including the several papers that I submitted
to COG when it was deliberating on the Regional Transportation Plan and amendments thereto. I ask
that those letters and papers be included in the official record of AMBAG’s proceedings. I am also
enclosing my paper, “ISTEA Reauthorization and the National Transportation Policy,” which I
presented at the 68th Annual Meeting of the Association for Transportation Law, Logistics & Policy,
Santa Fe, New Mexico, on June 25, 1997. It was published at 25 Transportation Law Journal, pp.
87-et seq. (1997), and in shortened version as “ISTEA Reauthorization and the National
Transportation Policy: Overlooked Externalities and Forgotten Felt Necessities,” Transportation
Lawyer (Dec. 1997). I am also enclosing a copy of my paper “El Camino Real 2000: A
Transportation Business and Logistics Perspective on the Proposed Widening of U.S. Highway 101,”
which I wrote while serving on Gilroy Chamber of Commerce’s GRC in response to an invitation
from VTA. Please include them in the official record of your proceedings.

Program Level Recommendations:
1. Abolish Public-Sector Transport. 
A Santa Clara County Grand Jury report issued last week not only reveals structural integrity

and systemic failures of VTA, it serves as an indictment of the Nation’s MPO model. It confirms the
conclusion of Harvard professors José A. Gómez-Ibáñez and John R. Meyer, Going Private: The
International Experience with Transport Privatization (Wash, D.C.: Brookings Institution, 1993), that
public-sector transit is less efficient, more expensive, and yields less transport, than private-sector
transport. The indictment should be leveled at all our MPO’s, not just VTA, because the VTA model
is widely followed, including TAMC, SCCRTC, COG, etc. Notwithstanding subsidy recipients’ and
public-transit advocates’ denials, in cities and counties all over the Nation, more transport for less
money is furnished whenever privatization is adopted. The lessons of the last century in Great
Britain, Canada, Mexico, Australia, New Zealand, and many other countries, not to mention the
Soviet Bloc, reveal how much America could benefit if we joined what the Wall Street Journal
called the “Privatization Revolution.” Tearing down the Iron Curtain in American transport policy,
returning to our heritage of freedom and private enterprise in transport, is the real remedy for the ills
inherent in publicly-owned industry. MPOs, including those on the Central California Coast Region,
err by including the for-hire carriage of passenger business with creation and maintenance of the
transport infrastructure. We condemn future generations to unsustainable tax burdens by opting for
the Iron Fist of Karl Marx, rather than the Invisible Hand of Adam Smith. Political patronage and
public-sector union employees’ pensions have, under our MPO model, come to have greater
importance than efficient transportation, contrary to the express provisions of the National
Transportation Policy in Title 49, United States Code. Until our leaders recognize this fact, we will,
as a transportation lawyer once said, be a House Divided against ourselves. As he reminded us, we
shall not remain both; we will become all one, or all the other. I recommend that we be free
enterprise capitalists, not slaves to public-sector Black Holes. I am enclosing a copy of the Grand
Jury Report. They recognized VTA’s fundamental unsoundness, but in my opinion, they
misdiagnosed the remedy. They remind me of a surgeon who finds an inoperable tumor, but

AMBAG Scoping Meeting 6-24-04: Public Comments: Recommendations for
2005 MTP EIR Programs and Policies 2



prescribes a band-aide for it.  

2. Deceptive, Misleading Financial Reports.
Our Legislature requires businesses to use generally accepted accounting principles

(“GAAP”). Corps. Code §114. However, it made an exception for transit agencies, whose financial
reports need not be “in conformity” with GAAP. Consequently, transit agency directors, like those
in our Region, cannot accurately assess the full extent of financial losses being sustained by their
own agencies. This policy decision by our Legislature enriches urban areas at the expense of rural
Californians. Donor rural counties’ residents send vast subsidies to cities’ transit riders, the donees
of these subsidies. Although it would be cheaper for rural counties’ agencies to hire limousines for
transit patrons, our agencies’ directors cannot find evidence for it in their own financial reports. This
is because the Legislature, which is controlled by urban legislators, have a double-standard in place:
private sector companies on GAAP financial reporting; public-sector not using GAAP. So, society
ends-up paying the wasteful transit practices, which are blindly endorsed by local elected leaders.
They can see the empty seats with their own eyes, but their agencies’ financial reports are
manipulated to minimize the losses being sustained. Emperor Transit First is stark naked! We should
believe our eyes, not our MPO’s financial statements. 

3. Intermodal Facilities for Central California Coast Region. Many years ago I asked
“senior transportation planners” at AMBAG and VTA why we did not have restoration of intermodal
facilities on either Silicon Valley or Salinas Valley long-range congestion management plans. The
universal response that I received was, “What is an intermodal facility?” To which I responded, “And
you call yourself a transportation planner?” While working for SP’s PMT and for UP those 17 years,
we operated the “Salad Bowl Express” via SP-Ogden-UP-Council Bluffs-CNW-Chicago-PC,
offering seventh morning service for ag shippers and receivers. However, both Salinas Valley and
Silicon Valley shippers and receivers no longer have an intermodal option. The closest ramp for
NAFTA partner tonnage is UP’s new intermodal facility at Lathrop. Foreign tonnage must be drayed
to the ports at either Oakland or Long Beach. In fact, Silicon Valley is the largest urban area in North
America without an intermodal facility. Our MPO’s “senior planners” blame senior citizens driving
their gas guzzlers to Safeway for causing smog, air pollution and highway congestion, yet it takes
9,000 subcompact cars to make as much air pollution as that of one fully-loaded big rig at today’s
GVW (80,000 lbs.). And axle weight is the single largest factor in road surface and bridge support
deterioration. Under proposed TEA-21 reauthorization legislation now in conference committee in
Washington, we may soon see NAFTA “harmonized” GVW, either at the Canadian (101,000 lbs.)
or Mexican (108,000 lbs.) limit. Furthermore, the power players in the economy are asking that the
freeze be lifted on LCVs (long combination vehicles: triple 27-ft., double 53-ft. trailers pulled by one
tractor) (they are presently legal in 17 states). And to make matters worse, the Southern California
Association of Governments has resolved to build “truck-only” toll roads, even though it takes 4
times as much fuel to move a ton of freight with rubber tires on concrete or asphalt as it does to
move that ton with steel wheels rolling on steel rails. At the end of WWII the Nation had more than
2,500 intermodal facilities, but now we have only about 250. Our MPOs give us wasteful public-

AMBAG Scoping Meeting 6-24-04: Public Comments: Recommendations for
2005 MTP EIR Programs and Policies 3



sector transit, as the MIT study said about VTA’s worst-in-the-Nation transit system, but their
“senior planners” do not even know what an intermodal facility is. I concur in AAR CEO’s remarks
to the Transportation Table in Washington, reported in Traffic World (5/24/04, p. 14) that “85
percent of the nation’s Metropolitan Planning Organizations have no expertise in freight planning.”
(see enclosed Traffic World article). Salinas Valley and Silicon Valley MPOs prove his point. We
are superior wasters of taxpayers money with boondoggles like Lite Rail, Amtrak, Caltrain, Bullet
Train, but we ignore our job-creating commerce and business, just as AMBAG ash-canned its own
Freight Study, which concluded, as I did separately, that we need an intermodal facility on the
Central California Coast. Furthermore, I agree with Mr. Jim Nicholas, Chief Highway Programs,
Caltrans, Sacramento, who told the CTC meeting at San Jose City Hall on 6/6/01 that California
needs more intermodal facilities. At the invitation of the CTC, in December, 2002, I addressed them
on the subject of intermodal facility financing, and gave them a copy of the white paper I drafted,
together with a copy of the intermodal facility financing white paper from the Nation’s newest one
in Stark County, Ohio, called “NEOMODAL FACILITY.”

4. San Benito County Jurisdiction.
San Benito County has its own MPO, namely, COG. Our COG’s Directors have voted

unanimously to reject extending Caltrain from Gilroy to Hollister. While recognizing the importance
of rail commerce, COG’s Directors recognize that to finance it we cannot afford the methods
employed by San Francisco, San Mateo and Santa Clara Counties. Being donee counties, they also
enjoy population and tax bases absent in our rural County, which is a donor county. Being a donor
county, we send 89% of each tax dollar that we send to Sacramento to other counties, e.g., LA, SF,
etc., and thus get back only 11 cents for each dollar. We get back even less from our federal taxes
sent to Washington. In May of 2003 COG’s Directors also unanimously voted to privatize County
Transit, but so far have not yet implemented their idea. They will, once implemented, save our
County’s taxpayers and future residents millions of tax dollars that would otherwise be wasted by
the Boondoggles Empty Seat Transporters Association (BESTA), like those in Monterey and Santa
Cruz Counties. With such MPO wastefulness, it is no wonder that Monterey and Santa Cruz
Counties have the least affordable housing in California. I hope and pray that our COG’s Directors
will not succumb to the socialist-communist philosophy that dominates our neighboring counties.
Caveat viator!

Respectfully yours,

cc: COG Directors JOSEPH P. THOMPSON                 
cc: SBC County Supervisors
Encl. [Letters; Papers; Grand Jury Report]

AMBAG Scoping Meeting 6-24-04: Public Comments: Recommendations for
2005 MTP EIR Programs and Policies 4





Winner, AST&L’s Best Research Paper Award 1997

Why do we let AMBAG & VTA dictate our County’s transport policy? If they are crazy
enough to embrace socialist transit fiascoes like Lite Rail (more expensive than deluxe cruise
ship fares), Caltrain (more expensive than limousine service), etc., (*HEAVY SOCIALISM*),
should we be guided by their insanity? Where is our leaders’ common sense? 





Post-doctoral student, transport law & policy







Past-President, Gilroy-Morgan Hill Bar Assn.







Past-President, Gilroy-Morgan Hill Bar Assn.





Analyzing Socialist Transit Planners’ Assumptions & Hidden Agenda 1

  JOSEPH  P. THOMPSON
Attorney at Law

February 20, 1999
The Honorable Rita Bowling, Chairwoman                    
Council of San Benito County Govts.

Hollister, CA 95023-9631

Re: Taxpayers and Transportation Policy

Dear Mrs. Bowling,

Thank you for allowing me to address the COG Board of Directors at their meeting on Feb.
18, 1999. Regarding the Report dated 2/18/99 from Mr. Walt Allen, Transportation Planner, to the
COG, “Rail Service Study for Hollister/Gilroy Branch Line,” I would like to take this opportunity
to reply to Mr. Allen’s Report.

I. Assumptions. At the threshold, your special duties that the voters entrusted to you require
that you question basic assumptions upon which the Report is based, and the authorship source of
the Report. If the underlying assumptions are unquestioned, then you are in danger of having your
decision premised on faulty, irrational information fed to you by persons and entities with their own
self-interest, rather than the best interest of the residents of the County, distorting the truth and
misshaping the facts. 

1. The False God of Socialism Assumption: Public-Sector Transportation. The authors’
first unstated assumption is that government should provide transportation free, or nearly so, to the
public. No where in the Report is it revealed that such a philosophy of government has been shown
by history to be ruinous for a society. If this assumption was correct, then the USSR would have won
the Cold War. Blind acceptance of this assumption will condemn future generations to a sad fate
where they will curse our memory. For an accurate description of the state of public-sector
transportation erected on this False God of Socialism assumption, I urge you to read Solzhenitsyn,
The Gulag Archipelago (1973), ch. 2, “The History of our Sewage Disposal System.” The true cost
of such a public-sector enterprise is not disclosed by the authors of the Report. In fact, so-called
“senior transportation planners” at metropolitan planning organizations (MPOs) like MTC, VTA,
TAMC, SCCRTC, etc., never include “negative externalities,” i.e., adverse consequences, in their
cost-benefit analyses, although they do include “positive externalities,” e.g., congestion and smog
reduction. Since the authors of those reports gain their income from the tax subsidies that all three



Analyzing Socialist Transit Planners’ Assumptions & Hidden Agenda 2

Hon. Rita Bowling, Chairwoman
Council of Governments
February 20, 1999
page 2

levels of government disburse, they conceal the adverse consequences to justify their work and their
existence. A thinking person with a duty to the electorate must ask, “What about cognitive
dissonance? Are these reports distorting the truth to justify their authors gaining money at taxpayers’
expense? Is the lunch really as free as these authors are telling us? Is the “Free Light Rail Shuttle”
really free? How much money do these authors receive for their “consulting” to us? Could they
survive in a free-enterprise environment? If they did not gain their income from tax dollars, would
they be here to advise us how to proceed?”

If the authors’ first assumption was correct, then why have Canada, Mexico, Great Britain,
Australia, New Zealand, and many other countries de-nationalized their public-sector transportation
industries during the past two decades? If they were correct in their assumption, then the Internet
would have remained a government-owned message center for the Department of Defense. If their
assumption was correct, then the railroads would have been built originally by the government. The
railroads would have remained nationalized as they were for 18 months during World War I. If their
assumption was correct, they would not conceal the fact that the number of employees per mile of
rail lines in socialized countries is substantially greater than in the United States. 

Thinking persons with a duty to the electorate will recognize immediately that this
assumption is false. The public-sector cannot outperform the private sector. Serious studies have
examined this assumption and concluded as I have, and as you should, that the public is better served
whenever we harness free-enterprise capitalism to do the job. Before you accept the false God of
Socialism assumption, I urge you to read the seminal works of three Harvard University Professors,
José A. Gómez-Ibáñez and John R. Meyer, Going Private: The International Experience with
Transport Privatization (Wash, D.C.: Brookings Institution, 1993), and John D. Donahue, The
Privatization Decision: Public Ends, Private Means (New York: Basic Books, 1989). 

The authors’ first assumption is contrary to human experience and common sense. If it was
accurate, then public housing projects would be preferable to private home ownership. If they were
correct, then Americans would have been emigrating to the USSR to live in concrete tilt-up
“Dirodonominiums” along public-sector railroads. In truth, the residents of those Soviet-planners’
high-rise concrete towers fled to their country farms (dachas) every chance they got. If the
proponents of socialist transportation were correct in their assumption, the Berlin Wall would have
been torn down by people trying to get into East Germany. Is that what happened? 

Reliance on the public-sector solutions that the authors tout will cause you to violate the
mandate of the Government Code that local government officials preserve past generations’ 



Analyzing Socialist Transit Planners’ Assumptions & Hidden Agenda 3

Hon. Rita Bowling, Chairwoman
Council of Governments
February 20, 1999
page 3

investment in our infrastructure. Worse than the Y2K bug on your computer’s hard drive is socialism
in your infrastructure. The California Transportation Commission (CTC) has recently recommended
that local government base future transportation infrastructure on “user fees” rather than on new
taxes. The authors’ False God of Socialism assumption conveniently ignores both history and the
CTC’s instruction to local government. Will we learn from our history, or ignore it?

If the authors’ False God of Socialism assumption is correct, John F. Kennedy would have
said, “Ask not what you can do for your country. What can your country do for you?” If they were
right about this, then the Populist Party platform plank, viz., government ownership of railroads,
telegraphs and telephones, would have carried the day during the elections of the 1890s decade,
when public outcry to the Robber Barons crested. Williams Jennings Bryan’s Plumb Plan would
have kept the railroads government-owned after WWI if the authors’ premise was correct. 

If the authors’ False God of Socialism assumption was correct, then Abraham Lincoln would
not have said in his Second Inaugural Address that no man should dare to ask a just God’s blessing
to wring his bread from the sweat of another man’s brow.   
 

If the False God of Socialism assumption was correct, then Governor Wilson would never
have recommended the “Yellow Pages Test” of government as he did in California Competes.

The primary reason that the authors’ Report omits mention of this assumption is that
consultants and advocates for taxpayer-funded transit do not make any money unless they can
convince elected officials, and dupe the public, into believing that there are no alternatives. If the tax
dollars stopped, then they would be out of jobs. That is why you see them in the “revolving door”
moving between MPOs and consultants’ offices, milking the taxpayers by deceiving the elected
representatives. As a general rule, they downplay the expense of public-sector transportation by an
average of 50%, while at the same time they inflate “ridership” projections and anticipated revenues
by an average of 50%. This finding was made after an exhaustive study of the previous 100 years
of councils just like yours. Harvey A. Levine, National Transportation Policy: A Study of Studies
(Lexington: Lexington Books, 1978).

2. The Pork Barrel Assumption: Politicians Know What’s Best. This assumption, which
I also call “The MTBE Assumption,” is not stated by the authors. Like the False God of Socialism
Assumption, you must adopt it before you can accept the recommendations in the authors’ Report.
If this assumption, politicians know best, was true, then the taxpayers would not have had to pay the
$1+ trillion to bail out savings and loans after TEFRA, and the transportation industries would not



Analyzing Socialist Transit Planners’ Assumptions & Hidden Agenda 4

Hon. Rita Bowling, Chairwoman
Council of Governments
February 20, 1999
page 4

have suffered 95% attrition through failures and bankruptcies as it did after Congress enacted
deregulation legislation. If this assumption was correct, then MTBE would not be universally
condemned as a mistake by our government. Since politicians can brag about bringing home their
respective pork barrel projects, and make it seem like they are doing something positive for their
constituents, the politico-transit alliance promotes the myth of this Pork Barrel Assumption. Many
commentators have, however, recognized the fallacy of this assumption, e.g., Robin Paul Malloy,
Planning for Serfdom: Legal Economic Discourse and Downtown Development (Philadelphia,
Pa.: U. Penn. Press, 1991). Is TEA-21 really Jim Jones Koolaid for your constituents?

3. The Spending Priorities Assumption: You’ll Get Median Barriers When We Are
Ready to Give Them to You and Not a Second Sooner. 

Another assumption that is not stated by the Report’s authors is that unelected bureaucrats,
who get their paychecks regardless of their performance, will establish spending priorities that are
in the best interests of the greatest number of people. However, this assumption has been proven
wrong, and is a primary reason why Mexico, Canada, Great Britain, Australia, New Zealand, and
many other developed countries, have de-nationalized their industries, including transportation,
during the past twenty years. 

Just take the example of the VTA in Santa Clara County. What is the highest priority
the VTA has? Let’s judge them by what they do, not what they preach. If you guessed safety
of the motoring public, you guessed wrong. The first thing on their priority list is their own
job preservation. Their actions reveal that nothing is so important as that, no matter what the
social cost imposed on society. While the county’s transit agency is operated for the best
interest of the union employees and agency managers, who have vastly higher pay scales and
fringe benefits than you find in private sector transportation companies, the public is forced
to wait for highway safety improvements. It matters not that many of us are killed or injured
by lack of median barriers on the highways. So long as they can double the annual retainer of
their federal lobbyists, so long as they can spend money for aesthetics, pensions, “Free Light
Rail Shuttles,” and other schemes and self-serving plans, then the public be damned. No
sooner had the ink dried on the Supreme Court’s decision denying a hearing to the taxpayers’
challenge to the Court of Appeals’ decision in the $1.2 billion sales tax (Measure A&B) case,
than the VTA’s board of directors adopted a resolution doubling the $620,000 annual retainer
that they pay their Washington, D.C., lobbyists, raising it to $1.2 million annually. This money
is spent so that VTA can have more lobbying to get more taxpayers’ dollars from Washington.
The success of their lobbyists ensure that they get more of our tax dollars. Imagine that cycle
repeated by all of the MPOs around the country every time reauthorization of transportation
infrastructure is debated by Congress! Where will it end? Ask yourselves, if ISTEA reached 



Analyzing Socialist Transit Planners’ Assumptions & Hidden Agenda 5

Hon. Rita Bowling, Chairwoman
Council of Governments
February 20, 1999
page 5

$186 billion, and TEA-21 rose to $218 billion, how many people, primarily middle-class taxpayers,
will be forced to suffer declining standard of living in the future to support such abusiveness by our
government and public servants?!?! Although there have been terrible highway crashes, taking a
disgraceful toll of motorists of all ages, unborn, children, teens, adults, and elderly, VTA routinely
transfers many millions of our transportation dollars to its employees bloated pension plans (most
recently, January 1999, $52.29 million to PERS). The authors would have us ignore the bureaucrats’
spending priorities. Their assumption is that we must close our eyes to the human suffering which
those selfish decision-makers at our MPOs like VTA make every day with our money. 

Ask yourselves: “Why did Mayor Brown threaten to privatize Muni when it was revealed that
they were operating nearly 50% of their bus fleet without meeting CHP’s safety standards for
passenger buses?” Was Mayor Brown admitting that the private sector could do a better job? Do you
believe that he would ever fulfill such a threat when it would mean the loss of vast political
patronage in San Francisco for the Mayor? Are you willing to establish that model for our County?
Are you willing to accept the priorities revealed by the VTA? 

4.  The Womb to Tomb Government Assumption: Unelected Bureaucrats Will Address
Your Every Need.

A related assumption which the authors fail to mention in their Report is that we can trust
bureaucrats, unelected and unresponsive to the electorate, to make wise decisions for everything we
need from the womb to the tomb. This fallacy must be rejected for the same reasons that you
denounce the False God of Socialism Assumption. Until Christ’s Golden Rule becomes part of
human nature, this assumption is false.

5. The Black Hole Government Assumption: Each Little Tax Increment Will be
Painless for the Taxpayers.

The next unstated assumption, which I call “The Black Hole Government Assumption,” is
one in which the authors expect that each “little” tax increment imposed on the taxpayers will have
no adverse effect. They think it will be painless. Their thinking can be shown for what it is by
imagining yourself exposed to the ravages of a blood-sucking leech. One leech, say on your foot,
takes a few tablespoons of your blood, is satisfied, and falls off. You survive. Two leeches will take
twice as much of your blood. Again you survive. Now, keep adding leeches to this thought
experiment (don’t try this at home!). If your body was totally covered with leeches, you would be
dead. Somewhere between the first leech, and total body coverage, a fatal number of leeches, all
sucking their own little sip of your blood, attach themselves to you. That number will depend on
many factors. Suffice it to say that each person has such a number, but there are an infinite number
of leeches 



Analyzing Socialist Transit Planners’ Assumptions & Hidden Agenda 6

Hon. Rita Bowling, Chairwoman
Council of Governments
February 20, 1999
page 6

standing by ready to help themselves to everyone’s blood.
A Black Hole Government has infinite gravitational pull that will cause it to grow indefinitely

as long as it can suck-in more matter that comes within its grasp, just like its namesake in
cosmology. The authors misguided assumption is that the leeches can be restrained, the black hole
arrested, before the fatal point arrives for our society. In the interim,  they may profit from the
experience that society undergoes, until they, too, get a fatal dose of leeches or are bound irrevocably
to the attraction of the black hole. But the authors, or their descendants, will suffer the same fate as
the rest of us. Their thinking is, therefore, self-serving and short-sighted. We may excuse them as
advocates for a theory, a philosophy, and all agree that in a democracy they have the right to express
their opinion. But thinking persons with a duty to their constituents must see through their fallacies
to the truth, and steer us away from the leeches, and clear of the Black Hole Government.

6. The Malignant Tumor Government Assumption: It Won’t Spread. The authors next
unspoken assumption that I call “The Malignant Tumor Government Assumption” presumes that we
will keep this socialism from spreading to other parts of society. They say nothing about the
malignancy spreading, for example, to retailing, food distribution, medical care, farms, etc. Their
unstated assumption is that extending nationalized industry into transportation will not cause further
spread of nationalization into other industries. The danger of the spread of socialism in our economy
is taught to MBA candidates in our universities. It is widely accepted learning that in a global
economy like our children are facing only countries which restrict their spending to income
producing activities will prevail in the intense competition. Dunning, Multinational Enterprises and
the Global Economy (Addison-Wesley Pub., 1993), at p. 529. Until we have elected leaders with
the wisdom and courage to stop the spread of this malignancy, the authors and others touting
their philosophy may facilitate the spread of this evil throughout our society and forcing us to
the same fate as befell the USSR. 

7. The Graffiti Taggers Assumption: Respect for Private Property. The authors next
unstated assumption is that public-sector property will earn the same respect as private property. But
like graffiti taggers, who despoil and vandalize others’ property, the draftsmen of the Report, like
many of their cohorts around the country, fail to state the obvious fact that people have greater
respect for something they own, than for what other people own. Just look at a street in your
community with renters and owners. Who takes better care of the property? Are graffiti taggers
spray-painting their belongings? Or are they lurking around spraying paint on public property,
carving their incomprehensible acronyms in the glass doors and windows of our small businesses?



Analyzing Socialist Transit Planners’ Assumptions & Hidden Agenda 7

Hon. Rita Bowling, Chairwoman
Council of Governments
February 20, 1999
page 7

8. The Vacuum Assumption: This Scheme is the Only Thing Happening. The next
assumption that the authors fail to reveal in their Report is one wherein they pretend that no other
tax-funded government program is already draining dollars from us, and that middle-class incomes
have been increasing. As shown in the accompanying Petition, this assumption is false, and must be
rejected for the same reasons as stated under the Black Hole Government Assumption. Many people
have already reached the fatal number of leeches sucking their blood. Look at the number of
bankruptcies and their rate of increase in this District. Look at the small business failure rate. Look
at the sky-rocketing price of housing. If you have already been forced to tax the beds in our hospitals
and convalescent homes to run the socialized buses, what will you have to tax to run socialized
passenger trains?

9. The Grantism Assumption: If the Money is Called a Grant Then it is Not a Tax
Subsidy. You will notice that the authors’ Report distorts the meaning of words to conceal the truth
as much as possible. For example, the use of the word “grant” instead of “taxpayers hard earned
dollars,” or “taxpayers’ subsidy,” is commonly used by authors like those of this Report. Whether
the  dollars from the taxpayers are called taxes, fees, grants, subsidies, or pork-barrel handouts from
the Treasury, the effect is the same. And furthermore, the corollary assumption, that tax dollars from
the federal government are somehow different from the taxpayers’ dollars that are spent by local,
regional and state governments is just as fallacious. The California Supreme Court has held that a
fee is not a tax, and therefore, the Legislature need not comply with the California Constitution (2/3
supermajority requirement) whenever it enacts “fees” as opposed to enacting taxes. Sinclair Paint
Co. v. State Board of Equalization, 15 Cal.4th 866, 64 Cal.Rptr.2d 447, 937 P.2d 1350 (1997).
This is contrary to the will of the people as shown by Proposition 13 and Proposition 218. So, it is
vital that our local elected representatives voice our concern that the Constitution be enforced and
that no new taxes be placed on the backs of the taxpayers. The impact of all these taxes by all the
multiplicity of taxing authorities, joint powers boards, redevelopment agencies, municipalities,
regional authorities, etc., whose malignant growth can be seen in the explosive growth of our Public
Utilities Code in California (which has doubled in size during twenty years of “deregulation” of the
industries), may be seen if you read the accompanying Petition.

10. The Trojan Horse Assumption: Beware of Greeks (and Transit Advocates) Bearing
Gifts. The most insidious assumption that the authors make is that this federal money has no strings
attached. Hailed by the politico-transit alliance as “devolution,” i.e., returning power to local and
state government, all of the ISTEA (Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act)
reauthorization legislation, e.g., BESTEA, NEXTEA, HOTTEA, etc., was laced with poison like Jim
Jones’ Koolaid. Although bipartisan supporters never once mentioned it, the draftsmen of TEA-21
inserted broad 



Analyzing Socialist Transit Planners’ Assumptions & Hidden Agenda 8

Hon. Rita Bowling, Chairwoman
Council of Governments
February 20, 1999
page 8

federal preemption language (“no state or local government shall enact or enforce any law or
regulation . . .”). While this was no problem for the politico-transit alliance, who got unprecedented
sums for their pet projects out of the deal, the Tenth Amendment in the Bill of Rights was further
decimated. Using the Commerce Clause as justification, the Supreme Court has approved this federal
incursion of the States’ rights in a wide spectrum of the Nation’s economy, e.g., Kelley v. United
States, 116 S.Ct. 1566 (1996)[state regulation of intrastate trucking preempted by ICC Termination
Act, Pub.L. No. 104-88], so TEA-21's draftsmen traded away the people’s constitutional rights in
exchange for the “demonstration projects” (pork barrel) that the politico-transit alliance sought. How
does this work? For example, federal preemption of local government power by means of this
language was recently approved by the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals in the Stampede Pass Case
(City of Auburn v. Surface Transportation Board), where the Court upheld Congressional
prohibition of enforcement of environmental, zoning, and construction permit laws by the City of
Auburn, Washington when the Burlington Northern Santa Fe Railroad decided to reopen its
previously abandoned transcontinental route through the Stampede Pass without complying with
their state laws. The federal formula also applies to airlines, 49 U.S.C. §41713(b)(4). Courts
throughout the Nation have handed down similar decisions based on the broad federal preemption
language. 18 Harvard Journal of Law & Public Policy 903, "Federal Preemption of State Consumer
Fraud Regulations: American Airlines, Inc. v. Wolens,” 115 S.Ct. 817 (1995).

The authors’ Report never mentions this erosion of fundamental rights reserved to the people
by the Bill of Rights. While temporary gifts are doled-out by campaign-fund, vote-hungry members
of the politico-transit alliance, they are depriving future generations of the Founders’ Constitution
that we inherited from our fathers. I consider this to be the most egregious harm that is left unspoken
by the Report. Acceptance of the Report by the COG Board will be a ratification of this violation of
our constitutional rights. Since those rights have infinite value to America’s unborn generations,
whatever inducements are offered us in exchange are nothing more than an insult to democracy. Who
has the courage to tell the Emperor that he is stark naked? What is more important, another glass of
Kool Aid, or your grandchildrens’ constitutional rights? A statesmen would rather fall on his sword;
a politico-transit alliance comrade will lunge for the chum like sharks in a feeding frenzy.

II.  Recommendations.  I request that you give serious consideration to the accompanying
Petition on behalf of the taxpayers, homeowners and small business owners of this County. I urge
you to “do your homework” and read my paper for the background and evolution of this crucial issue
facing us today,  “ISTEA Reauthorization and the National Transportation Policy,” 25
Transportation Law J., pp. 87-et seq. (1997). I have already given you copies of this paper, but to
aid your decision making, I am enclosing a copy of a shorter version entitled “ISTEA
Reauthorization and the National Transportation Policy: Overlooked Externalities and Forgotten Felt
Necessities,” 



Analyzing Socialist Transit Planners’ Assumptions & Hidden Agenda 9

Hon. Rita Bowling, Chairwoman
Council of Governments
February 20, 1999
page 9

which was published in the Transportation Lawyer (1997).Your special duties to the electorate and
residents of the County, and,  equally important, your duties to future generations of County
residents, require that you adopt strategic transportation planning that is in the best interests of the
greatest number of people, not the best interest of consultants and others who feast off the taxpayers.
In honor of the self-reliant pioneers from the Donner Party, ranchers and farmers who originally
settled this County, you must be guided by the American virtues of independence, self-reliance, and
respect for private property which they bequeathed to us, and for which our fathers fought to preserve
for us. Rejecting all forms of socialist planning for our transportation infrastructure, I believe that
you should adopt the following recommendations to guide us into the next century.

1. The COG Board must refuse to become a partner with another government because
partners are responsible for each other’s debts.

2. The COG Board must reject the philosophy of public-sector transportation advocates like
the transit planners at VTA, TAMC, and other MPOs. 

3. The COG Board must obey the mandate of the Government Code to preserve previous
generations investment in our infrastructure, chief of which is capitalism.

4. The COG Board must reject invitations to spread socialism into this County, which are
extended by self-serving promoters of taxpayer-funded programs that impose unacceptable burdens
on the middle-class, homeowners, small business owners, and cause housing to become more
unaffordable. COG must denounce the politico-transit alliance and Soviet-style planners.

5. The COG Board must obey the instructions of the CTC to plan infrastructure on “user
fees” and not on new taxes. COG must place the taxpayers’ well-being as its highest priority.

6. The COG Board must instruct the staff of the County transportation agency to include all
negative externalities in their cost-benefit analyses, including small business failures and personal
bankruptcies, and their human suffering, resulting from excessive taxation by all levels of
government.

7. The COG Board must demand truth in transportation from the staff of the County
transportation agency, and any other proponent of public-sector transportation in any mode, i.e.,
highway, railroad, etc., so that our elected representatives have an accurate factual basis upon which
to make decisions for strategic transportation planning.



Analyzing Socialist Transit Planners’ Assumptions & Hidden Agenda 10

Hon. Rita Bowling, Chairwoman
Council of Governments
February 20, 1999
page 10

8. The COG Board must discount the reports of consultants and proponents of public-sector
transportation because their viewpoint is influenced by their desire to profit at the expense of the
taxpayers. COG must not emulate Soviet-style models from wealthy, urban counties.

9. Before proceeding with any plan, the COG Board must find that it would be in the best
interests of the taxpayers of this County to adopt the public-sector model of passenger train
transportation and reject the free-enterprise model of the private sector.

10. The COG Board must consider the private-sector solution adopted in Stark County Ohio
and the benefits for the commerce and business and tax base of this County that could be achieved
if we followed their example and had a shortline railroad from the private sector build and operate
an intermodal facility on the Hollister Branch Line near Highway 101, which is a NAFTA approved
route under TEA-21. Tapping the substantial flow of intermodal traffic, Eastbound from the Salinas
Valley, and Westbound into the Silicon Valley, will add tax revenues for the County, attract
additional transportation business, reduce highway congestion, road maintenance expense, and
improve air quality because of the traffic that is diverted off the highways to TOFC/COFC rail
service. This intermodal traffic far exceeds any other available freight revenue that the Hollister
Branch Line could offer a shortline railroad/intermodal facility operator.

11. The COG Board must adopt a policy of preferring free-enterprise transportation as the
only long-term, sustainable transportation as history has shown, and reject public-sector, taxpayer
funded transportation schemes promoted by people who delight in spending OPM (“other peoples’
money) with no risk to themselves.

III. Action Request. Will you please include this reply to the Report, and the accompanying
Petition, on your agenda for your meeting on March 18, 1999, at 1PM in Hollister, and consider it
on behalf of the taxpayers,  homeowners and small business owners of our County. Thank you for
considering this request. 

Respectfully yours,

JOSEPH P. THOMPSON
Encl.





JOSEPH P. THOMPSON, ESQ.





Past-President, Gilroy-Morgan Hill Bar Assn.





or is gouged by the brokers’ “deregulated” freight rates.
! Intermodal rates average 40% less than truckload rates.
! Transcontinental intermodal service is truck-competitive (i.e., UPS is UP’s biggest

intermodal customer tells you something about the service).
! Tonnage being drayed to and from the intermodal facilities at Lathrop (UP) and Stockton

(ATSF-BN) from and to Silicon Valley and Salinas Valley over Altamont and Pacheco Passes makes
a significant contribution to highway congestion and air pollution. The occurrence of big rig
accidents is increasing. 

! Axle weight is the single largest factor in road surface destruction and bridge support
deterioration.

! TEA-21 reauthorization legislation is likely to include increasing gross vehicle weight
(GVW) to “harmonize” with our NAFTA partners’ GVW (Mexico 108,000 lbs.; Canada  101,000) 

! TEA-21 reauthorization is likely to lift the freeze on LCVs (Long Combination Vehicles:
triple short (27 ft.) trailers and “freeway doubles” (twin 53 ft. trailers)) which are presently legal in
17 states, at least on the NHS (National Highway System routes).

! Restoration of intermodal facilities would alleviate some of the highway and bridge
maintenance expenses that these federally-mandated (and pre-empted by the Supremacy Clause and
the Commerce Clause) TEA-21 reauthorization developments will bring with them.

! At the high water mark following WWII, the Nation had more than 2,500 intermodal
facilities, but now we have fewer than 250 in the U.S.

! Mexican long-haul truck competition will undercut California truckers’ rates, thus
diverting the freight revenue and local and State taxes to Mexican domiciled carriers.

! Local drayage of tonnage to and from the ramps would be captured by local truckers, not
Canadian or Mexican long-haul truckers admitted to California by NAFTA preemption.

! It takes four times the amount of fuel to move a ton of freight with rubber tires over
concrete or asphalt as it does moving it with steel wheels on steel rails, so air pollution in the San
Joaquin Valley is directly affected by our lack of intermodal facilities on the Coast.

! It takes 9,000 subcompact cars to produce as much road surface damage (at today’s GVW,
80,000 lbs.) as that produced by one fully loaded big rig. Increasing GVW to Canadian limits will
be the equivalent of striking California concrete with sledge hammers 20% heavier. Increasing to
Mexican GVW will be like 25% heavier sledge hammers. Foreign carriers don’t pay for highway
repairs.

! Accidents, injuries and deaths involving big rigs are increasing, while motor vehicle
accident injury and death rates have been decreasing (measured by million miles of travel). Mexican
drivers get commercial drivers licenses without comparable training as American CDL holders;
Mexico has no hours of service rules for commercial drivers. Drivers paid on a “per trip” basis will
be even more dangerous on our highways than our own desperadoes.

!When Altamont Pass is backed-up with traffic congestion, the UP’s parallel tracks are
100% empty (17 hours between trains).

!Our MPO’s (e.g., MTC, VTA, SCCRTC, etc.) blame “senior citizens driving their gas
guzzlers” for everything from ozone holes, dirty air and traffic, but when I asked the Senior
Transportation Planners at VTA and AMBAG why they don’t include intermodal facilities in their
long-range congestion management plans, they both said, “What is an intermodal facility?”

! Our Nation has abandoned more track than most countries around the world ever laid.
! AMBAG’s Freight Study (1995) concluded that the Salinas Valley needed intermodal



facilities then, but instead, they focused on public-sector passenger transit.
! Years ago ag shippers in the Salinas Valley enjoyed expedited rail service, including TOFC

service, on the “Salad Bowl Express,” which we operated via SP-Ogden-UP-Council Bluffs-CNW-
Chicago-PC. No such service exists for shippers here today.

! As a former truck dispatcher, I can tell you that truck drivers would rather be home at night
with their wives and children than traveling across the country trying to beat impossible demands
made on them by the shippers (and cheating the hours of service rules much of the time).

! As a former customer service clerk (10 years for UP), I can tell you that the shippers want
reliable delivery schedules more than speedy trucks (air freight handles critical freight).

! Caltrans Chief of Highway Programs, Mr. Jim Nicholas, promulgated Caltrans’ transport
strategies (“themes”) and announced them to the California Transportation Commission on June 6,
2001, including (theme six) increased Statewide reliance on intermodal transportation.

! Before 9/11/01, Transportation Secretary Mineta, and T&I vice-chair, ranking Democrat
James Oberstar (D-Minn.) both recommended that the Nation have increased reliance on intermodal
transportation (since 9/11 their focus has been on security).

! Caltrans Chief of Freight Planning, Mr. Tom Messer, met with Gilroy’s Economic
Development Corporation Executive Director Mr. Bill Lindsteadt, and Congressman Mike Honda’s
transportation staff man and others on Thursday in Gilroy at my suggestion, and we all urged him
to tell the Congressman that we desperately need restoration of intermodal facilities for this Region.

! On Tuesday 1/21/03 Mr. Al Martinez, Executive Director, EDC of San Benito County had
me make a joint presentation to EDC’s Board of Directors with Mr. Paul MacDonald, Regional
Manager, Industrial Development Dept., UP regarding increased rail economic development.

! On 10/21/02 at Pleasanton UP’s Industrial Development Department presented an
economic development forum to local government and private-sector businessmen regarding
increasing Northern California rail commerce and promoting rail service to more communities.

! UP’s CEO Dick Davidson has been quoted widely in the trade press saying that UP wants
a bigger share of the “I-5 Freight Corridor Pie.” This makes a hell of a lot more sense to me than the
resolution adopted by the Southern California Association of Governments to build “truck only”
freeway lanes!

! After deregulating the utilities, California’s Legislature was more than a little embarrassed
by the failure to build more power generation capability. We are now paying dearly for their lack of
foresight!  How will it look when Congress raises GVW to harmonize with NAFTA partners, lifts
the freeze on LCVs, and we see Mexican trucks Statewide moving California tonnage on our
highways? A little foresight by our Legislature would be a refreshing change.

! Eastern Washington State shippers and receivers are seeing restoration of intermodal
facilities, with the assistance of WASHDOT and Strategic Rail Finance Corporation. Washington
State ag enjoys a competitive advantage that Central California Coast ag lacks, and our commerce,
and our communities, suffer the adverse consequences.

! Stark County, Ohio’s new NEO-MODAL facility’s White Paper is available for our blue
print to follow. I’ve recommended it to local government and EDC’s.

! FRA’s person in charge told me after the Transportation Law Institute in Arlington last
November that most of the $3.5 billion Railroad Rehabilitation & Improvement Finance (RRIF)
program loan money (created by TEA-21) was sitting intact and unused at FRA waiting for
applicants. RRIF projects include intermodal facilities.

! RRIF projects with State government support are given priority under the RRIF regulations



published in the Federal Register on 7/6/00, and now found at 49 CFR §§260-et seq., which include
a $1.0 billion “set aside” for shortline railroad projects.

! Some benefits that you would see if we restore intermodal facilities in the Region:
1. Facilitate Commerce and Trade
2. Improve Transportation (Passenger and Freight)
3. Stimulate Local Economy
4. Create Local Jobs
5. Increase Local Capital Spending and Investment
6. Reduce Highway Maintenance Expenses
7. Reduce Air Pollution and Improve Air Quality
8. Reduce Highway Congestion (Divert Trailers & Containers to Rail Routes)
9. Improve Highway Safety and Reduce Accidents
10. Increase Local Government Tax Base
11. Create Transport Options for Growers, Packers & Shippers & Receivers
12. Improve Product Profitability During Truck Shortages
13. Reduce Border Crossing Delays for NAFTA Products Trade
14. Retain Affordable Housing by Reducing Traffic Impact Fees
15. Maintain Character and Environment of County
16. Preserve Agricultural Land and Small Farms
17. Reduce Fuel Consumption
18. Reduce Driver Fatigue-Related Accidents
19. More Responsive Management to Competitive Marketplace
20. Less Government, Less Taxes, and Therefore, Greater Competitive Success Rate and

Fewer Business Failures and Bankruptcies

Therefore, I am recommending that voters tell our leaders that motorists are no longer willing
to pay 100% of their own transportation costs, plus 99% of the transportation costs of the transit
systems’ riders’ costs. Instead, we must change our transportation policy, and we can start by
demanding our California Congressional delegation to include restoration of intermodal facilities
in California as part of TEA-21 reauthorization legislation. I believe that this should be our highest
transportation priority, and would produce the most benefits for the region’s residents.

Caveat viator!

Very truly yours,

JOSEPH P. THOMPSON
Member, Executive Committee, Debtor-Creditor-Bankruptcy Section Santa Clara County Bar Assn.
Member, Legislation Committee, Transportation Lawyers Assn.
Member, Association for Transportation Law, Logistics & Policy
Member, SBC Citizens Rail Advisory Committee
Candidate, American Society of Transportation & Logistics
Winner, AST&L’s Best Research Paper Award 1997



Past-President, Gilroy-Morgan Hill Bar Assn.





between San Jose and Morgan Hill, entitled, “El Camino Real 2000: A Transportation
Business and Logistics Perspective on the Proposed Widening of U.S. Highway 101.” 
I previously gave copies of these two papers to each Director of COG, and will you please
direct your staff to add them to these remarks for the formal record of these proceedings.
Additionally, as you know I wrote an extensive paper while serving on the SBC Citizens
Rail Advisory Committee, entitled, “INTERMODAL FACILITY for HOLLISTER BRANCH
LINE: A Private Sector, Sustainable, User-Fees Funded Transportation Solution for
the 21st Century.”

I respectfully request that you direct your staff to add that paper, too, to the formal
record of these proceedings.

3. Major Flaws to EIR for SBC’s 2001 RTP: I have identified 22 major flaws in the
EIR which justify your rejecting it, sending it back to TAC for revision, or else subjecting the
County to substantial litigation expenses by a likely challenge to it for violation of the
applicable law, e.g., California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Rather than approve a
defective EIR and RTP, I urge you to see that these flaws are eliminated by further revision
of the EIR and RTP.

1. The EIR is premised, like the RTP, on unstated assumptions, which are similar
to those I pointed out to COG’s Directors in my second reply to the COG’s consultants’
Caltrain extension working paper and my letter to you dated Feb. 20, 1999 (see copies in
materials I handed to you at the public hearing).

2. The EIR and RTP do not mention private sector transportation alternatives based
on presently-existing technology.

3. The EIR and RTP would impose an urban transit model on a rural, ag-based
economy.

4. The EIR and RTP presume tax and population bases which do not exist here to
support urban mass transit solutions based on taxpayer-funded public transit that history
has shown do not work in the long run.

5. The EIR and RTP make no mention of international law, i.e., North American Free
Trade Agreement (NAFTA) and its adverse consequences for SBC’s residents.

6. The EIR and RTP make no mention of the High Speed Rail Authority’s Bullet
Train, which is proposed to run through this County (either over Panoche Pass or Pacheco
Pass) and the tax burdens that it will impose on our residents.

7. The EIR and RTP make no mention of passenger stage corporations (PSC’s) or
transportation charter parties (TCP’s), which are authorized by the California Public Utilities
Code to perform for-hire carriage of people, nor does it mention private-sector shuttles.

Response to EIR for SBC’s 2001 RTP 2



8. The EIR and RTP make inadequate mention of the adverse effects that public-
sector transportation has on local small businesses, and the adverse effect it has on
affordable housing by imposition of additional “traffic impact fees” on house prices to
support public-sector transit.

9. The EIR and RTP fail to distinguish between transportation infrastructure and
transportation business operating on the infrastructure, i.e., for-hire carriage of property
and people.

10. The EIR and RTP fail to mention restoration of intermodal facilities for this
Region has recommended by Transportation Secretary Mineta, the Director of Caltrans
Highway Programs, as I recommended to the California Transportation Commission (with
positive response by the CTC’s Chairman) at the CTC’s meeting in December 2001 at the
PUC in San Francisco.

11. The EIR and RTP propose an unfeasible transportation alternative in high-
density apartments and condominiums (4,000 units in ten years) built around two railroad
stations on the Hollister Branch Line north of Hollister, and fails to mention the cost of $20-
$40 million that the taxpayers would be forced to absorb to refurbish the track to
passenger-carrying condition, nor does it mention the massive annual operating subsidies
required to operate the passenger service.

12. The EIR and RTP make no mention of viable alternatives available by reliance
upon members of the American Shortline Railroad Association.

13. The EIR and RTP make no mention of the decision of the Amtrak Review
Council to liquidate Amtrak, and the remarks of Senator John McCain of Arizona who said
that Amtrak is a failed experiment, and that Caltrain is equally flawed as Amtrak, and
doomed as is all socialist transportation in the long-run.

14. The EIR and RTP make no mention of the massive financial losses sustained
each year by SBC’s County Transit, and fails to disclose that in Year 1999-2000 County
Express provided heavily-subsidized passenger service for only 101.6 people/day, nor
does it reveal the fully-amortized cost of such public-sector transit, or that it would be
cheaper to buy ever rider their own automobile, and that the government monopoly is anti-
competitive, discriminatory, and prone to massive waste, especially if the operation is
unionized (like BART, VTA, etc.). It does not disclose that the riders enjoy nearly free (99%
fully-amortized costs paid by taxpayers, not fares) rides while forcing motorists to pay for
all of their own transportation expenses, too.

15. The EIR and RTP make no mention of the $24 billion losses sustained by
Amtrak, nor reveals the losses sustained by Caltrain (Mercury News’ Mr. Roadshow Gary
Richards reported that only 11% of operating costs for Caltrain are paid for by fares--the
percentage would be much lower of capital costs were included), yet it irrationally contains
an alternative transportation plan to extend Caltrain to this relatively poor agricultural

Response to EIR for SBC’s 2001 RTP 3



County.

16. There is no mention of the $20-$40 million estimated cost to refurbish the UP’s
Hollister Branch Line being imposed on taxpayers and given to the 154th largest
corporation in America, which would be a disgraceful form of corporate welfare that would
bankrupt every homeowner and small business owner in the County.

17. There is inadequate discussion of freight movement in SBC and on the Central
California Coast Region, which is unacceptable to the public because axle weight is the
single largest factor in road maintenance expenses.

18. There is no mention of the adverse effects from the federal government’s
decision to allow entry of Mexican trucks onto our highways, and US101 is a “NAFTA
route” under TEA-21. Those big rigs from Mexico will use Highways 25 and 156 to travel
between the Salinas and San Joaquin Valleys, right through our County.

19.  There is no mention of the U.S. Supreme Court’s decisions supporting the
federal governments preemption of commerce on our highways, e.g., (1) NAFTA-
harmonized gross vehicle weights (GVW), and (2) long combination vehicles (LCVs), three
27-ft. trailers, or two 53-ft. trailers, pulled by one tractor.

20. There is no mention of the increase of GVW to Canadian or Mexican GVW,
which is likely when TEA-21 is reauthorized (Traffic World is already reporting on “TEA-
3"), effective in three years from now, and which will pulverize the inadequate new concrete
being poured on the new lanes of US 101 north of Morgan Hill.

21. There is no mention of the adverse effects on ag-related business in the County
or Region and what introduction of Mexican trucks with NAFTA-harmonized GVW and
LCVs will have on local truckers, who will be driven into bankruptcy.

22. There is more attention given to endangered species of flora and fauna than to
the adverse consequences for the human beings, e.g., SBC’s gets only 11 cents back from
Sacramento, similar to all rural counties, whose money is diverted to LA, SF, San Jose,
Oakland, and other urban areas where their transit riders get about $500,000 annual
subsidies courtesy of the rural counties’ taxpayers.

When I get a chance I will send you the additional minor flaws that I see in the EIR
and RTP, e.g., “without bankrupting the family” should read “without bankrupting all the
families in the County” (page 4 of RTP).

Very truly yours,

JOSEPH P. THOMPSON
cc: COG Board of Directors

Response to EIR for SBC’s 2001 RTP 4



cc: Citizens Rail Advisory Committee
cc: SBC Board of Supervisors

Response to EIR for SBC’s 2001 RTP 5





of deciding whether or not to increase tax burdens on the County’s taxpayers is despicable, and
illegal. The Brown Act requires COG to make a full disclosure of the items to be discussed on the
agendas, but COG’s practice has been, and still is on your watch, to conceal the truth about the
content of agenda items. For example, item #5 (consent) contained a tax increase of more than
$31,000 to be imposed on SBC’s taxpayers, but the description of the item on your agenda, over
which you preside as Chairman, did not disclose this. Concealment of the truth is the opposite of
transparency in government, and shows you to be condoning and tolerating and encouraging the
unelected COG staff to deprive the taxpayers of knowledge that the law requires be given. 

Moreover, Item #5, which you pulled even after having given notice, such as it was, that it
would be considered, and even after I had submitted a “public comment” request, shows you what
hypocrites you are. While claiming to be prudent with our tax dollars, you would have the taxpayers’
money subsidies to County Transit boondoggle increased by more than $31,000 even though you
loose millions of our tax dollars operating your bus boondoggle at the present level of operating.
Since you don’t have remunerative fares (fares that cover your costs), each time you increase
“ridership” you increase losses for taxpayers, who are paying about 99% of the total costs of County
Transit and JDA riders’ rides. 

You are living in a fools paradise of deception, trying to deceive the taxpayers, but failing
in that too.

You don’t even know basics things about transportation, and yet you rely on untrained,
unprofessional staff advice. For example, while the Court of Appeal in this Sixth District has held
that property owners are responsible for sidewalk maintenance, not municipalities, you discuss
spending tax dollars to make sidewalk repairs. Your ignorance hurts us every time you preside at
COG. Worse, your arrogance proves that you are unworthy to govern us. The federal “stimulus”
money that has been wasted on more transit buses is like you pouring salt in taxpayers’ wounds.
Those buses sit idle in the yard off Southside Road, or are out polluting the air moving a few
passengers per hour while racking-up huge operating costs. But you refuse to do anything about it.
COG Directors voted to privatize transit, but you refuse to do it. COG Directors voted to reduce
waste of tax money on County Transit, but you refuse to do it. Instead, you kow-tow to COG staff
recommendations, which are merely turf protection at the expense of taxpayers. 

We cannot tolerate your conduct you must be removed from office, and COG terminated
ASAP to stem the hemorraghing of our tax dollars on your boondoggle, unconstitutional, illegal
COG. Until you are removed from office, may God have mercy on your soul for the suffering that
you have, and are causing us. Caveat Viator!

Very truly yours,
JOSEPH P. THOMPSON

cc: COG Board of Directors
cc: SBC Board of Supervisors
cc: SBC GPU Citizens Advisory Committee

Response to COG’s Proposed 2009 Revision to County’s Regional Transportation Plan–A
Sick Plan being made worse by the Radical Socialists that our Leaders Tolerate. Another
Plea for Reform, or ouster of COG’s Directors. 2



COG’s Lies and Deceit to the People Just Like the Soviet Union’s Planners
[Here’s an Example You Can Find Many Others When You Ignore the Lies]

This goes double for COG’s 20-year RTP

2005 San Benito County Regional Transportation Plan Baloney & B.S. from COG
Big Brother DoubleSpeak: You Don’t Have Economic Vitality with Socialism Catastrophic

Disaster is What You get from COG’s Socialism-Communism

Proposed Changes from 2001 RTP

General Goals and Policies

Goal 1 To support the economic vitality of the region, especially by enabling global
competitiveness, productivity, and efficiency.  San Benito County jurisdictions:

Policy 1.1 Shall promote improvements in all modes of transportation to respond to growing
demand for commuter and commodity travel. They shall give funding priority to
major road improvements that address critical safety concerns and provide
increased capacity for commuter and commodity travel.  They shall also give
funding priority to commuter railtransit improvements that facilitate movement
between Hollister and the San Francisco Bay Area.

Goal 2 To increase the safety and security of the transportation system for motorized and non-
motorized users.  San Benito County jurisdictions:

Policy 2.1 (In conjunction with the safety improvements specified in Policy I.1.A1.1 above)
shall give next funding priority to minor road improvements that affect the safety
of the greatest number of users and projects that increase safety for school children
or the elderly.

Policy 2.2 Shall ensure that the integrity of inter-regional transportation facilities, including
road, rail, and aviation facilities, can be maintained during and after major natural
disasters.

Goal 3 To increase the accessibility and mobility options available to people and freight.  San
Benito County jurisdictions:

Policy 3.1 Shall promote alternative modes of transportation, including rail and bus transit,
rail freight, and pedestrian and bicyclist travel.

Policy 3.2 Shall ensure that pedestrian and public transit facilities are accessible to all
persons, regardless of physical capabilities.

3Evaluation of 2001 RTP Policy Section Page 3 of 8



Goal 4 To protect and enhance the environment, promote energy conservation, and improve quality
of life.  San Benito County jurisdictions:

Policy 4.1 Shall develop a street and highway system that promotes compact urban
development and preserves prime agricultural land.

Policy 4.2 Shall design transportation improvements to conserve protected habitats and
species.

Policy 4.3 Shall operate transportation facilities in a way that provides a high level of air
quality and energy efficiency.

Policy 4.4 Shall design urban streets and public transit systems to protect residential and
business districts from degradation due to large traffic volumes and or speeding
vehicles.

Goal 5 To enhance the integration and connectivity of the transportation system, across and
between modes, for people and freight.  San Benito County jurisdictions:

Policy 5.1 Shall construct an intermodal station facility connecting the future commuter rail
system to bus transit systems, pedestrian and bicycle facilities, and park-and-ride
lots.

Policy 5.2 Shall accommodate connections between truck and/or rail freight as demand
presents itself.

Policy 5.3 Shall promote park-and-ride lots and bicycle parking facilities at key locations to
facilitate ridesharing and public transit use. 

Goal 6 To promote efficient system management and operation.  San Benito County jurisdictions:

Policy 6.1 Shall promote and incorporate intelligent transportation system (ITS) technology
into the regional transportation improvement program as new systems become
available.

Policy 6.2 Shall actively promote ridesharing and public transit to increase the average
persons per vehicle during peak hour periods.

Goal 7 To emphasize the preservationMaintenance of the existing transportation system shall be a
priority.  San Benito County jurisdictions:

Policy 7.1 Shall conduct regular maintenance of all transportation facilities to forestall
premature degradation of such facilities.

Policy 7.2 Shall work to secure the Hollister Branch Rail Line for use as a commuter rail
and/or freight rail facility.

4Evaluation of 2001 RTP Policy Section Page 4 of 8



Streets and Highways

Goal 8 To construct and maintain a street and highway system that is safe, accommodates well-
managed demand from existing and future development, and is well maintained.  San Benito
County jurisdictions:

Policy 8.1 Shall give priority, among all street and highway projects, to the improvement of
roadways and intersections that experience the worst safety records.  The next
highest priority shall be given to projects that reduce weekday congestion and that
serve to maintain the existing roadway system.

Policy 8.2 Shall give priority, among all street and highway maintenance projects, to
maintenance projects that improve safety for the greatest number of persons and to
maintenance projects required for fire and police equipment to respond quickly and
safely to emergencies throughout the county.

Goal 9 To design, construct, and maintain the integrity of streets and highways to serve their
designated purpose and be compatible with the land use to which they are adjacent.  San
Benito County jurisdictions: 

Policy 9.1 Shall construct (or cause to be constructed if private), roads, highways, and
selected urban arterial streets for regional or interregional travel.  Such facilities
shall be designed to the minimum standard of the local jurisdiction within which
they are located.  Such standards shall emphasize safe and efficient automobile,
motorcycle, truck, and transit operation.  Where appropriate, the jurisdiction shall
accommodate the safe movement of agricultural equipment on the facility.

Policy 9.2 Shall construct (or cause to be constructed if private), urban collector and local
streets primarily for intra-city travel.  Such facilities shall be designed to the
minimum standard of the local jurisdiction within which they are located.  Such
standards shall accommodate vehicular travel but shall emphasize safe and efficient
pedestrian and bicycle travel.

Policy 9.3 Shall construct (or cause to be constructed, if private), streets in downtown areas
primarily to serve business activity.  Such facilities shall be designed to the
minimum standard of the local jurisdiction within which they are located.  Such
standards shall include wide sidewalks and encourage diagonal parking where
feasible to increase the number of parking spaces close to businesses and to
facilitate the calming of traffic on major downtown streets.

Goal 10 ToNew transportation facilities shall be planned to promote compact urban development,
prevent urban sprawl, and prevent the premature conversion of prime farmland caused by
new transportation facilities.  San Benito County jurisdictions:

Policy 10.1 Shall provide transportation incentives to developers of compact, infill
development in existing urbanized areas to minimize the premature construction of
new streets and highways.

5Evaluation of 2001 RTP Policy Section Page 5 of 8



Policy 10.2 Shall locate and design new transportation facilities to minimize the conversion of
prime agricultural land outside existing urban/rural boundaries.

Goal 11 To promote the development of "livable" streets in urbanized areas that accommodates
multiple modes of transportation.  San Benito County jurisdictions: 

Policy 11.1 Shall include bike lanes on arterial and collector streets where feasible, and
sidewalks on all streets in developed areas.  They should also require street trees
designed to form canopies over streets and green strips between sidewalks and
streets in new development.

Policy 11.2 Shall protect urban streets from through traffic by constructing bypass routes
around Hollister and San Juan Bautista.

Policy 11.3 Shall designate appropriate routes for large trucks and establish ordinances that
prohibit large trucks from traveling on non-designated streets.

Policy 11.4 Shall adopt alternative street standards, consistent with standards for fire protection
that accommodate traffic-calming measures for existing urban streets.  Where
appropriate, jurisdictions should install traffic-calming devises to protect local
residential streets from speeding traffic.

Rail and Bus Transit

Goal 12 To provide an alternative mode of transportation to commuters traveling from San Benito
County to Santa Clara County.  San Benito County jurisdictions: 

Policy 12.1 Shall give priority, among all transit operations, to intercity commuter rail service
and/or improved express bus service connecting Hollister with Gilroy.  The next
priority shall be the provision of intra-city bus service in Hollister.

Goal 13 To provide a transportation system that is responsive to the needs of the elderly, disabled,
and transit dependent.  San Benito County jurisdictions: 

Policy 13.1 Shall continue to provide on-demand general public and paratransit services in
Northern San Benito County (Dial-A-Ride Service Areas A and B).

Policy 13.2 Shall manage the demand for, and cost of, transit services by accommodating the
development of housing for the elderly and disabled in existing urban areas close to
stores and health services.

Goal 14 To promote transit-oriented development and encourage the use of public transportation to
reduce energy consumption and congestion.  San Benito County jurisdictions: 

Policy 14.1 Shall provide incentives to developers whogive priority to development projects
that construct residential and commercial projects in proximity to existing and
planned rail and bus transit stations.  Jurisdictions shall review these projects and

6Evaluation of 2001 RTP Policy Section Page 6 of 8



possibly require the provision of transit facilities in conjunction with and financed
by the developer.

Policy 14.2 Shall encourage automobile and bicycle parking facilities at major rail and bus
transit stations.

Non-Motorized (Pedestrian and Bicycle) Travel

Goal 15 To encourage pedestrian and bicycle travel within urbanized areas.  San Benito County
jurisdictions: 

Policy 15.1 Shall require bicycle-parking facilities at major rail and bus transit stations and in
downtown business districts.

Policy 15.2 Shall ensure that urban streets are safe for bicyclists through regular cleaning and
maintenance.

Policy 15.3 Shall ensure that existing sidewalks are safe, free of obstruction, and accessible to
all persons.

Policy 15.4 Shall plan, design, and construct bicycle facilities in conformance with state
standards, as outlined in “Planning and Design Criteria for Bikeways in California”
(Caltrans).

Policy 15.5 Shall construct pedestrian walkways in high-density areas that currently lack
adequate pedestrian facilities.

Goal 16 To facilitate pedestrian and bicycle travel within new development and between new
development and existing urban areas.  San Benito County jurisdictions: 

Policy 16.1 Shall require sidewalk facilities in all new development in or adjacent to urban
areas.  Such facilities shall include sidewalks on both sides of the street that are a
minimum five (5) feet wide, if separated from the street by a planter strip, or six (6)
feet wide if located next to the curb.

Policy 16.2 Shall require all new multi-family residential and large commercial development to
provide easily identified pedestrian facilities connecting all parts of the
development and providing access through parking areas and across driveways.

Policy 16.3 Shall design and construct all new bridge structures with sufficient width to
accommodate pedestrians and bicyclists. 

Goal 17 To create a new pedestrian and bicyclist facility connecting urban areas with major
recreational areas.  San Benito County jurisdictions: 

Policy 17.1 Shall plan and construct a combined pedestrian and bicycle path along the San
Benito River from San Juan Bautista to the Pinnacles National Monument.

7Evaluation of 2001 RTP Policy Section Page 7 of 8



Goal 18 To promote pedestrian and bicycle safety.  San Benito County jurisdictions: 

Policy 18.1 Shall encourage bicycle rider training programs for school children in San Benito
County.

Policy 18.2 Shall work with school districts to identify and make improvements as necessary to
provide safe routes to school.

Aviation

Goal 19 To promote a safe and efficient air transportation system that serves general aviation and air
commerce needs.  San Benito County jurisdictions: 

Policy 19.1 (City of Hollister and County of San Benito) shall protect airport operations at
Hollister Municipal Airport and Frazier Lake Airpark from incompatible land uses
and maintain the facilities for general aviation and airfreight purposes.

Policy 19.2 (City of Hollister and County of San Benito) shall plan for facility expansions at
Hollister Municipal Airport, including additional hangar space as demand presents
itself, a runway expansion to 7,000 feet, and Instrument Landing System (ILS).

Policy 19.3 (City of Hollister and County of San Benito) shall plan for new industrial uses in
designated areas of the airport property as demand for space presents itself.

Policy 19.4 Shall support the continued operation of a general aviation airport at Frazer Lake
Air Park.Frazier Lake Airpark.

Commodity Movement

Goal 20 To facilitate the safe and efficient movement of commodities in ways that are compatible
with existing and planned land uses.  San Benito County jurisdictions: 

Policy 20.1 Shall accommodate large truck traffic on designated routes throughout San Benito
County.

Policy 20.2 Shall, where viable alternatives exist, direct large truck traffic away from narrow
rural roads, residential districts, and pedestrian-oriented streets in downtown
business districts.

Policy 20.3 Shall accommodate the development of connections between truck and rail
transportation facilities as demand for such intermodal facilities presents itself.

Special Events

Goal 21 To plan for efficient and safe movement of visitors and residents during special events.  San
Benito County jurisdictions: 

8Evaluation of 2001 RTP Policy Section Page 8 of 8



Shall work with special event sponsors to ensure that adequate provisions are made for heavy
traffic and parking demand during special events.

OBJECTIVES AND PERFORMANCE MEASURES

The Council of San Benito County Governments has adopted short- and long-term objectives that
are designed to guide the agency’s work program until the next update of the Regional
Transportation Plan.  Also, in accordance with the new Regional Transportation Guidelines, the
Council of San Benito County Governments has also adopted performance measures by which
the Regional Transportation Improvement Plan will be judged during adoption of that document.

Short-Term Objectives (by 2010)

Objective S.1 To increase the capacity of the street and highway system to accommodate
projected short-term growth.

Objective S.2 To serve 350 commuter round trips per weekday of service with commuter rail and
express bus service connecting Hollister to Gilroy.

Objective S.3 To reduce the rate of fatal vehicular accidents throughout San Benito County

Objective S.4 To develop a recreational trail for pedestrians and bicyclists along the San Benito
River from San Juan Bautista to Hollister.

Objective S.5 To develop a transportation emergency preparedness and response plan that
identifies emergency transportation systems, including emergency corridors and
reliever routes.

Objective S.6 To convert the old Highway 25 corridor in Hollister from use as a state highway to
use as a business-oriented main street that includes increased parking, pedestrian,
and bicyclist opportunities.

Objective S.7 To develop a plan for commodities transportation that designates appropriate routes
for large trucks throughout San Benito County and protects rural roads and
residential and downtown business districts from degradation caused by large
trucks.

Objective S.8 To increase rideshare and intra-county transit operations by 10 percent over current
(2000) levels.

Objective S.9 To develop and initiate implementation of a comprehensive bike and pedestrian
plan.

Objective S.10 To improve Hollister Municipal Airport operations by lengthening the main
runway, installing an Instrument Landing System, and constructing additional
hangars for general aviation use.

9Evaluation of 2001 RTP Policy Section Page 9 of 8



Long-Term Objectives (by 2020)

Objective L.1 To increase the capacity of the street and highway system to accommodate
projected long-term growth.

Objective L.2 To serve 1,000 commuter round trips per weekday of service with commuter rail
and express bus service connecting Hollister to Gilroy; also, to begin plans to
electrify the commuter rail corridor between Hollister and Gilroy.

Objective L.3 To reduce the rate of fatal vehicular accidents throughout San Benito County.

Objective L.4 To extend the recreational trail for pedestrians and bicyclists along the San Benito
River from Hollister to the Pinnacles National Monument.

Objective L.5 To increase rideshare and intra-county transit operations by 10 percent over (2010)
levels.

Performance Measures

Is the proposed Regional Transportation Improvement Plan superior to alternative plans in the
following ways?

Performance
Measure No.

Performance Measure Criteria Measurement

Measure 1 Does the RTIP improve mobility and accessibility for
persons traveling in San Benito County by investing in
improvements that allow travelers to reach their
destination with relative ease and within a reasonable
time?

Travel time for commuters
on Routes 25 and 156

Measure 2 Does the RTIP improve safety and security by investing
in street and highway facilities with the highest rates of
mortality?

Rate of fatal accidents on
Routes 25 and 156

Measure 3 Does the RTIP improve transportation system choices by
investing in improvements to non-automobile modes of
travel?

Transit level of service,
including commuter rail;
number of bike lane miles

10Evaluation of 2001 RTP Policy Section Page 10 of 8







Union City $.2 $1.1 $1.3 15
Vallejo $2.8 $3.4 $6.2 45
W. Contra Costa $.2 $1.3 $1.5 13
TOTAL $298.5 $678.5 $977 30
Source: Metropolitan Transportation Commission, Transactions, Feb. 1995, p. 4.

Mr. Adam Breen, Editor
The Freelance
December 9, 1998
page 2

The governments’ own numbers reveal that the taxpayers are paying an average of 70% of
the cost of transit riders’ rides. Actually, if you used generally accepted accounting principles
(“GAAP”), the fully-amortized costs (including capital, etc.), would be substantially greater. Thus,
the operating ratios would be correspondingly less. These public sector fiascoes are so embarrassing,
however, that our elected leaders are ashamed to reveal the true losses, so they have their accountants
prepare their reports to the public without applying GAAP. These data explain where our leaders are
diverting our tax dollars that could be used to improve our highways. In other words, highway deaths
and injuries are attributable, at least in part, to the conscious decisions of our leaders to use the
transportation taxes for non-highway purposes.

So, “self-help” counties are, in reality, a misnomer, or possibly, a subterfuge by the transit
advocates who do not want the homeowners and small business owners and senior citizens to know
that self-reliance is not what they practice, although they preach it to others. By unrestrained
spending of O.P.M. (“Other Peoples’ Money”), transportation taxes are diverted to insolvent, Soviet-
style public transit, while the taxpayers are blamed for causing unsafe, deteriorating highways. 

If COG disclosed to the voters their fiscal results of operating their public-sector operations,
then the homeowners would have a better understanding of why house prices are pushed to
unaffordable levels by “traffic impact fees.” Small business owners would better understand why the
small business failure rate is so high. Senior citizens would have a deeper understanding of why
personal bankruptcies are sky-rocketing. Taxpayers would know why Tax Freedom Day comes later
each year. Will COG tell us how much we lose each time a government-operated bus goes out? 
What percentage of the public is served by such operations? Why do the homeowners and small
business owners and senior citizens have to pay for their own transportation, and most of the cost
of the riders of public transit? What ever happened to “self-help”?
  

Very truly yours,

JOSEPH P. THOMPSON





light of the disastrous failure of public-sector transit, both Nationally, and here in California, we
must learn from the lessons of the previous century, and return to America’s free-enterprise roots.
The COG Directors must establish principles, priorities, and guidelines to enable the transition, and
to ultimately achieve the goal.

To this end I recommend that the COG Directors adopt a policy resolution placing free-
enterprise transport solutions at the highest priority for the good of all the present and future
residents of our County. An example of such a resolution is the one that I offered to RAC’s members
(see copy enclosed). Opponents, subsidy recipients, trough feeders, etc., will raise countless
objections, but COG’s Directors will doom their own effort to failure unless they establish sound,
sustainable policy decisions to guide SBC to the accomplishment of COG’s Directors’ goal.

Additionally, the intial starting point, public vs. private, must be kept uppermost in the mind
of COG’s Directors, their agents, servants, employees, and the public. Instead of misleading ads
proclaiming falsehoods like COG’s past press releases, e.g., County Transit is “cost-efficient,” I
believe that COG should promote truth in transportation. An example of the fundamental distinction
in the private-public dichotomy is my ALLFREE Lesson #1. 

If COG’s Directors are serious about sound, sustainable transport for our County, then they
must establish clearly defined policy so that everyone will realize where they are leading us.
Anything less than clear, decisive leadership is bound to play into the hands of the budget-deficit
causing socialists, who if unchecked will ruin our County for future generations. Thank you and
caveat viator!

Respectfully yours,

cc: COG Directors JOSEPH P. THOMPSON                 
cc: SBC County Supervisors
cc: Hollister City Council members
Encl.

Cast Off Dysfunctional Transport Policy and 
Return to America’s Free-Enterprise Roots                                     2







Past-President, Gilroy-Morgan Hill Bar Assn.





project list and planning goals.

Recommendations:
1. Resolution Objections: 
As I have said before, there are both procedural and substantive errors in COG’s RTP, and

they become obvious, and compounded, by COG’s Directors’ adoption of Resolution No. 04-06.
Procedurally, formulation of these RTP project goals was done in violation of the due process and
equal protection guarantees of the State and federal constitutions. COG’s Directors furnished and
invited “free” County Transit rides to COG’s special meetings, thereby stuffing the chambers where
COG’s Directors conducted their hearings with subsidy recipients. At no time did COG’s Directors
fulfill their obligation to the subsidy payers to give equal treatment. Favoring one class of citizens
above other classes of citizens is contrary to American democracy, and violates fundamental tenets
of our State and federal constitutions. Additionally, Resolution No. 04-06 contains a mistake where
it states that AMBAG is the metropolitan planning organization for SBC. AMBAG is regional
metropolitan planning organization for the Monterey Bay Area, just as MTC is the regional
metropolitan planning organization for the nine Bay Area Counties. As you know, COG is the
metropolitan planning organization for SBC.

Substantively, COG’s RTP project list and planning goals reflects COG’s dysfunctional
transport policy. For example, it states as a goal increased County Transit, which is detrimental to
SBC and undermines private-sector, free enterprise transport in SBC. The RTP project list shows
that SBC is going to waste money on bike paths nobody uses, while our #1 industry and #1
employer, ag, is afforded no benefits. Not a single mention of restoration of intermodal facilities, nor
construction of a rail team track where ag can load and unload rail cars is mentioned. For the reasons
that I have repeatedly stated to you, both in person during your meetings, and in numerous letters,
this is a policy mistake that inflicts much suffering, far more suffering than the few benefits that
public-sector transit brings to our County. For these reasons I hereby object to your formal action
last night adopting Resolution No. 04-06. Caveat viator!

Respectfully yours,

cc: COG Directors JOSEPH P. THOMPSON                 
cc: SBC County Supervisors
Encl. [Letters]

COG Resolution No. 04–06: Compounding COG’s Policy Errors: Wasteful COG Public-
Transit Undermining Transport Safety & Efficiency; Anti-Business Ramifications for SBC2



Is there a solution to the environment vs. econ dev battle that SBC can utilize in its General
Plan Revision?    
! Yes, just follow the guidance given us by the California Court of Appeals:

The decision is entitled Sierra Club v. County of Napa (Berringer Wine Estates, real
party in interest).

I have given you a copy, and also all the SBCBOS.
The key ingredient I read in the Court’s decision is that Napa County utilizes rail-oriented

economic development, i.e., California Northern Railroad, for movement of tonnage into and out
of the Napa Valley, thereby diverting that tonnage from highways to rail. Thus, Napa business
can show that they are environmentally sensitive, and smart, by utilizing the environmentally-
friendly rail option to move their freight.

So, if we lose the Hollister Branch Line, we lose the keystone of resolving the struggle
between environmental faction and econ dev faction in SBC.

Thus, what can we do to preserve the Hollister Branch Line for future generations? Call
UPRR now.

Caveat Viator.
Joseph P. Thompson, Esq.
(408) 848-5506
Member, COG’s Citizens Rail Advisory Committee
Former member, COG’s Transit Task Force
Founder, SBC Small Business Incubator
Past-President, Gilroy-Morgan Hill Bar Assn.







theirs. Caveat Viator!

Sincerely yours,
JOSEPH P. THOMPSON, ESQ.

Member, Transportation Lawyers Association
Member, Association for Transportation Law, Logistics & Policy
Member, Citizens for Reliable & Safe Highways
Member, COG’s Citizens Rail Advisory Committee
Candidate, American Society of Transportation & Logistics
Past-President, Gilroy-Morgan Hill Bar Assn.





Member, Transportation Lawyers Association
Member, Association for Transportation Law, Logistics & Policy
Member, Citizens for Reliable & Safe Highways
Member, COG’s Citizens Rail Advisory Committee
Candidate, American Society of Transportation & Logistics
President, Gilroy-Morgan Hill Bar Assn.

??? 
[You could say at the bottom: 
“The author has a degree is history, and a doctorate in law, and has been doing post-doctoral
study of transport law and policy at Transportation Research Board, Georgetown University,
Library of Congress, and Norman Y. Mineta International Institute for Surface Transportation
Policy Studies at SJSU. He’s a member of COG’s Citizens Rail Advisory Committee, and a
charter member of COG’s Citizens Transit Task Force. He has 44 years of transport industry
experience including 27 years representing carriers and their customers before State and federal
courts and agencies.”]





Past-President, Gilroy-Morgan Hill Bar Assn.



From: Eva Kelly
To: Carey Stone
Cc: David Early; Ambur Cameron; Christine Hopper
Subject: FW: Draft GP questions
Date: Tuesday, April 18, 2023 8:46:36 AM
Attachments: image001.png

image001.png

Good morning Carey,
 
Please see the comment below and our response regarding the General Plan.
 
Best,
Eva
 

Get Involved In Community Planning!
General Plan Update
Hollister2040.org|generalplan@hollister.ca.gov
 
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPT. REGULAR PUBLIC HOURS
Monday - Thursday      8:30a - 12:00p, 1:00p - 4:30p
Friday - Sunday            CLOSED
 
ALL Planning Applications require an appointment with a City Planner for submittal.
 
From: Alexander Sywak  
Sent: Monday, April 17, 2023 4:11 PM
To: Planning Dept <planning@hollister.ca.gov>
Cc: GeneralPlan <generalplan@hollister.ca.gov>; Christine Hopper
<christine.hopper@hollister.ca.gov>; David Mirrione <david.mirrione@hollister.ca.gov>; Ingrid
Sywak 
Subject: Re: Draft GP questions
 
Thx.  Appreciate the quick response.
 
On Mon, Apr 17, 2023 at 4:06 PM Planning Dept <planning@hollister.ca.gov> wrote:

Good afternoon Mr. Sywak,
 
Please see the answers to your questions below in blue. Thank you for your participation in
reviewing the City of Hollister’s Draft 2040 General Plan Update. We look forward to receiving
your additional comments.
 



Kind regards,
 
Ambur Cameron, Senior Planner

Get Involved In Community Planning!
General Plan Update Hollister2040.org|generalplan@hollister.ca.gov
 
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPT. REGULAR PUBLIC HOURS
Monday – Thursday       8:30a - 12:00p, 1:00p - 4:30p
Friday – Sunday              CLOSED
 
ALL Planning Applications require an appointment with a City Planner for submittal.
 
From: Alexander Sywak  
Sent: Monday, April 17, 2023 11:09 AM
To: GeneralPlan <generalplan@hollister.ca.gov>
Cc: Planning Dept <planning@hollister.ca.gov>; Christine Hopper
<christine.hopper@hollister.ca.gov>; David Mirrione <david.mirrione@hollister.ca.gov>; Ingrid
Sywak 
Subject: Draft GP questions
 
Dear Planning Personnel,
 
After reading the Hollister GP 2040 Public Review Draft, we want to make sure we are
correctly interpreting the color coding of densities depicted in Figure LU-2 Land Use Map.
 
In the Meridian Extension area, there are 3 designations:
 

1)      Are the parcels colored as Arrow #1 = RESIDENTIAL ESTATE (0.2 TO 1
UNIT/GROSS ACRE)?

Correct. Residential Estate (Maximum Permitted Intensity: 0.2 to 1 du/ac).

 

2)    Are the parcels colored as Arrow #2 = GENERAL COMMERCIAL?

      Correct. General Commercial (Maximum Permitted Intensity: 2.0 FAR).
 

    



3) Are the parcels colored as Arrow #3 (along Barnes Lane) = LOW DENSITY
RESIDENTIAL (6 TO 10 UNITS/GROSS ACRE)?

      Correct. Low Density Residential (Maximum Permitted Intensity: 6 to 10
du/ac).

 

For parcels in the Glenmore Drive/Powell Street area, are the parcels colored by
Arrow #4 = MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (11 TO 29 UNITS/GROSS ACRE) or
HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (30 TO 65 UNITS/GROSS ACRE)?

High Density Residential  (Maximum Permitted Intensity: 30 to 65 du/ac).
 
 

Once the above densities are confirmed, we have additional comments that we intend to
forward.
 
Looking forward to your response.
 
Regards,
 
Ingrid and Alex Sywak 



































































































































From: Jim+Cindy Boyer
To: GeneralPlan
Subject: plans for the vacant parcel behind R.O.Hardin
Date: Monday, May 8, 2023 10:41:34 AM

Dear Ms. Hopper,

I am a resident on B Street and I am writing to object to the plans for
increasing the density of the 8.25 acre vacant parcel at the west end of
Glenmore Drive. I am concerned about the amount of traffic it would put
in the neighborhood. Even on B Street we have a lot of traffic coming
from the west and headed to the high school or beyond. I can just
imagine how Glenmore Drive and Vali Way would be affected with dense
traffic from new residents living in that area if the units per acre was
increased.

I would strongly urge you and the City of Hollister to keep the current
density of 8 units per acre for that neighborhood. Surely there are
other areas in Hollister where a high density neighborhood could be
constructed with better allowance for traffic flow.

Sincerely,

Cindy Boyer



From: Pat Williams
To: GeneralPlan
Subject: general plan update
Date: Monday, May 8, 2023 9:54:01 AM

5.8.2023
 
Christy Hopper
City of Hollister
 
I have been informed  that the City of Hollister is updating its General Plan.
The proposal is to increase the current density for the 8.25 acre vacant parcel at the
West end of Glenmore Drive from 8 units/acre to a maximum of 60 units/gross acre.
This is bad enough.
BUT…the enactment ordinance to increase the density up to 99 units/gross acre is worse.
Please do what you can to keep the current density to 8 units/acre.
Thank you,
Patrick Williams
Sharon Williams

Hollister,  CA  95023





 



From: Ambur Cameron
To: Carey Stone; David Early
Cc: Eva Kelly; Christine Hopper
Subject: FW: Comments on the April 2023 draft General Plan Update - Proposed Minimum Density for Mixed Use Zoning

Districts
Date: Monday, May 15, 2023 1:04:43 PM
Attachments: HollisterPolicyOptionsMemo 30521.pdf

PolicyOpt AppendixC 30521.pdf

Good afternoon Carey & David,
 
Please see Mr. Shahinian’s email below regarding the City of Hollister’s Draft 2040 General Plan
Update.
 
Thank you,
 
Ambur

Get Involved In Community Planning!
General Plan Update Hollister2040.org|generalplan@hollister.ca.gov
 
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPT. REGULAR PUBLIC HOURS
Monday – Thursday       8:30a - 12:00p, 1:00p - 4:30p
Friday – Sunday              CLOSED
 
ALL Planning Applications require an appointment with a City Planner for submittal.
 
From: Lee Shahinian  
Sent: Monday, May 15, 2023 11:56 AM
To: GeneralPlan <generalplan@hollister.ca.gov>
Cc: Eva Kelly <eva.kelly@hollister.ca.gov>
Subject: Comments on the April 2023 draft General Plan Update - Proposed Minimum Density for
Mixed Use Zoning Districts
 
Good morning,
 
My family owns the 4.65 acres in downtown Hollister on which Republic Urban Properties (RUP) is proposing a
mixed-use development.  On behalf of the Shahinian family, I would like to voice our strong support for this project
under consideration by the City of Hollister.  
 
During the 35 years that we have owned this land in downtown Hollister, many buyers have approached us, but
typically they were only interested in developing a corner lot for fast food.  Our site has remained vacant along the
City’s major downtown corridor for far too long.  Republic’s high-density infill project, including live-work units
along San Felipe, appears to be aligned with the City’s housing requirements and their desire to keep Hollister
residents in Hollister. 
 



Reviewing the April 2023 General Plan 2040 draft, my family and RUP were pleased to see the mixed-use zoning
for our property.  However, the required minimum of 30 du/acre would render RUP’s proposed project non-
conforming.  From the outset, RUP has designed their high-density mixed-use infill project for our property to
conform with the attached GPA documents, which propose a minimum of 20 du/acre for our property.  
 
Furthermore, RUP has explained to me that going from 20 du/acre to 30 du/acre makes their project no longer
financially feasible, because construction costs per unit are much higher for 30 du/acre than for 20 du/acre.     
My family hopes you will modify the April 2023 General Plan Draft to allow mixed use with a minimum of 20
du/acre for our property.  This will allow RUP to move forward with their development.
 
Thank you for your consideration.
 
Sincerely,
Lee Shahinian, Jr.
Managing Owner

 



From: Ambur Cameron
To: David Early; Carey Stone
Cc: Eva Kelly
Subject: FW: Hollister 2040 plan
Date: Monday, May 22, 2023 11:13:13 AM

Good morning David and Carey,
 
Please see Branden Khan’s comments below regarding the City of Hollister’s Draft 2040 General
Plan.
 
Thank you,
 
Ambur

Get Involved In Community Planning!
General Plan Update Hollister2040.org|generalplan@hollister.ca.gov
 
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPT. REGULAR PUBLIC HOURS
Monday – Thursday       8:30a - 12:00p, 1:00p - 4:30p
Friday – Sunday              CLOSED
 
ALL Planning Applications require an appointment with a City Planner for submittal.
 

From: Branden Khan  
Sent: Friday, May 19, 2023 7:09 PM
To: GeneralPlan <generalplan@hollister.ca.gov>
Subject: Hollister 2040 plan
 
Hello, 
 
my name is Branden Khan. I am a local resident here in Hollister and i Have lived here
continuously since 2009. My wife and I are raising our two boys aged six and two here in
Hollister. I like the Hollister 2040 general plan and many aspects of it, especially increasing
the walk ability and bike ability throughout town. We live in Sunnyslope village and I
frequently take my E bike down Hillcrest and down Sunnyslope to run errands around town.
Both of those roads but especially Sunnyslope Road have many sections that are not safe for
bicyclists with very little shoulder to be a safe enough distance away from cars without them
having to swing wide around me. I know there are many other areas like this throughout town.
What I am Requesting is on those roads but every single road throughout town is to have a
connected protected bike lane network, so that not only can I feel and be safer, but many other
people can feel safer biking around town, which will alleviate congestion on our roads and
alleviate the wear and tear that is caused by  High automobile usage. Many areas around the
world that have implemented biking infrastructure like this have given people the freedom to



not have to jump in their cars just to go five minutes down the road for basic errands. This will
also make it so that parents will feel safer having their kids bike throughout town, bike to
school, and can give them more freedom instead of having to rely on their parents to take them
from place to place. At the moment we don't feel safe biking with our two boys in town due to
the lack ofinfrastructure so  we will be going to the Monterey bay coast trail to do that. Having
connected infrastructure in town could give us an opportunity to enjoy our town from a biking
perspective without having to drive over an hour one-way to have that experience elsewhere.
If we build a connected bike net work with protected bike lanes, we could become a
destination  For people out of town to experience this firsthand just like how people will travel
from all over the world to experience the Netherlands and other European countries connected
and protected bike infrastructure where anyone can feel safe riding a bike. This also is much
better for our mental and physical health versus continuing to rely excessively on car-based
infrastructure. 

 I agree wholeheartedly on doing everything we can to increase public transit ridership which
will help get more cars off of the road alleviating traffic congestion. Texas is a great example
of how continuing to add more lanes of highway infrastructure do not solve traffic problems,
but only induce Demand to make traffic problems worse as more lanes are added. I think it is
sorely needed that both Highway 25 and 156  have two lanes in each direction but the more
lanes we are after that do you have a decreasing Gains. Will be looking to hear about potential
Caltrain service all the way to here in Hollister plus I was told by the last mayor that there are
potential plans to have a dedicated bus lane which I think I saw in the 2040 Hollister general
plan that would go from Hollister on Highway 25 connecting to 101 whicj wood  Significantly
increase timeliness which could also incentivize more people to start taking the bus from Cal
train back-and-forth over sitting in their car for sometimes hours on our congested roads.
Public transportation is only Longterm solution out of our traffic and congestion issues on
both of our major highways going in and out of town. 

I love the fact that there is a plan to include more affordable housing development, which is
did so badly to help with not only are States housing shortage, but also prevent people from
going homeless due to ever increasing housing costs. We cannot continue to build out single-
family housing throughout Hollister as it is not economically sustainable for our city and
county budget unless property taxes were to be significantly increased to maintain the miles
and miles of paved road with water, sewer infrastructure throughout. We need to minimize
single-family housing development as much as possible and prioritize much more dense
development that our town hasn't seen much of in order to  make it more economically
sustainable for our city and county, but also provide people more affordable options versus
single-family housing. In addition to that I would like to see us re-zone as much of the town
for mixed use development Where you can have retail space or restaurant space on the ground
and then have housing built above that which will also help decrease automobile usage and
give people better quality of life. We need to streamline development of accessory dwelling
units as well. Plus, we should make it much easier for people throughout all the currently
single family zone neighborhoods to open up and build businesses on their own property so
people don't have to walk and bike and hop in their cars as much to go to the commercial
centers of town, this can make the town a much more colorful and inviting place to be.
 
Thank you for taking the time to read this! If you would like to talk or have any questions or
concerns, please feel free to call me or text me on my cell 



Sincerely,

Branden Khan
 



From: Ambur Cameron
To: Carey Stone; David Early
Cc: Eva Kelly
Subject: FW: I see you have been busy... update on my senior project - GP plan comments need?
Date: Tuesday, May 30, 2023 4:25:51 PM
Attachments: image001.png

Good afternoon Carey and David,
 
Please see the email below from Tod DuBois. Based upon the forwarded email from Christy, we’re assuming that she would like
us to provide PlaceWorks with Mr. DuBois’s email so that it may be included in the General Plan Comments for Council’s
consideration.
 
Thank you,
 
Ambur

Get Involved In Community Planning!
General Plan Update Hollister2040.org|generalplan@hollister.ca.gov
 
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPT. REGULAR PUBLIC HOURS
Monday – Thursday       8:30a - 12:00p, 1:00p - 4:30p
Friday – Sunday              CLOSED
 
ALL Planning Applications require an appointment with a City Planner for submittal.
 

From: Christine Hopper 
Sent: Monday, May 22, 2023 9:58 AM
To: GeneralPlan <generalplan@hollister.ca.gov>
Subject: FW: I see you have been busy... update on my senior project - GP plan comments need?
 
All,
 
This comment is in reference to the proposed senior housing project at Park Hill.
 

 
From: Tod duBois  
Sent: Saturday, May 20, 2023 12:21 AM
To: Christine Hopper <christine.hopper@hollister.ca.gov>
Subject: I see you have been busy... update on my senior project - GP plan comments need?
 

Hi Christine, 
 
So I see the new GP and understand why you have been so busy. I also see in the GP a minor but maybe significant
zoning tweak for my parcel. I really need to study that in more detail but wanted to ping you on it. Any concern about



the change from R4- Performance Overlay to HDR for my senior housing project? My understanding is the
Performance Overlay gave some flexibility to do senior and more added services like memory care/assisted living - I am
concerned that HDR would not. And if not do we risk a conflict right about the time I get a complete application in? 
 
Update where I am at: 
 
I have ordered a market study to determine the types and number of units of senior housing units that will be
absorbed by the local market. Once that is done - in June, then I can hire the architect to create a design. So maybe 6-9
months to get a complete pre-application in and of course a lot of costs to get there. 
 
I really need to make sure an do everything possible to mitigate conflict or surprises, I simply cannot fail on this
project. 
 
Thank you for helping guide this to a win for the community. I still do not know if the new road to park hill is viable for
the city. It's a huge risk area for the project. 
 
best regards Tod duBois 
 
 
 



From: Ambur Cameron
To: Carey Stone; David Early
Cc: Eva Kelly
Subject: RE: Density increase for Glenmore drive
Date: Tuesday, May 30, 2023 4:40:43 PM

Good afternoon Carey and David,
 
Please see the email below from Dengzhi Zhang regarding the City of Hollister's Draft 2040 General Plan
Update.
 
Thank you,
 
Ambur

Get Involved In Community Planning!
General Plan Update Hollister2040.org|generalplan@hollister.ca.gov
 
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPT. REGULAR PUBLIC HOURS
Monday – Thursday       8:30a - 12:00p, 1:00p - 4:30p
Friday – Sunday              CLOSED
 
ALL Planning Applications require an appointment with a City Planner for submittal.
 
From: Dengzhi Zhang  
Sent: Monday, May 22, 2023 12:52 PM
To: GeneralPlan <generalplan@hollister.ca.gov>
Subject: Density increase for Glenmore drive
 
Dear Christy Hopper,
 
I received a letter from the owner of the 8.25 acre vacant parcel in Glenmore drive. It seems you plan to
increase the density. We have a bunch of vacant land in hollister. May I know why you want to change
the original plan?
 
Regards, Dan



From: Ambur Cameron
To: Carey Stone; David Early
Cc: Eva Kelly
Subject: FW: Groundwater Supply-Hollister GP Update Comment
Date: Tuesday, May 30, 2023 4:36:11 PM

Good afternoon Carey and David,
 
Please see the email below from Jim Safranek regarding the City of Hollister's Draft 2040 General
Plan Update.
 
Thank you,
 
Ambur

Get Involved In Community Planning!
General Plan Update Hollister2040.org|generalplan@hollister.ca.gov
 
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPT. REGULAR PUBLIC HOURS
Monday – Thursday       8:30a - 12:00p, 1:00p - 4:30p
Friday – Sunday              CLOSED
 
ALL Planning Applications require an appointment with a City Planner for submittal.
 
The 2020 GP claims groundwater overdraft for Hollister has been eliminated by the SBCWD.
Growth is dependent upon secure and long-lasting water supplies, and 73% of current Hollister
water supply comes from groundwater.
Is the 2020 GP claim regarding groundwater supply as managed by SBCWD still accurate?
Are any wells currently or historically showing signs of overdraft?
How much groundwater is going to be available to Hollister over the next 20-50 years?
Is long-term groundwater use analyzed and included in the climate adaptation section of the GP
update?
Is the future status of water from the CVP included in long term hydrologic and climate change
sections of the GP update?
 
Please confirm you’ve received these GP update comments.
 
Jim Safranek

 
 
Sent from my iPad



From: Ruby Varner
To: GeneralPlan
Cc: Mike Hogg
Subject: Increase General Density for 8.25 Acre vacant parcel at West End of Glenmore Drive
Date: Wednesday, May 31, 2023 6:25:26 PM

The proposal to increase the maximum from 8 units/acre to 60 units (possibly 99
units/gross/acre) for the vacant lot cited in the subject above will seriously create traffic issues
on both A Street and Powell Street.  This proposal to create as many as 822 units on 8.25 acres
would most likely require 3 story buildings.
 
Since I own property on A Street, I am firmly against such high density building and request
that this proposal be reconsidered and that the current density of 8 units/acre remain to match
that of the surrounding neighborhood’s existing single detached homes.
 
 



From: April Mistretta
To: GeneralPlan
Subject: Planned building in our Neighborhood
Date: Thursday, June 1, 2023 1:27:07 PM

Good Afternoon-

It was brought to my neighbor's and I's attention that a small plot of land that is between Vali Way, Glen
View Drive and backs up to RO Hardin School is being proposed to build an 800 unit low income
apartment building!  I highly oppose this plan!  We are all long time residents of this neighborhood flocked
with older homes.  Not only would this be unsightly but adding 1600 residents easily, over 800 cars
traveling the streets surrounding us is not feasible.  Our kids enjoy playing outside in the streets with all
the neighborhood kids, this would not be able to happen with the increase of traffic down our small street
this is planned to be used as a throughway to the building.  PLEASE reconsider relocating this building to
an area that can handle the influx of traffic that our neighborhood cannot.  I can only imagine what this
would do to our home values as well.
I doubt anyone on this committee would want a large apartment building like this built in their backyard.

Thank you for your consideration.

April Mistretta
 



From: Eva Kelly
To: Carey Stone
Cc: Ambur Cameron
Subject: FW: Railway Input and Bicycle Paths
Date: Friday, June 2, 2023 8:57:55 AM
Attachments: image001.png

Good morning Carey,
 
Please see the email below regarding the General Plan.
 
Best,
Eva
 

Get Involved In Community Planning!
General Plan Update
Hollister2040.org|generalplan@hollister.ca.gov
 
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPT. REGULAR PUBLIC HOURS
Monday - Thursday      8:30a - 12:00p, 1:00p - 4:30p
Friday - Sunday            CLOSED
 
ALL Planning Applications require an appointment with a City Planner for submittal.
 
From: Adrian Garcia  
Sent: Friday, June 2, 2023 8:21 AM
To: GeneralPlan <generalplan@hollister.ca.gov>
Subject: Railway Input and Bicycle Paths
 
To the city,
 
All of what I've heard about this plan is fantastic. 
 
The expansion of bicycling infrastructure is something I'm really excited to see in the near
future. A town like Hollister, where businesses are fairly clustered together, would benefit
from a web of safe bike lanes. I'd just like to add that bike racks should be offered to
businesses. Getting there is one thing, but securing your bike is another.
 
A side note: It'd be really fun to have a safe bike trail to San Juan as a recreational trail to the
mission and as a connection to more trails along De Anza. Or, even a wine bike trail along
Cienega Road.
 
What I wish was more upfront was the implementation of a useful railway. It'd be great to
have a line to Salinas and/or Gilroy at minumum. Salinas has a station/AMTRAK that



connects with the Coast Starlight, which may be useful to communters or for travel purposes.
 
Much support from a resident,
Adrian Garcia



 

 
Alan B. Fenstermacher 

Direct Dial: (714) 641-3452 

E-mail: afenstermacher@rutan.com 

 

June 15, 2023 

 
 

Ru t an  &  Tu ck e r ,  LL P  |  18 57 5  Ja mb or ee  Road ,  9 t h  F l oo r  

I r v i ne ,  CA  92 61 2  |  71 4 - 64 1 - 51 00  |  Fa x  71 4 - 546 -90 35  

Or an ge  Coun ty  |  Pa lo  A l to  |  San  F ra nc is co  |  Sc o t t s da le  |  www. ru ta n . co m  
3084/030556-0010 

19247992.4 a06/15/23 

VIA E-MAIL AND 

FIRST CLASS MAIL 

City of Hollister Development Services 

Department – Planning Division 

ATTN: Eva Kelly, Interim Planning Manager 

339 Fifth Street 

Hollister, CA 95023 

generalplan@hollister.ca.gov 

eva.kelly@hollister.ca.gov  

 

 

Re: Hollister GPU 2040, CAP, and ALPP EIR 

Comment on Hollister 2040 General Plan and Draft Environmental Impact Report 

(State Clearinghouse No. 2021040277) 

Dear Ms. Kelly: 

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the City of Hollister’s (the “City”) Draft 

Environmental Impact Report (“DEIR”) for the Hollister 2040 General Plan update, and the 

content of the proposed General Plan update itself.  

This firm represents Anderson Homes (“Anderson”) in connection with the Santana Ranch 

Specific Plan project (“Project”).  It is our understanding that the City is considering retiring its 

Urban Service Area (“USA”) as part of the City’s 2040 General Plan update.  (See, 2020 Draft 

General Plan, p. LU-2.)1  The purpose of this letter is to respectfully request that, at a minimum, 

the City revise the proposed updated General Plan to make clear that regardless of the ultimate fate 

of the City’s USA, the City will not revoke services from developments promised or already 

receiving utility services from the City.   

Specifically, Anderson has a significant and legally protected interest in continued sewer 

service for the Project, and for over a decade has relied on the City’s commitment to provide sewer 

service, and in fact is already receiving sewer service from the City for the portions of the Project 

that are already operational.   

 
1 At the City’s May 18, 2023 workshop on the General Plan Update, the City’s contract planner 

indicated that the City was considering contracting the City’s SOI and terminating the USA.   



 

City of Hollister Development Services 

Department – Planning Division 

June 15, 2023 

Page 2 

 

 

 

3084/030556-0010 

19247992.4 a06/15/23   

 

I. Background 

The Project is located in an unincorporated area of San Benito County, outside of the City’s 

Sphere of Influence (“SOI”) but within the City’s USA, as shown on Exhibit 1.  The Project was 

approved by the County Board of Supervisors in 2010, allowing a maximum of 1,092 residential 

dwelling units (both multifamily and single family), approximately 106,000 square feet of 

commercial and mixed uses, a 12 acre elementary school, and 18 acres of formal community and 

neighborhood parks as well as additional park and recreational facilities.  The County Board of 

Supervisors also approved an environmental impact report (“EIR”) analyzing all of the impacts of 

the Project on the environment, and a development agreement (San Benito County Recorder 

Document No. 2011-0000142), which vests Anderson’s land use approvals that allow development 

of the above-described Project.   

On November 29, 2012, the San Benito County Local Agency Formation Commission 

(“LAFCo”) approved Resolution No. 2012-03 (attached hereto as Exhibit 2), expanding the City’s 

wastewater services into the USA.  On November 7, 2013, the City indicated that the Project would 

receive City sewer services because it was located within the USA, similar to a September 2, 2008 

letter confirming the same.  (See, Exhibits 3 and 4.)  Carrying through to today, the City’s Sanitary 

Sewer Collection Master Plan – last updated in March 2018 – identifies the Project as an approved 

development that will receive City sewer service.  (See, Exhibit 5, pp. 2-6, 2-7; Figure 2-4.)  

After receiving confirmation from the City that sewer services were available to the 

Project, Anderson began construction.  At this time, 513 single family residential units are already 

occupied (Phases 1 through 6), 202 lots are in various stages of homebuilding from ready to start 

construction to recently occupied (Phases 7 & 8), another 63 units (Phase 9) are in plan check, and 

improvement plans for the remaining phases are in process.  Additionally, 56 multifamily units are 

also occupied or ready for occupancy, construction is commencing on another 80 multifamily 

units, the recently constructed school serves approximately 800 students, and park uses are open 

to the public.  All of the foregoing uses (including restrooms in the park) are connected to City 

sewer services. 

For the reasons set forth in this letter, the City should not retire its USA.  Alternatively, in 

the event the City still considers retiring or modifying the USA, Anderson respectfully requests 

that the City make clear it will continue providing services to the entire approved Project - both 

the portions already constructed and occupied, and the remaining phases yet to be built.   

II. State Law Does Not Require Retirement of the Urban Services Area 

Government Code Section 56133(a) requires a city to seek approval from the LAFCo 

“before providing new or extended services outside of its jurisdictional boundary.”  As explained 

by the California Court of Appeals, subdivision (a) is the only limitation on the City.  (Community 



 

City of Hollister Development Services 

Department – Planning Division 

June 15, 2023 

Page 3 

 

 

 

3084/030556-0010 

19247992.4 a06/15/23   

 

Water Coalition v. Santa Cruz Cty. Local Agency Formation Com. (2011) 200 Cal.App.4th 1317, 

1327.)  The remaining provisions of Section 56133 apply only to the LAFCo.  (Id.)  Here, 

expansion of wastewater services into the USA complies with Government Code Section 56133 

because the San Benito County LAFCo approved expansion of wastewater services to the Urban 

Services Area pursuant to Resolution No. 2012-03.  Therefore, the City has complied with the 

required provisions of Section 56133 and there is no requirement that the Urban Service Area be 

retired.  

III. The City Should Guarantee Continued Sewer Service to the Entire Project 

A. Santana Ranch Was Developed in Reliance on the City’s Representations of 

Available Sewer Services  

In the event that the City decides to retire the USA, Anderson contends that both as a matter 

of law and basic fairness, the City must continue to provide the Project with sewer service.  “It has 

long been the rule in this state and in other jurisdictions that if a property owner has performed 

substantial work and incurred substantial liabilities in good faith reliance upon a permit issued by 

the government he acquired a vested right to complete construction in accordance with the terms 

of the permit.”  (Avco Community Developers, Inc. v. South Coast Regional Com. (1976) 17 Cal.3d 

785, 791.)  Further, where a city affirmatively represents the conditions for the development of a 

property, the city will be estopped from changing those conditions down the road.  (See City of 

Imperial Beach v. Algert (1962) 200 Cal.App.2d 48.)   

Here, Anderson expended a substantial amount of time designing and constructing the 

Project in reliance on the City’s previous representations that sewer services would be provided 

thereto.  On November 7, 2013, the City affirmatively represented that the USA, including Santana 

Ranch, would be serviced by the City’s sewer system.  Further, as expressly acknowledged in the 

City’s DEIR, the Project receives sewer services pursuant to a Memorandum of Understanding 

(“MOU”) among the City, County, and the utility providers servicing the unincorporated areas of 

the County.  This MOU further demonstrates that Anderson’s reliance on the City’s representations 

that sewer services would be provided to the development was reasonable and justified.  Indeed, 

the City’s sewer treatment plant was built as a regional facility with developments such as the 

Project in mind, and was intended to handle more than only the City’s sewer needs.   

The Project’s existing residents currently rely on the City’s sewer services to serve their 

homes, parks, and schools.  Cutting off wastewater services to these residents, approximately 800 

students, and other guests/users of the park facilities, would be improper and would create serious 

health and safety impacts. 



 

City of Hollister Development Services 

Department – Planning Division 

June 15, 2023 

Page 4 

 

 

 

3084/030556-0010 

19247992.4 a06/15/23   

 

B. Anderson Homes Has a Property Interest in Continued Utility Service that 

Cannot be Taken Without Just Compensation 

The Federal and California Constitutions prohibit the government from taking or damaging 

private property unless just compensation is paid to the property owner.  When the government 

takes or damages this property right without paying the owner just compensation, the owner may 

bring a claim for inverse condemnation against the government.  It is well established in California 

that there is a significant difference between an existing utility customer and a prospective user, 

with existing customers having a property right in continued service.  (Gilbert v. State of California 

(1990) 218 Cal.App.3d 234, 250; Hollister Park Inv. Co. v. Coleta Cty. Water Dist. (1978) 82 

Cal.App.3d 290; Swanson v. Marin Mun. Water Dist. (1976) 56 Cal.App.3d 512.)  Here, as an 

existing and permitted wastewater user, the Project’s sewer connection – for both existing and 

already approved portions of the Project – cannot be taken without just compensation.  (Id.)   

IV. If the USA is Retied, the EIR Must be Revised to Reflect the Resulting Impacts 

In the event the City were to retire the USA and stop providing sewer service for the 

Project, the DEIR would need to be revised to analyze the environmental impacts of the Project 

obtaining new sewer service, which would presumably include construction of new treatment 

facilities and other infrastructure, resulting in increased environmental effects.  These impacts 

would be a reasonably foreseeable consequence of retiring the USA, particularly if that action was 

applied to existing connections or already entitled and approved projects, such as the Project here.  

The potential impacts of changing sewer service for an already operational and under construction 

project could very well be significant.   



 

City of Hollister Development Services 

Department – Planning Division 

June 15, 2023 

Page 5 

 

 

 

3084/030556-0010 

19247992.4 a06/15/23   

 

Thank you for your consideration, and please advise should you have any questions or 

would like to discuss further.   Moving forward, please provide the undersigned with notice of all  

public meetings, hearings or other actions relating to the City’s 2040 General Plan update, the 

DEIR, and all other public meetings or hearings for related or associated City actions.   My client 

will be in attendance at the City’s upcoming Planning Commission workshop, as well as any future 

City Council meetings on this topic.  

Sincerely, 

RUTAN & TUCKER, LLP 

 

 

Alan B. Fenstermacher 

 

 

cc: Mary F. Lerner, City Attorney (mlerner@lozanosmith.com) 

Christine Hopper, Director of Development Services (christine.hopper@hollister.ca.gov) 

Michael Anderson, Anderson Homes 

Attachments: Exhibits 1 through 5 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit 1 



CC I T Y  O F  H O L L I S T E R  2 0 4 0  D R A F T  G E N E R A L  P L A N  

3 .  L A N D  U S E  A N D  C O M M U N I T Y  D E S I G N  E L E M E N T  

LU-4 

Figure LU-1  Hollister Planning Area 

Santana 
Ranch



CC I T Y  O F  H O L L I S T E R  2 0 4 0  D R A F T  G E N E R A L  P L A N  

3 .  L A N D  U S E  A N D  C O M M U N I T Y  D E S I G N  E L E M E N T  
 

LU-7 

Figure LU-2  Land Use Map 

   

Santana 
Ranch



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit 2 













 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit 3 





 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit 4 





 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit 5 





�������

�������	�
�������
�

�������	
	����������	����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	
�
�

�	
�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
����������	�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
	������	�����	����
����� ������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
�������	�
�����������������	���	����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
�	�������������� ������!"��	 �#��!$�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
%���	������!"��	 �&��	���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
!������"�!	�	��%���	������!"��	 �&���	��'��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

	
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������!�

�������	�	����	���	���	��������	�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	��
�

������
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

(�������!	����	�)�	��*�����"�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
!��"�)�	��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�	����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������!�
�������	+�
(�����������	���	��!	����	�)�	�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������,�
�������	+�!��"�)�	��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������-�
���	�.	�	��� 	���.	����"���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������/�
���	�.	�	��� 	���'��0	���+�!��"�)�	������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������/�
�������	�!  ��"�����1	��  	����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������2�

�����	���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������"�

(�������'������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������2�
���	�'��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������3�

�������	�	��������	������	�������	��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	��
�


����
������#��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������!���
&�����	��,���
&����	����	�'��4�	 �)�	�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������,���
�����!���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������,�,�
�	�	����5�	���������*��	��%�������� ����	 	���'��0	���1	��  	����������������������������������������������������������������������������,�,�

�������	�	����������	����	������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	��
�

������
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������$���

��#�� �����������������	��#� �����
�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������$���
�%��������	����	��� �������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������$���
!	�	��������*"�6��4���"�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������-���
'	�7�����������)���"����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������-�-�

 ������	����	��� ���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������$�&�

�������	�	����	������	���������	����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	��
�

�� ����	������	
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������&���
��#��
	�����
�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������&���
�� ����	�������	��	���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������&�!�
����	#�� ��� ����	������
������	���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������&�!�
)������������!���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������/�,�
��'������!��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������/�-�
����8�
���������!���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������/�/�
!������	������!�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������/�/



��������

�

�������	�	��������	������	��������	����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	��
�

������
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������'���

����
������#�����	�	�#����
����	�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������'���

����
������#����� ������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������'���

����
������#����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������'���
�����)�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������9���
&��	��%���4����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������9�,�
!"��	 �%����������)���":	�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������9�,�


����
������#������������������(��%������� ����
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������'�$�
.	����	���!"��	 �%������"���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������9�-�
&��������!"��	 �%������"���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������9�9�
����'��	�;	�����"�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������9�2�
'��	�6���	��6� 	������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������9�2�


����
������#������������������(� ����� ����
��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������'�)�
.	����	���!"��	 �%������"���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������9�3�
&��������!"��	 �%������"�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������9����

�������	�	�������	����������	������	���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	��
�

�	����� �
	���	����������������	��
�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������"���
�������� ��
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������"���

���	��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������"���
�����
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������"�!�

�������	 	��������	���	�����������	�������	����������	��������������������������������������������������������������������������	 �
�

�	����� ����	������	����	�����	�
�����	��	�	�#��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������)���

�������	  ��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������)���
������#������	�	���������	��*����+����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������)�&�
�	�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������)�'�
�������	���
�����
�������	��	�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������)�"�

�������#�����	
��	������
	��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������)�)�
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������)�,�

�����������
��
	�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������)��-�
	 �������
	����*������
#��������+����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������)����
������������
����
������#�����
��	����.�������	�����	�
��	�	�
��	����.�

��������
����.�	�����
�	�����������
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������)����
1����	�!	�	��%���	������!"��	 �%�	�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������3����
<����&����	����	�!	�	��%���	������!"��	 �%�	������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������3����

�	�����.����.�	������������#����	��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������)��$�
�� ����	�����
��	����.������
�����	����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������)��&�
 	��.�����.�	�����	���* ��+���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������)��'�
������	��	����	��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������)��"�
�/���������/��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������)��"�
����	#�	��� �����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������)��)�
�
������	�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������)��,�

�
����	�	����������	
	
	00�12�3�	�(���45��5�5�61��4�7�18���14679�5�61	
	00�12�3���(��-�"���:�7��62�;� ;6:��<=;5<�
	00�12�3�
�(��3>�?�5<



���������

�����	�������
�
��?;������
�5@�64��6;;�<5�7��-�-��-�'��3�<5�1���<�2�15��;���A�;609�15<������������������������������������������������������������������
��?;������
�5@�64��6;;�<5�7��-�-��-�'��3�<5�1���61��<�2�15��;���A�;609�15<����������������������������������������������������������
��?;����!�
�5@�64��6;;�<5�7���<5�:�5�7���7A�8��	7����3�<5�1����12��<����������������������������������������������������������������������!�
��?;����$���
������5=2@�	7����3�<5�1����12��<������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������$�
��?;����&�
�5@�64��6;;�<5�7� =5=7���<�2�15��;���A�;609�15<������������������������������������������������������������������������������������&�
��?;����'�
�5@�64��6;;�<5�7� =5=7���61��<�2�15��;���A�;609�15<����������������������������������������������������������������������������'�
��?;��!����3�<5�1����0�;�1���1A�1567@�?@����9�5�7��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������!���
��?;��!�����1�5�7@���:�7����>����15�1�18��	7��<�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������!���
��?;��$���
�5@�64��6;;�<5�7�	A�7����	11=�;� ;6:��=99�7@�4769������������������������������������������������������������������$���
��?;��$����3�<5�1��	A�7�������;@� ;6:<�?@���12��<�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������$���
��?;��$�!��3�<5�1��	A�7�������;@� ;6:<�?@��7�?=5�7@�	7�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������$�!�
��?;��$�$��=99�7@�64����B�1�� �8567�	1�;@<�<��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������$�&�
��?;��$�&� =5=7��	A�7�������;@� ;6:<�?@���12��<���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������$�&�
��?;��&�����45��5�5�61��=99�7@��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������&���
��?;��'�����1�9=9��12���3�9=9���0���;60�<�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������'���
��?;��"�$��1�5�
6<5�467�
61<57=85�61�64���:�7����1<����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������"�!�
��?;��"���
�5@�64��6;;�<5�7�
����1B�1����57�3����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������"�$�
��?;��"���
�5@�64��6;;�<5�7����7���79�
�0�5�;��9076A�9�15��76�7�9���������������������������������������������������������������������"�&�
��?;��"�!�
�5@�64��6;;�<5�7��61����79�
�0�5�;��9076A�9�15��76�7�9���������������������������������������������������������������������"�'�
��?;��)���
=77�15��5�44�1����<87�05�61<�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������)�!�
��?;��)���������A��:<�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������)�&�
��?;��)�!��7��1�1������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������)�'�
��?;��)�$���<��1��12�
61<57=85�61��5�12�72<��02�5���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������)�"�
��?;��)�&��=57��8>��12��2=8�5�61���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������)�)�
��?;��)�'���:���A�;609�15��A��:�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������)�,�
��?;��)�"�
=<569�7���7A�8��
�;;<���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������)��-�
��?;��)�)���:�7�
;��1�1���12��1<0�85�61��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������)��!�
��?;��)�,���00�1���12��������15�1�18���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������)��$�
��?;��)��-���45��5�5�61����15�1�18�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������)��&�
��?;��)���� ���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������)��'�
��?;��)������:�7���5�7�;��0��7<���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������)��"�
��?;��)��!��=99�7@�64�
=77�15��5�44�1���<6=78�<C�
�5@�64��6;;�<5�7���:�7��@<5�9��������������������������������������������)��)�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�



������A�

��������������������������������������������	��������
�
 ��=7�����C���12��<��D=7�<2�85�61<������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������,�
 ��=7�����C��-�-��-�'��3�<5�1����A�;609�15<����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������-�
 ��=7����!C��3�<5�1����12��<����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
 ��=7����$C�	0076A�2� =5=7����A�;609�15<���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
 ��=7����&C��65�15��;� =5=7����A�;609�15<��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������!�
 ��=7��!��C���<5�:�5�7��@<5�9��A�7A��:���0�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������!�&�
 ��=7��!��C���:�7����15�1�18���A�7A��:���0�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������!�'�
 ��=7��$�����0�64��7�?=5�7@�	7�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������$�'�
 ��=7��$�����=71�;�
=7A��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������$�"�
 ��=7��&�����45��5�5�61���7A�8��	7����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������&�'�
 ��=7��&��� =5=7����45��5�5�61��7�?=5�7@���0�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������&�"�
 ��=7��'�����<5�:�5�7��62�;��A�7A��:���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������'��$�
 ��=7��'����3�<5�1����3���05>��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������'��&�
 ��=7��'�!��3�<5�1����4�8��18��<������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������'��'�
 ��=7��'�$��3�<5�1���6:���;68�5@�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������'��"�
 ��=7��'�&� =5=7����3���05>���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������'��)�
 ��=7��'�'� =5=7����4�8��18��<��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������'��,�
 ��=7��)����7��1�E�5�61�;�
>�75�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������)�$�

�
���7���79��76F�85��6���C��7�2���6�2��15�78611�85�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������"�"�
���7���79��76F�85��6���C��6:�;;��57��5���:�7���0���0�7�2�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������"�)�
���7���79��76F�85��6��!C���<5��57��5���:�7���0���0�7�2�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������"�,�
���7���79��76F�85��6��$C���<>�6�2���:�7���0���0�7�2�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������"��-�
���7���79��76F�85��6��&C��=1<�5��7�A����:�7���0���0�7�2����������������������������������������������������������������������������������"����
���7���79��76F�85��6��'C�������45��5�5�61��0�7�2������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������"����
���7���79��76F�85��6��"C���1���57��5���:�7���0���0�7�2�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������"��!�
���7���79��76F�85��6��)C��12��12���<5���45��5�5�61��0�7�2�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������"��$�
���7���79��76F�85��6��,C�	�70675���45��5�5�61��0�7�2�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������"��&�
�
�61����79��76F�85��6���C���;;87�<5�6�2���:�7���0���0�7�2��������������������������������������������������������������������������������"��'�
�61����79��76F�85��6���C� �;;61�6�2���:�7���0���0�7�2�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������"��"�
�61����79��76F�85��6��!����7B���57�8B�56�������:�7���0���0�7�2�������������������������������������������������������������������������"��)�
�61����79��76F�85��6��$C���1���57��5���:�7���0���0�7�2�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������"��,�
�61����79��76F�85��6��&C�	�76<5�7���@���:�7���0���0�7�2��������������������������������������������������������������������������������"��-�
�61����79��76F�85��6��'C���;;�7�6�2���:�7���0���0�7�2�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������"����
�61����79��76F�85��6��"C���1�D=�1�6�2���:�7���0���0�7�2�������������������������������������������������������������������������������"����
�61����79��76F�85��6��)C���8>16;6�@���7B:�@���:�7���0���0�7�2���������������������������������������������������������������������"��!�
�61����79��76F�85��6��,C�	�70675���45��5�5�61��0�7�2�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������"��$�
�61����79��76F�85��6���-C�������45��5�5�61��0�7�2����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������"��&�
�61����79��76F�85��6����C��12��12���<5���45��5�5�61��0�7�2���������������������������������������������������������������������������������"��'�
�61����79��76F�85��6����C�
=<>9�1��57��5���:�7���0���0�7�2��������������������������������������������������������������������������"��"�
�



Page v 

List of Acronyms 
 

ABS Acrylonitrile Butadiene Styrene 
ADF Average Daily Flow  
AMBAG Association of Monterey Bay Area Government  
CEQA California Environmental Quality Act  
CIP Capital Improvement Projects 
City City of Hollister 
County San Benito County  
d/D Depth over Diameter 
DOF Department of Finance  
du/ac Dwelling Units per Acreage 
E.I.T. Engineering In Training 
EIR Environmental Impact Reports 
ENR Engineering New Record 
ESRI Environmental Systems Research Institute 
FAR Floor Area Ratio 
FOG fats, oil, and grease  
FPS Feet per Second 
FRM Fluid Resource Management 
Ft Feet 
Ft/Sec Feet per Second 
GIS Geographic Information System 
GISP Geographic Information System Professional 
GPD Gallons Per Day 
GPM Gallons Per Minute 
HDPE High Density Polyethylene  
I/I Infiltration and Inflow 
LF Linear Feet 
MDDWF Maximum Day Dry Weather Flow  
MGD Million Gallons Per Day 
min Minute 
NA Not Applicable 
NAD North American Datum  
NAVD North American Vertical Datum  
ND Negative Declarations 
O&M Operation and Maintenance  
P.E. Professional Engineer 
P.L.S. Professional Land Surveyor 
PF Peaking Factor 
PHDWF Peak Hour Dry Weather Flow  
PHWWF Peak Hour Wet Weather Flow  
PVC Polyvinyl Chloride  
RDWWTP Regional Domestic Wastewater Treatment Plant 
S.F. Square Foot 
SSCSMP Sanitary Sewer Collection System Master Plan 
VCP Vitrified Clay Pipe  
VFD Variable Frequency Drive 
  



                         2-6 
 
 

 

Table 2-5 City of Hollister Future Residential Developments 

Development Planning Dept. 
Status Units Unit Type 

Roberts Ranch In Process 227 Application in process for 
192 SFD and 35 MF 

Santana Ranch  Approved 1,092 SFD/MF 
Cerrato  Approved 241 SFD 
Sunnyside  Approved 213 SFD 
The Villages Approved 155 SFD 
Ladd Ranch  Approved 82 SFD 
Ladd Lane/Itravia/Bella Serra Approved 63 MF 
Fay Properties  Approved 90 SFD 
The Cottages Approved 37  SFD Smaller Lots 
Orchard Ranch  Approved 53 SFD 
Orchard Park Approved 82  SFD Smaller Lots 
Buena Vista Approved 4,007 SFD/MF 
CHISPA North of Buena Vista Approved 54 SFD/MF 
CHISPA Approved 49 Affordable/ MF Seniors 
Walnut Park Approved 42  SFD Smaller Lots 
Del Curto South of Hillcrest Approved 22 SFD 
Maple Park  Approved 49  SFD Smaller Lots 
Cross Subdivision Map Check Approved 3 SFD 
Vista de Oro/Saroyan & Howard Approved 80 MF 
Hillcrest Meadows Approved 49 SFD 
Sywak Approved 13  SFD Smaller Lots 
J. Coria Approved 7 MF 
Braer Approved 6 MF 

Valles Approved 85 
 15 SFD Smaller Lots,  

26 Townhomes, 
 44 Apartments 

Ray Mariotiini Approved 13 MF 
Pine Drive Approved 3 MF 
E. Coria Approved 2 MF 

Silver Oaks Approved 170 
SFD Smaller Lots/ 

Age Restricted Seniors 
Only 

Brigantino and Fuller/North Street/Allendale Approved 279 219 SFD, 
60 MF 

Thorning In Process 79 Application in process for 
79 residential units 

Nektarios Matheou 1051 Monterey St. Approved 2 SFD 
West of Fairview/Award Homes Approved 667 SFD/MF/Duettes 
Jim Matthews 1650 Cienega Road Approved 8  SFD Smaller Lots 
Bob Kutz South of Hillcrest Road Approved 19 SFD 

 



                         2-7 
 
 

 

 
 
 

POPULATION 
 
Population for the SSCSMPU is comprised of the City population and unincorporated land of the County within 
the study area. Three sources of information were utilized to determine existing and future population for the 
study area: 

1. The City of Hollister’s 2005 General Plan 
2. City of Hollister 2017 Planning Update 
3. The Association of Monterey Bay Area Government (AMBAG) 2014 Regional Growth 

Forecast 
4. The United States Census Bureau 2016 Population Estimate 

 
It should be noted that in December 2008, the Regional Water Quality Control Board lifted the six-year building 
moratorium from the City following the completion of the City’s RDWWTP upgrade. The project included a 
treatment plant expansion and upgrade, a seasonal storage pond system, and recycled water distribution 
system, allowing the City to accept additional wastewater flow from new customers. 
 
Existing Population  
The City’s RDWWTP receives flow from not only the City, but also unincorporated areas of the County. 
Therefore, to determine the existing population, it is necessary to identify the population from both regions. The 
total population is estimated to be 37,126 persons. The following sections provide an overview of the 
population estimates for within the City and within the service area outside of the City limits. 
 
City of Hollister 
The existing population for the City was determined using the four sources noted previously.  
 

� The 2005 General Plan: 2017 population at 53,600 persons using a 2.6% average annual 
growth rate from year 2000.  

� Updated City Planning (1/1/2017): Table 2 of the E-5 housing, estimates the population 
within the City to be 36,670 persons.   

� AMBAG 2014 Regional Forecast estimates the 2010 population at 34,928 persons.  

Table 2-6 City of Hollister Future Non-Residential Developments 

Non-Residential Development Planning Dept. 
Status 

Area (s.f.) 

Commercial 
Santana Neighborhood Commercial Approved 309,276 
Lab&RV Storage Approved N/A 
Multi-Tenant Shopping Center Approved 83,559 of the 165,533 was 

approved 
Industrial 
Cleariest Park Industrial Building Approved 151,200 
School 
Santana Ranch Approved 527,076 



UV

UV

UV

O

ID
Residential Units

R1 Roberts Ranch 227
R2 Santana Ranch 1,092
R3 Cerrato 241
R4 Sunnyside 213
R5 The Villages 155
R6 Ladd Ranch 82
R7 Ladd Lane/Itravia/Bella Serra 63
R8 Fay Properties 90
R9 The Cottages 37
R10 Orchard Ranch 53
R11 Orchard Park 82
R12 Buena Vista 4,007
R13 CHISPA North of Buena Vista 54
R14 CHISPA 49
R15 Walnut Park R33
R16 Del Curto South of Hillcrest 22
R17 Maple Park 49
R18 Cross Subdivision Map Check 3
R19 Vista de Oro/Saroyan & Howard 80
R20 Hillcrest Meadows 49
R21 Sywak 13
R22 J. Coria 7
R23 Braer 6
R24 Valles 85
R25 Ray Mariotiini 13
R26 Pine Drive 3
R27 E. Coria 2
R28 Silver Oaks 170
R29 Brigantino and Fuller/North Street/Allendale 279
R30 Thorning 79
R31 Nektarios Matheou 1051 Monterey St. 2
R32 West of Fairview/Award Homes 667
R33 Jim Matthews 1650 Cienega Road 8
R34 Bob Kutz South of Hillcrest Road 19

Non-Residential Development Area (s.f.)

C1 Santana Neighborhood Commercial 309,276
C2 Lab&RV Storage N/A

C3
Multi-Tenant Shopping Center 83,559 of 165,533 approved

I1 Cleariest Park Industrial Building 151,200
I2 Warehouse Industrial N/A
I3 Warehouse N/A
I4 Industrial N/A

S1 Santana Ranch 527,076

City of Hollister Approved Future Developments
Development

Commercial

Industrial

School



6/16/2023 

 

Mayor Casey & City Council 

Development Services Dept. Staff 

375 5th St.  

Hollister, Ca 95023 

 

Re: General Plan Update 

 

Thank you for the opportunity to submit comments on the 2040 General Plan Update. My name is Tim 

Johnson and I am the property owner of the parcel at the corner of Enterprise and Southside Roads with 

APN 020-290-054. I have several concerns regarding how the general plan update treats my parcel 

especially when taking into consideration the facts on the ground. This particular parcel is fronted by 

both sewer and water yet would be excluded from city development as the plan is written. Even more 

egregious is that part of this parcel was used to accommodate the city sewer system that serves 

development further out from the city limit. Please see the specific comments below and respond in due 

course. Thank you for your consideration.  

 

Proposed Sphere of Influence- As written the general plan update would exclude my parcel from the new 

sphere of influence. The sphere would actually stop directly in front of the northern property line. There 

is currently dense housing to the south and west of my parcel and there is a subdivision being built to 

the east. If the sphere moves to Enterprise Rd it is safe to say that development will eventually reach the 

northern property line as well. I would like the opportunity to utilize my property at its highest and best 

use just as my neighbors have. It is my position that my parcel should be included in the sphere of 

influence and zoned accordingly.   

 

Policy LU 1.5- If the city is unwilling to bring my parcel into the new sphere of influence it is of utmost 

importance that Land Use Policy 1.5 be amended or completely removed from the general plan update. 

As stated by others in the past, the current out of jurisdiction sewer service situation is a problem. The 

city has both the capacity and the infrastructure in place to serve my parcel. If land use policy 1.5 were 

to be put in place I would not even be able to apply for services to the city. If you leave my parcel out of 

the sphere I will be forced to apply to the county. If I apply to the county and you implement LU 1.5, I 

won’t be able to receive city sewer services.  

 

Policy CSF 2.12- If you are going to require all development that will use city services to be within city 

limits, there should be a mechanism for those who would like to be in the city to do so without having to 

wait for the city limit to reach their property line. My property is an infill parcel when you take into 

consideration the uses around it.  

 

Thank you again for considering these comments. My main goal is for my parcel to be treated the same 

as neighboring parcels. As written, the general plan update excludes my parcel from development and 

injures my prospects and the value of my property. Please take a moment to consider how you would 

feel if you were in my position. The city, county and nearby property owners have utilized my property in 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 32394EDF-9D48-48F0-B98F-615DB997DBEF



the past when needed and the city is now trying to exclude me from utilizing it to its highest use and 

best use. Please make the appropriate changes to the draft plan to rectify this future harm. Thank you 

and please feel to reach out to me as needed.  

 

Tim Johnson 

Tjohnson3006@yahoo.com 

 

Cc: 

 

Karson Klauer 

K2 Solutions LLC 

(831)801-0858 

K2solutions.sbc@gmail.com  

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 32394EDF-9D48-48F0-B98F-615DB997DBEF

06/16/2023



From: Christine Hopper
To: Alexander Sywak
Subject: RE: City VMT policy
Date: Friday, June 16, 2023 9:09:33 AM
Attachments: image001.png

Mr. Sywak,

I am forwarding your email to the General Plan team so that they can add it to the list of questions received on the General
Plan. All comments are being documented and will be addressed in a consolidated document.

Thank you for your interest and participation in the process.

Christy Hopper

From: Alexander Sywak 
Sent: Friday, June 16, 2023 8:00 AM
To: Christine Hopper <christine.hopper@hollister.ca.gov>
Cc: Jennifer P. Thompson <jthompson@lozanosmith.com>; Ingrid Sywak <ingrid.sywak@gmail.com>; Planning Dept
<planning@hollister.ca.gov>; David Mirrione <david.mirrione@hollister.ca.gov>; Carol Lenoir <lbnricky@yahoo.com>; David 
Huboi <huboi@huboi.com>; Steven Belong <steve.belong@dc16sj.org>; Kevin Henderson <getkevinh@gmail.com>; Luke 
Corona <muledeer54@gmail.com>; David Early <dearly@placeworks.com>; Carey Stone <cstone@placeworks.com>
Subject: City VMT policy

Dear Ms. Hopper,  The PC is reviewing the EIR next Thursday.  An important component is the City's 
Transportation and VMT policy. 

Figure 4.16-2 references:  Source: Kimley Horn, 2020. PlaceWorks, 2023.   Kindly provide the link,  or .pdf?

Page 18, Section 4.16, footnote 6, references  City of Hollister. 2023. DRAFT SB 743 Implementation
Guidelines, March 14.  Kindly provide the link,  or .pdf?

You may know the City of San Jose next Tuesday will amend their VMT policy adopted February, 2018. 
One of their VMT mitigations is project density.  In essence, if a proposed project density is double the 1/2 
mile areage density, the project can be presumed to reduce its designated VMT by 30%.  Have attached
the page reference from CSJ's Transportation Handbook and the cited 2002 study.  Does the City of 
Hollister intend to include an equivalent mitigation as CSJ is adopting?

Thank you for providing the above info requests,

Ingrid and Alex Sywak




State of California – Natural Resources Agency  GAVIN NEWSOM, Governor 

DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND WILDLIFE  CHARLTON H. BONHAM, Director  

Central Region 
1234 East Shaw Avenue 
Fresno, California 93710 
(559) 243-4005 
www.wildlife.ca.gov 

Conserving California’s Wildlife Since 1870 

June 27, 2023 

Abraham Prado, Interim Development Services Director 
City of Hollister 
339 Fifth Street 
Hollister, California 95023 
(831) 636-4360 
abraham.prado@hollister.ca.gov 

Subject: Hollister General Plan Update 2040, Climate Action Plan, and Sphere of 
Influence Amendments and Annexations Program Draft Environmental 
Impact Report (DEIR) Project (Project) 
SCH No.: 2021040277 

Dear Abraham Prado: 

The California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) received a DEIR from the City 
of Hollister for the above-referenced Project pursuant to the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) and CEQA Guidelines.1 

Thank you for the opportunity to provide comments and recommendations regarding 
those activities involved in the Project that may affect California fish and wildlife. 
Likewise, CDFW appreciates the opportunity to provide comments regarding those 
aspects of the Project that CDFW, by law, may be required to carry out or approve 
through the exercise of its own regulatory authority under Fish and Game Code. 

CDFW ROLE 

CDFW is California’s Trustee Agency for fish and wildlife resources and holds those 
resources in trust by statute for all the people of the State (Fish & G. Code, §§ 711.7, 
subd. (a) & 1802; Pub. Resources Code, § 21070; CEQA Guidelines § 15386, 
subd. (a)). CDFW, in its trustee capacity, has jurisdiction over the conservation, 
protection, and management of fish, wildlife, native plants, and habitat necessary for 
biologically sustainable populations of those species (Id., § 1802). Similarly, for 
purposes of CEQA, CDFW is charged by law to provide, as available, biological 
expertise during public agency environmental review efforts, focusing specifically on 
projects and related activities that have the potential to adversely affect fish and wildlife 
resources. 

 
1 CEQA is codified in the California Public Resources Code in section 21000 et seq. The “CEQA 
Guidelines” are found in Title 14 of the California Code of Regulations, commencing with section 15000. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 4C0EBB65-1628-4AC1-A949-1816A1BD18B7



Abraham Prado, Interim Development Services Director 
City of Hollister   
June 27, 2023 
Page 2 

CDFW is also submitting comments as a Responsible Agency under CEQA (Pub. 
Resources Code, § 21069; CEQA Guidelines, § 15381). CDFW expects that it may 
need to exercise regulatory authority as provided by the Fish and Game Code. As 
proposed, for example, the Project may be subject to CDFW’s lake and streambed 
alteration regulatory authority (Fish & G. Code, § 1600 et seq.). Likewise, to the extent 
implementation of the Project as proposed may result in “take” as defined by State law 
of any species protected under the California Endangered Species Act (CESA) (Fish & 
G. Code, § 2050 et seq.), related authorization as provided by the Fish and Game Code 
will be required. 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION SUMMARY 

Proponent:  City of Hollister 

Objective: The existing General Plan for the City of Hollister (City) was adopted in 
2005, with a horizon year of 2023. The City is now updating its plan to extend the 
planning period to 2040. The Hollister General Plan Update will build off the current 
General Plan and provide a framework for land use, transportation, and conservation 
decisions through the year 2040. The proposed General Plan will direct future growth 
within the EIR Study Area and address the City’s vulnerability to environmental 
challenges such as earthquakes, wildland fires, and other hazards identified in the 
proposed Local Hazard Mitigation Plan and Climate Action Plan, which is to be 
completed concurrently with the General Plan Update. The General Plan is intended to 
respond to local and regional housing needs, foster economic growth and local job 
creation, enhance civic identity and placemaking, and protect sensitive natural 
resources. The proposed Climate Action Plan (CAP) will identify strategies and 
measures to reduce greenhouse gas emissions generated by existing and potential 
future uses in the City. The General Plan Update could potentially lead to Sphere of 
Influence amendments and annexations that would accommodate future housing sites 
and limited commercial development. 

Location: City of Hollister, San Benito County. 

Timeframe: 2040 

COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

Special-Status Species: Given the City-wide nature of the Project, there is the 
potential for the Project to impact State-listed species. Records from the California 
Natural Diversity Database (CNDDB) show that the following special-status species, 
including CESA-listed species (CDFW 2023) could be impacted: the State endangered 
(SE) and federally endangered (FE) San Joaquin kit fox (Vulpes macrotis mutica), the 
federally threatened (FT) vernal pool fairy shrimp (Branchinecta lynchi), the FT and 
State threatened (ST) California tiger salamander-central population (Ambystoma 
californiense), the State candidate-listed endangered (SCE) Crotch bumblebee 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 4C0EBB65-1628-4AC1-A949-1816A1BD18B7



Abraham Prado, Interim Development Services Director 
City of Hollister   
June 27, 2023 
Page 3 

(Bombus crotchii), the ST Swainson’s hawk (Buteo swainsoni) and tricolored blackbird 
(Agelauis tricolor), the FT and State species of special concern (SSC) California 
red-legged frog, the FT steelhead, south/central California coast (Oncorhynchus mykiss 
irideus), and the SSC burrowing owl (Athene cunicularia), western spadefoot (Spea 
hammondii), Monterey hitch (Lavinia exilicauda), western pond turtle (Emys 
marmorata), American badger (Taxidea taxus), and San Joaquin coachwhip 
(Masticophis flagellum ruddocki), and the 1B.2 plant rank (plants rare, threatened, or 
endangered in California and elsewhere) San Joaquin spearscale (Extriplex joaquinana) 
and Hall’s tarplant (Deinandra halliana). Along with the species listed above that have 
been observed within the Project limits, there was a 2021 sighting of the SE and FE 
California condor (Gymnogyps californianus) approximately two miles northeast of the 
proposed Project site near the John Smith Landfill, as well as a 2023 sighting of the fully 
protected (FP) golden eagle (Aquila chrysaetos) just north of the landfill site (CDFW 
2023). 

The primary purpose of a DEIR is to consider all the potential impacts associated with 
the suite of projects that would eventually tier from the EIR over time. As such, the DEIR 
should serve primarily as a planning level EIR and consider, in detail, the cumulative 
impacts of the reasonably foreseeable projects on the environment, and on the species 
CDFW has identified in this comment letter. CDFW recommends that habitat 
assessments be conducted in and surrounding all locations for planned work/ground 
disturbance in the DEIR and identify all the potential plant, animal, invertebrate, and fish 
species that could be present. Then, for those species, CDFW recommends a robust 
analysis of cumulative impacts for each of those species along with avoidance, 
minimization, and mitigation measures that could be implemented on each project to 
reduce harm. For many species, subsequent protocol level surveys may be required 
during biological studies conducted in support of the future CEQA documents that will 
be tiered from the Final EIR and, depending on the results, avoidance and minimization 
measures, permits, and mitigation may be required.  

CDFW recommends that survey-level protocols be conducted for these species as part 
of the biological technical studies prepared in support of each future CEQA document 
tiered from the Final EIR, with conclusions of those studies summarized therein and 
repeated as necessary prior to Project ground-disturbing activities. For all future 
projects tiered from the EIR, CDFW recommends that focused surveys be conducted by 
qualified biologists familiar with the appropriate survey protocols per individual species. 
In the future CEQA documents tiered from the EIR, CDFW advises that special status 
species be addressed with appropriate avoidance and minimization measures. If take 
could occur as a result of Project implementation, consultation with CDFW would be 
warranted. 

Cumulative Impacts: CDFW recommends that a cumulative impact analysis be 
conducted for all biological resources that will either be significantly or potentially 
significantly impacted by implementation of the Project, including those whose impacts 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 4C0EBB65-1628-4AC1-A949-1816A1BD18B7



Abraham Prado, Interim Development Services Director 
City of Hollister   
June 27, 2023 
Page 4 

are determined to be less than significant with mitigation incorporated or for those 
resources that are rare or in poor or declining health and will be impacted by the 
Project, even if those impacts are relatively small (i.e. less than significant). CDFW 
recommends cumulative impacts be analyzed using an acceptable methodology to 
evaluate the impacts of past, present, and reasonably foreseeable future projects on 
resources and be focused specifically on the resource, not the Project. An appropriate 
resource study area identified and utilized for this analysis is advised. CDFW staff is 
available for consultation in support of cumulative impacts analyses as a trustee and 
responsible agency under CEQA and we recommend that the City reach out to CDFW 
to discuss various methodologies and strategies for an analysis of this type for CDFW 
trustee agency resources. 

CNDDB: Please note that the CNDDB is populated by and records voluntary 
submissions of species detections. As a result, species may be present in locations not 
depicted in the CNDDB but where there is suitable habitat and features capable of 
supporting species. A lack of an occurrence record in the CNDDB does not mean a 
species is not present. In order to adequately assess any potential Project-related 
impacts to biological resources, surveys conducted by a qualified biologist during the 
appropriate survey period(s) and using the appropriate protocol survey methodology are 
warranted in order to determine whether or not any special status species are present at 
or near the Project area. 

Lake and Stream Alteration: The Projects that tier from the EIR may be subject to 
CDFW’s regulatory authority pursuant to Fish and Game Code section 1600 et seq. 
Fish and Game Code section 1602 requires the project proponent to notify CDFW prior 
to commencing any activity that may (a) substantially divert or obstruct the natural flow 
of any river, stream, or lake; (b) substantially change or use any material from the bed, 
bank, or channel of any river, stream, or lake; or (c) deposit debris, waste or other 
materials that could pass into any river, stream, or lake. “Any river, stream, or lake” 
includes those that are ephemeral or intermittent as well as those that are perennial in 
nature. For additional information on notification requirements, please contact our staff 
in the LSA Program at (559) 243-4593, or R4LSA@wildlife.ca.gov. 

Federally Listed Species: CDFW recommends consulting with the United States Fish 
and Wildlife Service (USFWS) on potential impacts to federally listed species including, 
but not limited to, the San Joaquin kit fox, the vernal pool fairy shrimp, the California 
tiger salamander, the California red-legged frog, and the south/central California coast 
steelhead. Take under the Federal Endangered Species Act (FESA) is more broadly 
defined than CESA; take under FESA also includes significant habitat modification or 
degradation that could result in death or injury to a listed species by interfering with 
essential behavioral patterns such as breeding, foraging, or nesting. Consultation with 
the USFWS in order to comply with FESA is advised well in advance of any 
ground-disturbing activities. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 4C0EBB65-1628-4AC1-A949-1816A1BD18B7



Abraham Prado, Interim Development Services Director 
City of Hollister   
June 27, 2023 
Page 5 

CDFW is available to meet with you ahead of Final EIR preparation to discuss potential 
impacts and possible mitigation measures for some or all of the resources that were or 
should be analyzed in the EIR. If you have any questions, please contact Kelley Nelson, 
Environmental Scientist, at the address provided on this letterhead, by telephone at 
(559) 580-3194, or by electronic mail at Kelley.Nelson@wildlife.ca.gov. 

Sincerely, 

Julie A. Vance 
Regional Manager 

ec: United States Fish and Wildlife Service 
Patricia Cole; patricia_cole@fws.gov 

State Clearinghouse, Governor’s Office of Planning and Research 
State.Clearinghouse@opr.ca.gov  

California Department of Fish and Wildlife 
CDFW LSA/1600; R4LSA@wildlife.ca.gov 
Kelley Nelson; Kelley.Nelson@wildlife.ca.gov 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 4C0EBB65-1628-4AC1-A949-1816A1BD18B7



Abraham Prado, Interim Development Services Director 
City of Hollister   
June 27, 2023 
Page 6 

LITERATURE CITED 

California Department of Fish and Wildlife. 2023. Biogeographic Information and 
Observation System (BIOS).  https://www.wildlife.ca.gov/Data/BIOS. Accessed 
May 17, 2023. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 4C0EBB65-1628-4AC1-A949-1816A1BD18B7



 

 

1220 Monterey Street 
Hollister, CA 95023 

Phone (831) 637-5831 x 132 
           www.sbhs.sbhsd.org 

       
Dr. Shawn Tennenbaum 

Superintendent 

June 30, 2023 

City of Hollister 

Development Services Department – Planning Division 

ATTN: Eva Kelly, Interim Planning Manager 

339 Fifth Street 

Hollister, CA 95023 

generalplan@hollister.ca.gov 

 

Re: Hollister General Plan Update 2040, Climate Action Plan, and Agricultural Lands 

Preservation Program (SCH# 2021040277) (“Project”) 

Comments on the “Hollister GP 2040, CAP, and ALPP EIR” and Project 

Dear Ms. Kelly: 

This letter is submitted to the City of Hollister (“City”) on behalf of the San Benito High School 

District (“District”) and its governing board concerning our review and assessment of both 

(1) the proposed General Plan Update 2040, Climate Action Plan, and Agricultural Lands 

Preservation Program (collectively, the “Project”), and (2) the City’s Draft Environmental 

Impact Report (“DEIR”) prepared for the Project.   

As a California public school district serving children who reside and attend school within the 

City and the Planning Area defined in the General Plan and DEIR, and as an owner of both a 

school site within the City’s limits and Sphere of Influence, as well as a second property within 

the Urban Service Area and Planning Area set forth in Figure 3-2 of the DEIR, the proposed 

Project affects resources within the District’s expertise. Accordingly, we submit these 

comments to the City to ensure that the serious impacts of current and future growth from 

now through 2040 on our District and the families we serve are heard and meaningfully 

addressed with decisive policies to guide future growth.   

In accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (Pub. Res. Code, §21000, et seq., 

hereinafter “CEQA”) and its interpreting regulations (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 14, §15000, 

hereinafter “CEQA Guidelines”), the District looks forward to receiving the City’s written 

responses to these comments at least 10 days before certifying a final environmental impact 

report (“EIR”) for the Project.  (CEQA Guidelines, §15088(b); Pub. Res. Code, §21092.5.)      

A. Comments on Hollister General Plan Update 2024, Climate Action Plan, and 

Agricultural Lands Preservation Program (“Project”) 

The self-described purpose of the City in adopting an updated General Plan is to “direct and 

coordinate future planning decisions . . . [the General Plan] also describes the desired 

character and quality of development, and the process for how development should proceed.” 

(2040 General Plan, Section 1.1).  Finding itself under continuing development pressure, 

noting “severe constraints on the city’s infrastructure” resulting from development, the City 



 

 

clearly must adopt a set of guiding principles so that future development improves and 

protects the quality of life in Hollister, rather than imperiling or diminishing it. 

Our District’s goals are aligned with many of the values expressed in the General Plan, and 

while the District operates only partially within the City’s jurisdiction, the City’s policies and 

actions dramatically affect the lives of our students. Our District has been deeply and 

negatively affected by the pace of such approvals by the City in the past five years. Thus, it 

is our expectation that the City will follow through on the 2040 General Plan goals that seek 

to protect and amplify the needs of families and how they receive public education services 

in Hollister.   

The General Plan makes clear that the City projects the addition of 6,455 new dwelling units, 

1.1 million new square feet of commercial and office space, and 2.8 million feet of new 

industrial space (General Plan, Section 3.6, Policy LU-1.3).  

Based on these growth projections, the General Plan goals and policies affect the District in 

two ways: 

• First, development brings additional families to Hollister, creating the need for 

additional classrooms, support facilities and expanded capacity to be provided by 

school districts. Using current student enrollment projection models applied solely to 

the residential development projections of the General Plan, we anticipate a need to 

house and educate up to 2,100 new students. This does not include students coming 

from development beyond City boundaries within the County of San Benito that must 

also be housed and educated by our District; and  

• Second, development affects the conditions on and around existing school facilities, 

including Hollister High School and future sites within and outside City limits, such as 

traffic congestion, circulation, parking, noise, air quality and other conditions. 

Our specific comments on the General Plan/Project include the following: 

1. Community Services and Facilities Element – Schools (2040 General Plan 

Section 5.2.7) 

We appreciate that the City invited us to contribute to the General Plan Advisory Committee 

process in 2021. We remain generally in support of all of the proposed new goals and policies 

included within the General Plan in support of schools, including those in Section 5.2 of the 

Community Services and Facilities Element, as follows: 

• Goal CSF-1, Policy CSF-1.3 and 1.4; and 

• Goal CSF-7, Policies CSF-7.1-7.5.   

Respectfully, however, we request an amendment to Goals CSF-7.1 and 7.5, as follows:    

“Policy CSF-7.1 New School Funding Initiatives. Consider incentives, such as 

density bonuses and waiver or reductions of development standards, when a proposed 

project voluntarily provides school fee contributions beyond their fair share statutory 

school impact fees for new school facilities (new).” 

“Policy CSF-7.5 Construction of a Second High School. Support the San Benito 

High School District’s efforts to site, develop and construct a new high school, including 



 

 

approving connection of school parcels within any City Planning Area, Urban Service 

Area, Sphere of Influence or City limits to City’s municipal service infrastructure and 

systems.” 

Finally, we request that every policy be supported by specific City actions created to ensure 

that these policies are realized.   

Specifically: 

o In support of Policy CSF-7.1, we request that the City add an action that 

mandates that a list of development incentives to be achieved in exchange for 

voluntary mitigation agreements in excess of school impact fees be presented 

these developers at the earliest possible point in the development process. 

o In support of Policy CSF-7.2, we request that the City add an action requiring 

City participation in an intergovernmental committee comprised of school 

districts, City officials and County officials to ensure that coordination of 

development occurs as identified. 

o In support of Policy CSF-7.3, we request that the City add an action that 

requires every developer to participate in a mandatory meeting with the District 

to discuss (voluntary) mitigation options, as a condition of receiving project 

approval. Mitigation options can offer numerous benefits to developers. 

o In support of Policy CSF-7.5, we request that the City add an action requiring 

the Sphere of Influence be extended to include our school parcel located on 

Best Road. 

We are available to consult with you further regarding other ideas for how the City can support 

these General Plan goals and policies with specific actions, but robust follow-through on these 

new policies is warranted.  

2. Requested Additions to General Plan – Land Use and Community Design 

Element (Section 3) 

As noted in our letter to the City dated April 24, 2023, we seek the City’s support in including 

goals and policies within the General Plan that provide for the reservation of land pursuant to 

Government Code Section 66479 (see Hollister Municipal Code, §16.48) within identified 

Planning Areas and Specific Plans so that we can be assured that appropriate, developable 

land is identified and set aside for future high school use before it may be developed for other 

purposes.   

In particular, the District seeks the reservation of 50-70 acres within the Buena Vista Road 

Special Planning Area and the Union Road Special Planning Area based upon current projected 

patterns of growth in enrollment, without regard to preservation of an agricultural “buffer” as 

contemplated for the Buena Vista Special Planning Area in the General Plan. This formal 

reservation will ensure that as development occurs in these areas, our District has the ability 

to secure future new school sites in these regions as part of the planning and development 

process.  

We defer to the City as to the most appropriate way to include these land reservations within 

Section 3 of the General Plan. When and if Specific Plans are required for each of these 

planning areas, the school site reservations must be included. 



 

 

B. Comments on Draft EIR 

Because general plans govern the type and location of new development, CEQA and its 

interpreting regulations require cities and counties to study potential environmental impacts 

as part of the adoption or update process. (Pub. Res. Code, § 21000, et seq.; see also CEQA 

Guidelines, §15378.) When a new general plan or revision is being considered, the EIR must 

evaluate the proposed plans or revision’s effects on both the existing physical environment 

and the environment envisioned by any adopted plan. (Environmental Planning and 

Information Council v. Co. of El Dorado (1982) 131 Cal.App.3d 354; CEQA Guidelines 

§15125(e).)  Under CEQA and its Guidelines, an EIR must set forth all significant effects on 

the environment of the proposed project, as well as mitigation measures proposed to minimize 

significant effects on the environment, and alternatives to the proposed project.  An EIR must 

“present information in such a manner that the foreseeable impacts of pursing the project 

can actually be understood and weighed.”  (Vineyard Area Citizens for Responsible Growth, 

Inc. v. City of Ranch Cordova (2007) 40 Cal.4th 412, 449-450.) 

1. Notice of Availability 

The Notice of Availability (“NOA”) for the DEIR issued by the City is dated May 17, 2023, 

however it was not received by the District until June 6, 2023.  As a result, the District has 

not been provided with the full 45-day review and comment period required under CEQA and 

the CEQA Guidelines.  

2. Project Description – Planning Boundaries and EIR Study Area (Section 3.4) 

• Inconsistency in Planning Areas. In general, there appear to be inconsistencies 

between the existing City Limits, Sphere of Influence, and Planning Area 

boundaries depicted in the proposed 2040 General Plan (Figure LU-2, p. LU-7) and 

DEIR (Figure 3-2, Figure 3-4) in comparison with the City Limits, Sphere of 

Influence, and Planning Area boundaries set forth in the City’s current General Plan 

(City of Hollister 2005 General Plan, p. 2.3).  Please clarify where the existing 

boundaries are located and explain any discrepancies.  

• Urban Service Area and Planning Area. By definition, development in the Planning 

Area “may have an impact on the City” (DEIR, p. 3-6; 2040 GP, p. LU-2), whereas 

development in the Urban Service Area to which the City provides access to 

municipal water and sewer services “directly influence[s] development planning 

and decision making in Hollister.” (2040 General Plan, p. LU-2.)  As the owner of 

property located within both the Urban Service Area and Planning Area that will 

need to be connected to the City’s municipal service infrastructure and systems, 

and as the public high school district that will serve students residing in these 

areas, the District has an interest in how the 2040 General Plan will guide 

development and future service connections in these areas.   

o The Urban Service Area and Planning Area depicted in the DEIR and 2040 

General Plan appear to be incomplete.  For example, during its June 20, 

2023 meeting, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2023-133 

concerning a Wastewater Treatment Services Agreement between the City 

and San Juan Oaks Mutual Water Company with respect to sewer service 

for a development project known as the San Juan Oaks project (“San Juan 

Oaks”).  According to Resolution No. 2023-133, as well as Resolution No. 

2015-232, dated December 21, 2015, San Juan Oaks is “located within the 

unincorporated area of San Benito County and outside the City of Hollister 



 

 

Sphere of Influence and within the Urban Service Area.”  Per the Mayor’s 

Meeting Report Out, dated June 21, 2023 (see attached), the sewer 

connections were approved in 2016. However, San Juan Oaks is not 

included within the Urban Service Area nor the Planning Area depicted in 

Figure LU-1 on page LU-4 of the 2040 General Plan and on Figure 3-2 of 

the DEIR.  Because the City circulated the NOP for the EIR for the proposed 

Project on April 9, 2021, San Juan Oaks should be included in the Urban 

Service Area and Planning Area. (DEIR, p. 1-2.)  The boundaries of the 

Urban Service Area and Planning Area need to be revised to include all areas 

fitting within the “Planning Area” and “Urban Service Area” definitions.    

o The DEIR explains that the Urban Service Area and Planning Area are 

excluded from the EIR Study Area because “lands outside of the SOI are 

not considered for urban development or annexation by the City within the 

20-year planning horizon of the proposed 2040 General Plan.”  (DEIR, 3-6.)  

However, known development is occurring within the Urban Service Area 

and Planning Area, and will be connected to the City’s municipal service 

infrastructure and systems.  It is unclear why such known and anticipated 

pockets of development are not included in the EIR Study Area.   

o Similarly, the proposed 2040 General Plan includes goals, policies, and 

actions that specifically concern the City’s Urban Service Area and Planning 

Area, and such goals, policies, and actions are relied on throughout the 

DEIR in reaching the conclusion that environmental impacts of the Project 

would be less than significant, thus it is unclear why the City’s Urban Service 

Area and Planning Area are not included in the EIR Study Area. For example, 

the DEIR concludes that proposed 2040 General Plan goals, policies, and 

actions “would minimize potential adverse impacts of future growth.” (DEIR, 

4.14-7.)  One of the goals relied on to mitigate impacts is Goal LU-1 (Goal 

LU6 of the current 2005 General Plan), which states: “Promote orderly and 

balanced growth within Hollister’s planning area boundaries.”  (Id.) Such 

conclusions lack support if the City’s Urban Service Area and Planning Area 

are excluded from the EIR Study Area analyzed in the DEIR.                

• Sphere of Influence:  As noted above, we are requesting that the City take action 

to extend its Sphere of Influence to include our property located on Best Road and 

Highway 25. Accordingly, we believe that the EIR Study Area should include that 

additional territory and any necessary adjustments be made to the DEIR.  

3. Public Services and Recreation/Schools (Section 4.15.3) 

• We note some factual misstatements and conclusions in the impact analysis that 

we request be corrected and addressed in the EIR: 

o Page 4.15-25: In the discussion of Hollister Municipal Code regarding school 

site dedication, the referenced sections apply only to elementary school 

districts. This option is not available to the District, and thus Hollister Municipal 

Code 16.48 should be referenced for the proposition that land for high school 

sites could be reserved in accordance with those provisions. As noted above, 

we are requesting school site reservation in accordance with applicable laws. 

As a result, the discussion of this issue on page 4.15-30 must be updated. 



 

 

o Table 4.15-1: This table of enrollment data is significantly out of date given the 

rapid enrollment growth we are experiencing, and thus it seems to suggest that 

we have capacity at Hollister High School. That is unequivocally incorrect. 

Please update this table to include 2022-23 enrollment and/or projected 2023-

24 enrollment.  Our 2022-23 enrollment is 3,567 students and our projected 

2023-24 enrollment is approximate 3,650 students. 

• The District reiterates and incorporates by reference in our DEIR comments all of 

the comments made on the General Plan in Section A above, since the DEIR relies 

on the General Plan policies and goals to address concerns with school capacity 

created by future growth. To the extent the General Plan is adjusted per our 

comments, the DEIR should also be adjusted.  (See DEIR, p 4.15-31). 

4. Transportation (Section 4.16) 

• General Plan Policies C-4.1 and C-4.5 recognize that the intersection of San Benito 

Street and Nash Road/Tres Pinos functions at a level of service below that which is 

expected at all other intersections in the City (LOS D). This location is the only 

intersection specifically identified within the General Plan for this designation. The 

intersection, which lies directly east of Hollister High School, is a critical access 

point for vehicles, pedestrians, and bicyclists for school trips. Rather than 

identifying the location as a point of transportation failure, the General Plan should 

identify improvements that would allow the intersection to function in a manner 

consistent with the rest of the Cty’s infrastructure. Improvements could be 

developed in coordination with the District and could include modifications at the 

intersection and/or improvements to parallel routes. 

• The DEIR identifies that implementation of the General Plan would result in 

significant and unavoidable impacts related to Vehicle Miles Traveled, for which 

mitigation cannot be identified. As detailed in Table 4.16-1 (VMT by Land Use and 

Scenario) of the DEIR, in the year 2040 Plus Project scenario, the General Plan 

would result in significant impacts related to residential VMT per Capita, office VMT 

per Employee, and other use VMT per Employee. For both office VMT per Employee 

and other use VMT per employee, the General Plan increases VMT per capita in the 

year 2040 scenario. This is indicative of a land use plan that encourages 

development in portions of the city that are less VMT efficient. The General Plan 

should consider encouraging development in infill portions of the City that would 

yield more positive VMT outcomes. The continued expansion of the City into less 

efficient areas from a transportation perspective will only exacerbate overly 

congested conditions in and around the District’s schools. If these plans are 

approved and pursued, the City should work with the District to improve access to 

existing school facilities for automobiles, pedestrians, buses, and bicycles. 

• The DEIR includes a new goal and associated policies and actions directly related 

to District planning and operations. The following comments are provided to ensure 

the new policies allow for efficient implementation to meet the related General Plan 

goals while considering the responsibilities of the local districts as Lead Agencies 

under CEQA.  Specifically, under Goal C-1, to provide for a healthy and active 

community based on complete streets, the DEIR introduces Policy C-1.9 Local 

Schools. The District appreciates the inclusion of the provision to coordinate with 

local school districts to improve transportation to new sites. The District requests 

the following revision to ensure maximum efficiency in complete streets planning 

around schools:  



 

 

o “During the initial stages of identifying transportation improvement priorities, 

coordinate with local school districts to improve bicycle, pedestrian, and traffic 

flow around school sites.”  

This requested revision is vital to address existing issues within the transportation 

network surrounding the current Hollister High School such as the poor level of 

service identified in the DEIR at the intersection of San Benito Street and Nash 

Road/Tres Pinos.  Similarly, Action C-1.4: Safe Routes to School should include the 

same requirements as C-1.9 to “coordinate with local school districts” to fund and 

implement the Safe Routes to School improvements.   

Including the school districts as a planning and operational partner for 

transportation planning within the City is vital to ensuring General Plan goals, 

policies, and actions are implemented in a strategic manner improving circulation 

within the City while ensuring access to a quality education for the community 

served by the District. 

• The District understands that the City recently submitted a U.S. Department of 

Transportation Safe Streets and Roads for All Implementation Grant application 

with respect to traffic safety and roadway improvements near two elementary 

schools located in Hollister.  The District is similarly interested in partnering with 

the City and the County to seek a federal grant from this program to fund traffic 

safety and roadway improvements surrounding Hollister High School, which is 

located within City Limits and the Sphere of Influence. These improvements are 

consistent with the proposed 2040 General Plan goals, policies set forth in the 

Circulation Element, including, without limitation, Goals C-1, C-3, and C-4, Policies 

C-1.2, C-3.1, C-3.2, C-3.3, C-3.4, C-3.5, C-3.6, C-4.1, and C-4.7, and Actions C-

3.2, C-3.4, as well as in the Health and Safety Element, including Goal HS-1.  The 

District seeks a commitment from the City to seek funding for, and implement, 

traffic safety and roadway improvements around Hollister High School.   

5. Hazards and Hazardous Materials (Section 4.9) 

• Pursuant to the CEQA Guidelines, the EIR must describe the existing physical 

environmental conditions as they exist when the Notice of Preparation (“NOP”) is 

published in order for the project’s significant impacts to be considered in the full 

environmental context.  (CEQA Guidelines, §15125(a)&(c).) The DEIR and the NOA 

include a “Hazardous Materials/Waste Disclosure”, which states: “A search of the 

online databases on May 1, 2020, identified four EnviroStor sites that have not 

been full remediated or closed.” (NOA, p.2; EIR, p. 4.9-11.) However, according to 

the DEIR, the City circulated the NOP for the EIR for the proposed Project on April 

9, 2021. (DEIR, p. 1-2.)  Therefore, the information provided in the NOA and EIR 

is outdated and does not satisfy baseline condition requirements under CEQA.  

Please provide a timely list and location of active cleanup sites.    

• The location of the District’s “San Benito High School Modernization Project” clean-

up appears to be inaccurate or mislabeled on Figure 4.9-1. Clean-up of this site is 

anticipated to commence in the Fall. 

6. Alternatives (Section 5) 

• An EIR must present “a reasonable range of potentially feasible alternatives” to the 

project or its location, as is necessary to permit a reasoned choice, and describe 



 

 

the rationale for selecting the alternatives.  (CEQA Guidelines, §15126.6(a), (b) & 

(f).) With respect to a general plan, a reasonable range of alternatives would 

typically include different levels of density and compactness, different locations and 

types of uses for future development, and different general plan policies.  Here, 

the alternatives considered in the DEIR are (a) manifestly unreasonable, and (b) 

do not contribute to a reasonable range of alternatives.  

o Alternative A, the “No Project” alternative, and Alternative B, the “Focused 

Growth” alternative, are impracticable, unreasonable, and would be impossible 

to achieve:   

▪ As set forth in the 2040 General Plan and DEIR, a 56 percent increase 

in total population and 58 percent increase in housing units over the 20-

year horizon is estimated in the EIR Study Area by 2040. (DEIR, 4.14-

6.)  This does not include estimated housing and population increases 

in the City’s Urban Service Area or Planning Area.  Yet Alternative A 

“assumes that development growth throughout the city would remain 

unchanged until the buildout horizon year 2040” (DEIR, p. 5-6), while 

Alternative B unreasonably assumes that the population and number of 

housing units would both double by more than half within the same 

footprint as the 5,220-acre City Limits and 1,817-acre Sphere of 

Influence. (DEIR, pp. 5-20 & 3-3.)  For these reasons, Alternative A is 

unreasonable, while Alternative B is impracticable.   

▪ In reaching the conclusions that Alternative B would be the 

environmentally superior alternative, the DEIR fails to consider the 

cumulative impacts of Alternative B, and unreasonably assumes that, 

by encouraging more development and redevelopment within existing 

City Limits, development will cease outside the current Sphere of 

Influence.  (See DEIR, p. 5-31.)  However, San Benito County has been 

one of the fastest growing populations in California over the last three 

decades,1 and as discussed above, known development will continue to 

occur outside City boundaries within the City’s Urban Service Area and 

Planning Area, and such developments will continue to be connected to 

the City’s municipal service infrastructure and systems.            

▪ In concluding that impacts under Alternative B would be similar to those 

of the proposed Project, the DEIR inconsistently states that Alternative 

B “would allow for the same level of residential and nonresidential 

development in the EIR Study Area through 2040.” (DEIR, p. 5-28.) 

However, the EIR Study Area includes the proposed Sphere of Influence 

expansion area, which is expressly excluded under Alternative B.   

(DEIR, p. 5-20.)  Accordingly, this conclusion isn’t supported by the 

evidence, further illustrating that Alternative B would be impossible to 

achieve.     

For these reasons, both Alternatives are infeasible. 

                                           
1 BenitoLink, “Hollister 2040 General Plan: City Aims to Solve Future Traffic Congestion” 

(May 18, 2023), available at: https://benitolink.com/hollister-2040-general-plan-city-aims-

to-solve-future-traffic-congestion/. 

 



 

 

o The District requests that the City consider a third alternative, which shall be 

referred to herein as “Alternative C”, the “Concentrated Buildout” alternative.  

Similar to the proposed Project, under Alternative C, the Hollister Municipal 

Code would be amended to add the proposed ALPP, and likewise would adopt 

the proposed 2023 CAP to serve as the strategic plan for how the City will 

reduce GHG emissions and foster a sustainable community through 2050 and 

beyond. However, we recommend that Alternative C further expand the 

General Plan’s proposed Sphere of Influence to include concentrated areas of 

planned or anticipated development within the City’s Planning Area that will be 

serviced by the City, including if it is reasonably foreseeable or anticipated that 

such development will be serviced by the City. Including such an alternative 

would foster informed decision-making and public participation because it 

would meet most of the stated objectives and would provide significant 

environmental advantages.  

• An EIR should identify any alternatives that were considered but rejected as 

infeasible during the scoping process, and briefly explain the reasons underlying 

such determination. (CEQA Guidelines, §15126.6(b).)  Such discussion is absent 

from the DEIR.     

• The District requests clarification with respect to Alternative B’s scope: 

o The DEIR contains an inconsistent description of the proposed Sphere of 

Influence under Alternative B.  Specifically, the DEIR states, “Alternative B 

would not propose to change the SOI as described in Chapter 3, Project 

Description, but instead would maintain the current Hollister SOI.” (DEIR, pp. 

5-20 – 5-21.)  However, in the same paragraph concerning Alternative B, the 

DEIR inconsistently provides: “As shown on Figure 3-7, Existing and Proposed 

Sphere of Influence, in Chapter 3, the proposed SOI would extend further north 

and south of the existing SOI, but would remain contiguous with the existing 

SOI border to the east and west.” (DEIR, p. 5-21.)  Figure 3-7 shows the 

proposed Sphere of Influence with the Project as proposed, but does not show 

the proposed Sphere of Influence under Alternative B.  Moreover, while Figure 

3-7 shows a proposed extension south of the existing Sphere of Influence, it 

does not depict a proposed north extension.  Please clarify the proposed Sphere 

of Influence boundaries under: (i) the proposed Project; and (ii) Alternative B.  

o The DEIR is silent on whether Alternative B includes adoption of the proposed 

2023 CAP and a Zoning amendment to add the proposed ALPP to the Hollister 

Municipal Code.   

C. Request for Notice 

Pursuant to Public Resources Code sections 21080.4, 21083.9, 21092, 21108, and/or 21152, 

as well as Government Code sections 65090 and/or 65091, please provide me with a copy of 

any future notices issued for the proposed Project.   

D. Summary 

The San Benito High School District is the sole provider of regular high school education 

services to families in Hollister and has a 100+-year history of providing excellent service to 

the community.  However, quality education services are threatened by anticipated growth if 

we are unable to address the health, safety, and capacity impacts of that growth. 



 

 

As stated in previous correspondence to the City, as well as in recent presentations made to 

City officials, the District’s school facilities are currently operating over capacity, and as 

projects continue to get approved, the demand for new school facilities continues to increase. 

The District looks forward to the City’s cooperation and collaboration in addressing these 

deficiencies to ensure the continued high quality of life in the City and education in its schools.  

In accordance with CEQA Guidelines, section 15204(d), please be advised that I, Shawn 

Tennenbaum, am the contact person for the District who is available for consultation on the 

District’s behalf.  My contact information is provided below. 

Very truly yours, 

 

 

Shawn Tennenbaum, Ed.D. 

Superintendent 

San Benito High School District 

(831) 637-5831 (x133) 

stennenbaum@sbhsd.k12.ca.us 

 

cc:  Members, San Benito High School District Board of Trustees 

 John Frusetta, Chief Business Officer, San Benito High School District 

 



1

From: San Benito County Business Council <kristina@sbcbusinesscouncil.com> 
Date: Wed, Jun 21, 2023 at 3:13 PM 
Subject: June 21, 2023 Hollister City Council Report Out from Mayor Mia Casey 
To: San Benito County Business Council <kristina@sbcbusinesscouncil.com> 
 

Good afternoon. 
 
Below is Hollister Mayor Mia Casey's report out of last night's City Council meeting.  
Thank you, Mayor. 
 
To review the meeting agenda, agenda packet and video, please 
see http://hollisterca.iqm2.com/Citizens/Calendar.aspx 
...  
CITY COUNCIL MEETING REPORT OUT FOR JUNE 21, 2023:  
 
We had standing room only last night in part because we were honoring the Baler Baseball and Softball teams 
with proclamations in recognition of their excellent seasons! 
 
I also want to highlight the 3 sewer items before us last night, and to be clear about what was discussed and 
voted on so people have correct information, since there has been a good deal of political spin happening: 
 
1) Sewer System Report and Request for Direction 
Our director William Via did an assessment and reported out to us some issues with our sewer plant that 
needed repair and upgrade.  Back in 2016, 2 of the 4 "membranes" that process waste were upgraded/replaced, 
but unfortunately these new membranes cannot work alongside the 2 older membranes, which actually caused 
our waste capacity to go down from 4MGD (4 million gallons per day) to only 3.4MGD. Also, those 2 older 
membranes have a lifespan of about 15 years, and they are about 15 years old. So the staff had recommended 
replacing them. 
 
The cost is I believe in the $2-3M range. There is a specific sewer expansion fund, which has collected sewer 
impact fees from developers over the years, with about $27M in it. Those funds are earmarked specifically to 
cover these kinds of costs. So there is no impact to the City's general fund on this. Council gave direction to do 
the repairs/upgrades. This also increases our capacity to keep us in compliance with state so we don't get above 
the 90% level. There was also discussion at the request of one council member to not repair the equipment and 
instead do a moratorium but the majority of council (vote 4-1) opted to take care of our infrastructure and keep 
it in good repair. 
 
The other thing discussed, and which council has requested more info on is updating our bio-solids processing. 
Currently, there is an older system that processes waste and presses out the water and then it is hauled off to 
the landfill. If we can upgrade this system we can turn waste into compost, which is environmentally friendly, 
and will also allow us to divert that waste from the landfill, which is important given our landfill issues! 
 
2) San Juan Bautista sewer connection 



2

The city of San Juan Bautista has an emergency situation and the state and the EPA have intervened and they 
needed sewer access. Last year an agreement was made by Mayor Velazquez and council to allow the sewer 
connection. An agreement was presented last night which detailed the terms, and the Council pushed back on 
the flow rate that would be allowed, and  approved the agreement with that reduced amount language included.  
 
3) San Juan Oaks project 
This is an older project from 2016. This sewer connection was unanimously approved by Mayor Velazquez and 
council in 2016. LAFCO also gave approval, and the City Manager gave a 'will-serve' letter to San Juan Oaks. 
So the approvals were all made back in 2016. Now that the project is under construction and the sewer 
connections are ready to be made, they brought us the maintenance/service agreement for approval. If this had 
not been approved and the City had tried to renege on the earlier approvals for connection given in 2016, we 
would have faced significant legal exposure that would have been very harmful for the city. So the council 
approved the agreement with a 4-1 vote. 
 
Please let me know if you have any questions. 
 
Mayor Mia Casey 
cohmayor.casey@hollister.ca.gov 
(831) 537-7271 
... 
Please feel free to contact me with any questions and/or further information. 
 
Thank you! 
Kristina 
Kristina Chavez Wyatt 
Executive Director, San Benito County Business Council 
341 First Street Hollister, CA 95023 
831.524.0408 / 831.637.6637 fax 
Kristina@SBCBusinessCouncil.com 
SBCBusinessCouncil.com 
Please consider the environment before printing this email. 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the DANNIS WOLIVER KELLEY organization. Do not click links or open attachments 
unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. Never open unsolicited email links or attachments you did not ask for. 

 



































































































































From: Ambur Cameron
To: Carey Stone; David Early
Cc: Eva Kelly; Christine Hopper
Subject: FW: Comments on the April 2023 draft General Plan Update - Proposed Minimum Density for Mixed Use Zoning

Districts
Date: Monday, May 15, 2023 1:04:43 PM
Attachments: HollisterPolicyOptionsMemo 30521.pdf

PolicyOpt AppendixC 30521.pdf

Good afternoon Carey & David,
 
Please see Mr. Shahinian’s email below regarding the City of Hollister’s Draft 2040 General Plan
Update.
 
Thank you,
 
Ambur

Get Involved In Community Planning!
General Plan Update Hollister2040.org|generalplan@hollister.ca.gov
 
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPT. REGULAR PUBLIC HOURS
Monday – Thursday       8:30a - 12:00p, 1:00p - 4:30p
Friday – Sunday              CLOSED
 
ALL Planning Applications require an appointment with a City Planner for submittal.
 
From: Lee Shahinian  
Sent: Monday, May 15, 2023 11:56 AM
To: GeneralPlan <generalplan@hollister.ca.gov>
Cc: Eva Kelly <eva.kelly@hollister.ca.gov>
Subject: Comments on the April 2023 draft General Plan Update - Proposed Minimum Density for
Mixed Use Zoning Districts
 
Good morning,
 
My family owns the 4.65 acres in downtown Hollister on which Republic Urban Properties (RUP) is proposing a
mixed-use development.  On behalf of the Shahinian family, I would like to voice our strong support for this project
under consideration by the City of Hollister.  
 
During the 35 years that we have owned this land in downtown Hollister, many buyers have approached us, but
typically they were only interested in developing a corner lot for fast food.  Our site has remained vacant along the
City’s major downtown corridor for far too long.  Republic’s high-density infill project, including live-work units
along San Felipe, appears to be aligned with the City’s housing requirements and their desire to keep Hollister
residents in Hollister. 
 



Reviewing the April 2023 General Plan 2040 draft, my family and RUP were pleased to see the mixed-use zoning
for our property.  However, the required minimum of 30 du/acre would render RUP’s proposed project non-
conforming.  From the outset, RUP has designed their high-density mixed-use infill project for our property to
conform with the attached GPA documents, which propose a minimum of 20 du/acre for our property.  
 
Furthermore, RUP has explained to me that going from 20 du/acre to 30 du/acre makes their project no longer
financially feasible, because construction costs per unit are much higher for 30 du/acre than for 20 du/acre.     
My family hopes you will modify the April 2023 General Plan Draft to allow mixed use with a minimum of 20
du/acre for our property.  This will allow RUP to move forward with their development.
 
Thank you for your consideration.
 
Sincerely,
Lee Shahinian, Jr.
Managing Owner

 



June 25th, 2023 
 
To: David Mirrione, Christine Hopper, Hollister Planning Department 
From: G.W. Devon Pack, (former) San Benito County Planning Commissioner 
RE: Hollister 2040 General Plan Comments 
 
 
 I am writing today to provide my official comments with regards to the proposed 

Hollister 2040 General Plan.  

 Hollister should consider reviewing the proposed agricultural zoning built around the city 

limits, as that is contrary to statewide prohibitions on new urban growth boundaries, is counter-

productive to meeting Hollister’s housing production needs, and is contrary to the principles of 

transit-oriented development, which suggests that there should be further development along key 

transit corridors and arteries. In particular, I urge the Hollister City Council to retain elements of 

the older General Plan with regards to the Buena Vista Road area. Under the older plan, this 

region within the city’s sphere of influence would be developed as low density residential (R1). I 

recommend retaining that element, as it would be consistent with both earlier versions of the 

Hollister general plan, allow for affordable housing development, and would provide balance and 

equity to the exist developments of Santana Ranch and San Juan Oaks. 

 One positive trend in the draft General Plan is that of encouraging higher and denser 

mixed use buildings in the urban core. In discussing the general plan, one useful idea is to 

discuss extending the mixed use zoning along San Benito Street, possible all the way to Nash 

Road. Another might be to up-zone along Meridian Street (which connects downtown with the 

Western Gateway zone). In general, downzoning blocks that were previously residential blocks 

should be avoided. Especially in light of the proposed agricultural ring, which could be 

interpreted as a de-facto (and illegal) urban growth boundary by the CDH. Hollister needs to 



resolve the transitional housing shortage by increasing the supply of rental housing, and that 

means that Hollister needs more apartments. 



 

10 Harris Court, Suite B‐1, Monterey, CA 93940 
(831)  649 ‐ 0220  

 
June 28, 2023 
 
 
City of Hollister Development Services Manager – Planning Division 
Attn:  Eva Kelly, Interim Planning Manager 
339 Fifth Street, Hollister, CA  95023 
Tel: (831) 636-4360 
Email: eva.kelly@hollister.ca.gov 

generalplan@hollister.ca.gov 
 
 
Re: Comments on City of Hollister Draft 2040 General Plan and Draft Environmental Impact 

Report  (SCH No. 2021040277) 
 
 
Dear Ms. Kelly, 
 
On behalf of Wright Thirteen LLC and Felipe Nine LLC, the Orosco Group appreciates the 
opportunity to comment on the City of Hollister Draft 2040 General Plan and Draft 
Environmental Impact Report (SCH No. 2021040277) dated May 2023.  The Orosco Group 
applauds the City of Hollister for taking a pro-active look at how changing land use, emerging 
industries, technology, retail demand, housing needs, transportation improvements, 
demographic trends, and responsible and managed city growth will be addressed in the coming 
years.   
 
With ownership stake in over 25 acres in the northern part of the City, approximately one-
quarter of the total area within the City Limits designated North Gateway Commercial (NG), we 
provide the following comments: 
 
Comment #1: As depicted on Figure LU-2 Land Use Map, the northern partition of the North 

Gateway land use area starts at Briggs Road and extends approximately 0.65 
miles from the east side of Highway 25 to the west side of San Felipe Road 
resulting in multiple parcels without direct frontage on the two intended City 
“entry boulevards”, or parcels that have frontage but excessive depth not 
conducive to the allowable zoning uses, or parcels mid-block between the two 
“entry boulevards”.  To avoid creating these “dead zones”, we recommend 
amending the North Gateway zoning district allowable uses to include the 
following complementary uses that will foster an attractive entry to the City, 
create technically skilled and high paying jobs, attract new and emerging 
businesses, and benefit from access to major transportation corridors:  

 
 Creative / Flex Office 
 Maker Space 
 Research & Development (R&D) 
 E-Commerce 
 Robotics 
 Fulfillment & Logistic Centers 



   2 

 Warehouse 
 Life Sciences 

 
The proposed additional allowable uses would also benefit other North Gateway 
zoned properties on the east side of San Felipe Road that also do not have 
frontage along the major transportation corridor or have excessive lot depth.  
These parcels occur between McCloskey Road to the north and North Chappell 
Road to the south.  
 
Since “job creation” is a highly prioritized element of the North Gateway district, 
the City should allow for these job creators uses.  In addition to creating jobs, it 
will reduce traffic (commuting), improve air quality (reduced length of trips), and 
make the City a further desirable place to live. 

 
Comment #2: Per Section 3.4.1 North Gateway, the North Gateway includes a triangular area 

northeast of Highway 25 and San Felipe Road north of Downtown that could be 
developed for automobile dealerships. The site has access from Highway 25, 
and the dealerships would be visible to all motorists entering the City. In addition 
to allowing for automobile dealerships and to reflect the transition from 
combustible to clean air vehicles, we recommend amending the North Gateway 
zoning district allowable uses to include the following uses: 

 
 Electrical Vehicles Services  
 Collision Centers 
 Research & Development (R&D)  
 Manufacturing 
 Battery and Other Energy Related Power Systems and their Manufacturing, 

Servicing, and Sales 
 
Comment #3: Figure LU-2 Land Use Map depicts multiple parcels to the east of the Highway 25 

and San Felipe Road intersection as High Density Residential that bisects the 
North Gateway zoning to the north, south and partial east.  Given the State’s 
housing crisis and the need for residents to activate commercial uses, reduce 
vehicle trips / traffic congestion, and reduce the impact to air quality, we 
recommend amending the North Gateway zoning district allowable uses to 
feather in adjacent bisects zoning uses to include: 
 
 High Density Residential 
 Medium Density Residential 

 
Comment #4: Figure LU-2 Land Use Map identifies Industrial land use zoning to the north of 

McCloskey Rd then immediately jumping to North Gateway zoning to the south.  
There are a number of existing, successful, and deeply entrenched industrial 
users along the south side of McCloskey Road that have no frontage along San 
Felipe Road that are zoned North Gateway creating a legal conforming situation.  
Further the North Gateway zoning allowable uses are extremely limiting and not 
viable for parcels with no frontage along a major transportation corridor and/or 
excessively deep depths.  As such, we recommend the City rezone these parcels 



   3 

between McCloskey to North Chappell that have no frontage along San Felipe to 
Industrial zoning.   

 
Comment #5: Per Section 3.4.1 North Gateway, the area is intended to create an entry 

boulevard for large retail uses that cater to the commuters and other motorists 
arriving in Hollister from the north along Highway 25 without duplicating services 
found Downtown.  Creating competitive commercial in the NGC designated land 
use areas will impact the downtown and other commercial centers in the City of 
Hollister.  In addition, with Highway 25 being a commuter’s corridor where the 
highest volume of trip hours occur well before sunrise as residents head to the 
bay area for work and return home after sunset, the majority of the targeted retail 
tenants the City envisions will not even be open so commuters will not stop. 

 
Comment #6: Per Section 3.4.1 North Gateway, the area is intended to create an entry 

boulevard for large retail uses that cater to the commuters and other motorists 
arriving in Hollister from the north along Highway 25 without duplicating services 
found Downtown. With the North Gateway district beginning at Briggs Road on 
the east side of Highway 25 and extending south, the district area is on the 
opposite side of the flow of traffic it is intended to capture creating the 
dependance for left-in and left-out traffic circulation patterns that will further 
impact the poor level of service of Highway 25.  Further, Highway 25 has 
restricted access points by Caltrans, therefore it will necessitate increased 
turning movements at existing intersections which will also slow and impact traffic 
flow. 

 
Comment #7:  The EIR under the utilities section discusses stormwater.  The City has recently 

pushed developers to implement underground stormwater retention / detention 
facilities that are extremely costly and have their own set of engineering issues.  
The EIR references the use of drainage ponds / on-grade detention / treatment 
facilities.  We strongly encourage the City to allow the developer to decide which 
type of stormwater system is appropriate in complying with the stormwater codes 
while also being complementary to the project instead of a one type fits 
prescriptive approach.  On-grade drainage pods and detention systems along 
with bioswales can be seamlessly integrated into landscape solutions and help 
reduce the excessive construction required (air quality impact), off-haul of spoils 
(more construction trip generation and air quality impacts), that underground 
systems generate. 

 
 
Comment #8:  The EIR under the utilities section discusses electrical and gas services.  It does 

not appear the EIR authors are aware of the current lack of infrastructure and 
extensive service deficiencies PG&E has in providing electric and gas service to 
the norther part of the City of Hollister.  Developers in northern part of Hollister 
have had to delay projects for over three (3) years due to the lack of available 
electric service.  PG&E appears to be starting to investigate option for new 
substation and transmission lines but the timing and final implementation remain 
undetermined.    

 
 



   4 

We look forward to continuing our engagement with the City of Hollister’s General Plan update 
process and will continue to respond to your request for input. Thank you for being responsive 
to all the input you are receiving from community members including residents, customers, 
business partners, employees, and property owners. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Matt Nohr 
Orosco Group & Associates 
 
Cc: Patrick Orosco porosco@oroscogroup.com 

Chris Orosco corosco@oroscogroup.com 
 Geary Coats coatsconsulting@gmail.com 
 Christy Hopper Christine.hopper@hollister.ca.gov 
 
 
 



 

Mayor Casey & Hollister City Council 
Planning Commission & Development Service Staff 
375 5th St. 
Hollister, CA 95023 
 

Thank you for allowing our association the opportunity to submit comments regarding the 

general plan update. Our association’s board of directors has taken a position regarding the proposed 

inclusionary housing ordinance (IHO) as outlined in policy action LU 2.1. It is the opinion of the board 

that an IHO requiring 20% affordable units is not economically feasible and will be a hindrance to the 

construction of housing at all income levels. Our board is endorsing an IHO with a 15% affordable 

requirement. We believe that this level of inclusionary housing can maximize community benefit 

without stifling investment. Please see below for additional reasoning on why we believe a 20% 

requirement would be harmful to the community.  

 Creates a lack of housing- Where market factors will not allow developers to increase prices to 

account fully for the effect of the inclusionary requirement, developers may look for cost savings in 

other ways. If developers are not able to recoup the cost of inclusionary requirements to a sufficient 

extent, they may choose to build elsewhere or not at all. 

Hurts the middle class- A 20% IHO program could also have the effect of pushing developers to 

focus on providing more high-end housing in an attempt to offset a negative impact on their proforma 

from satisfying the excessive 20% requirement. This could constrain housing opportunities for those 

who do not qualify for affordable housing units because their incomes are too high, but who also cannot 

afford the higher priced market rate housing, exacerbating the housing affordability issue. 

Does not address factors that cause high housing costs- factors such as high land and materials 

costs, lack of available sites, high impact fees, extensive conditions of approval & cumbersome 

permitting processes are not addressed by an excessive IHO and will continue contribute to the high 

cost of market-rate housing.  

Thank you for your time and attention. Please feel free to contact the association if you have any 

questions. 

Nichole Nijmeh, 

President, San Benito County Association of Realtors 

 
Mission Statement of the San Benito County Association of REALTORS® is to promote growth and opportunities 

for its members while preserving and protecting property rights for all. 

330 Tres Pinos Road, Suite C6, Hollister CA 95023 
Phone: 831.636.4605    



 

10 Harris Court, Suite B‐1, Monterey, CA 93940 
(831)  649 ‐ 0220  

 
June 30, 2023 
 
 
City of Hollister Development Services Manager – Planning Division 
Attn:  Eva Kelly, Interim Planning Manager 
339 Fifth Street, Hollister, CA  95023 
Tel: (831) 636-4360 
Email: eva.kelly@hollister.ca.gov 

generalplan@hollister.ca.gov 
 
 
Re: Comments on City of Hollister Draft 2040 General Plan and Draft Environmental Impact 

Report  (SCH No. 2021040277) 
 
 
Dear Ms. Kelly, 
 
On behalf of Wright Thirteen LLC and Felipe Nine LLC, The Orosco Group appreciates the 
opportunity to comment on the City of Hollister Draft 2040 General Plan and Draft 
Environmental Impact Report (SCH No. 2021040277) dated May 2023.  The Orosco Group 
applauds the City of Hollister for taking a proactive look at how changing land use, emerging 
industries, technology, retail demand, housing needs, transportation improvements, 
demographic trends, and responsible and managed city growth will be addressed in the coming 
years.   
 
Wright Thirteen LLC and Felipe Nine LLC have owned a combined 25 acres in the North 
Gateway district of City since 2017 and 2018 respectively, approximately one-quarter of the total 
area within the City Limits designated North Gateway Commercial (NG) as depicted on Exhibit 
A-1.  During that time we have pursued development strategies that are intended to realize the 
vision of the City’s General Plan and Zoning Code.  During the same period of time we have 
observed a changing opportunity set that reduced demand for certain approved uses and 
increased demand for uses that are either very similar to the existing approved uses in the 
North Gateway Zone or consistent with certain rezoning that is proposed by the current draft 
2040 GP update.  
 
Comment #1:  
 
Towards the goal of advancing immediate economic development opportunities for the City and 
our 25 acres, as well as the 16 acres owned by our neighbor and affiliate Hollister-Forever 16 
LLC (which property is presently within the County but proposed for annexation) as depicted in 
Exhibit A-2: we would encourage you to please consider amending allowable uses within the 
North Gateway zoning to include the following complementary uses: 
 

1) Research & Development  

2) Creative / Flex Office / Maker Space 

3) Life Sciences related facilities (including but not limited to, Sales, Manufacturing, 



2 
  

Fulfillment, Service, Logistics, Warehouse, Wholesaling and Distribution) 

4) E-Commerce related facilities (including but not limited to, Sales, Manufacturing, 

Fulfillment, Service, Logistics, Warehouse, Wholesaling and Distribution) 

5) Robotics related facilities (including but not limited to, Sales, Manufacturing, Fulfillment, 

Service, Logistics, Warehouse, Wholesaling and Distribution) 

6) Computer, Artificial Intelligence, and Technology related facilities (including but not 

limited to, Sales, Manufacturing, Fulfillment, Service, Logistics, Warehouse, Wholesaling 

and Distribution) 

7) Data Centers and the technological evolution thereof. 

 

All of the above uses are unmentioned in the current zoning code but are consistent with the 
existing spirit and intent of the North Gateway Zone.  In many cases, they are the result of 
technology or trends that did not exist at the time of the last General Plan Update.  The 
allowance of these uses within the North Gateway will foster an attractive entry to the City.  As 
consistent with the prioritized “job creation” in the the North Gateway district, this proposal 
create technically skilled and high paying jobs and attract new and emerging businesses. Given 
that the benefits from access to major transportation corridors.  These uses will reduce traffic 
(commuting), improve air quality (reduced length of trips), and make the City a further desirable 
place to live. 
 
Comment #2:  

 
Per Section 3.4.1 North Gateway, the North Gateway includes a triangular area northeast of 
Highway 25 and San Felipe Road north of Downtown that could be developed for automobile 
dealerships. The site has access from Highway 25, and the dealerships would be visible to all 
motorists entering the City. In addition to allowing for automobile dealerships and to reflect the 
transition from combustible to clean air vehicles, we recommend amending the North Gateway 
zoning district allowable uses to include the following uses: 
 

8) Electrical Vehicles related facilities (including but not limited to, Sales, Manufacturing, 

Fulfillment, Service, Logistics, Warehouse, Wholesaling and Distribution) 

9) Battery, Solar, & Alternative Energy Related facilities (including but not limited to, Sales, 

Manufacturing, Fulfillment, Service, Logistics, Warehouse, Wholesaling and Distribution) 

 
All of the above uses are unmentioned in the current zoning code but are consistent with the 
existing spirit and intent of the North Gateway Zone.  In many cases, they are the result of 
technology or trends that did not exist at the time of the last General Plan Update.  The 
allowance of these uses within the North Gateway will foster an attractive entry to the City.  As 
consistent with the prioritized “job creation” in the the North Gateway district, this proposal 
create technically skilled and high paying jobs and attract new and emerging businesses. Given 
that the benefits from access to major transportation corridors.  These uses will reduce traffic 



3 
  

(commuting), improve air quality (reduced length of trips), and make the City a further desirable 
place to live.Comment #3: 
 
Comment #3:  

 
As depicted on Figure LU-2 Land Use Map (Exhibit A1 and A2), the northern partition of the 
North Gateway land use includes multiple parcels without direct frontage on the two intended 
City “entry boulevards”, as well as parcels that have frontage but excessive depth not conducive 
to the allowable zoning uses, or parcels mid-block between the two “entry boulevards”.  Hard 
corners at the intersection of most roads within in the North Gateway Zone have already been 
developed with uses currently permitted within the zone.  Further, a number of the existing retail 
approved uses within the NG zone are disconnected with current market demand as well as the 
priority of supporting the vibrancy of the City’s downtown and existing commercial centers.  To 
avoid creating “dead zones” additional uses should be added to the list of allowed uses within 
the North Gateway Zone that are prepresently permitted in other zones, but also consistent with 
the spirit, intent and other uses already permitted within the NG zone: 
 

10) Professional Offices 

11) Convenience Store 

12) Food Products / Food Processing 

13) Pharmaceuticals 

14) Repair and Maintenance - Consumer Products 

15) Equipment Sales, Services, Rental 

16) Food and Beverage Sales 

17) Health / Fitness Clubs (Recreation) 

18) Storage, Personal Storage Facilities 

 
Comment #4:  
 
Figure LU-2 Land Use Map (Exhibit A1 and A2) depicts multiple parcels to the east of the 
Highway 25 and San Felipe Road intersection as High Density Residential that bisects the North 
Gateway zoning to the north, south and partial east.  Multiple parcels on the south side of N 
Chappell and the parcel on the northeast corner of San Felipe and N Chappell are also 
identified in Figure LU-2 Land Use Map as High Density Residential.  Given the State’s housing 
crisis and the need for residents to activate commercial uses, reduce vehicle trips / traffic 
congestion, and reduce the impact to air quality, we request High Density Residential zoning 
continue to our Felipe Nine LLC parcel, the existing group of legal non-conforming residential 
parcels, and the CALTRANS yard on the north side of N Chappell which are all immediately 
adjacent to identified High Density Residential zoning areas and lack any frontage on San 
Felipe making them viable for NG uses (See Exhibit A3).  As an alternative to modifying the 
zoning, we request the City implement an overlay district that allows for High Density 
Residential within the NG zone.  
 
 



4 
  

  
Comment #5:   
 
The EIR under the utilities section discusses stormwater.  The City has recently pushed 
developers to implement underground stormwater retention / detention facilities that are 
extremely costly and have their own set of engineering issues.  The EIR references the use of 
drainage ponds / on-grade detention / treatment facilities.  We strongly encourage the City to 
allow the developer to decide which type of stormwater system is appropriate in complying with 
the stormwater codes while also being complementary to the project instead of a one type fits 
prescriptive approach.  On-grade drainage pods and detention systems along with bioswales 
can be seamlessly integrated into landscape solutions and help reduce the excessive 
construction required (air quality impact), off-haul of spoils (more construction trip generation 
and air quality impacts), that underground systems generate. 
 
Comment #9:   
 
The EIR under the utilities section discusses electrical and gas services.  It does not appear the 
EIR authors are aware of the current lack of infrastructure and extensive service deficiencies 
PG&E has in providing electric and gas service to the norther part of the City of Hollister.  
Developers in northern part of Hollister have had to delay projects for over three (3) years due 
to the lack of available electric service.  PG&E appears to be starting to investigate option for 
new substation and transmission lines but the timing and final implementation remain 
undetermined.    
 
We look forward to continuing our engagement with the City of Hollister’s General Plan update 
process and will continue to respond to your request for input. Thank you for being responsive 
to all the input you are receiving from community members including residents, customers, 
business partners, employees, and property owners. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Matt Nohr 
Orosco Group & Associates 
 
Cc: Patrick Orosco porosco@oroscogroup.com 

Chris Orosco corosco@oroscogroup.com 
 Geary Coats coatsconsulting@gmail.com 
 Christy Hopper Christine.hopper@hollister.ca.gov 
  



5 
  

Exhibit A1 - Figure LU-2 Land Use Map 
 

 



6 
  

Exhibit A2 - Figure LU-2 Land Use Map 
 



7 
  

Exhibit A3 - Proposed High Density Multi-family Residential Rezone or Overlay District  
 

 



From: Ambur Cameron 
To: Tejas Chakravarthi; David Early; Carey Stone 
Cc: Eva Kelly; Christine Hopper 
Subject: FW: Commenting on Hollister 2040 Plan - 4-Way Stops on Sunnyslope Road 
Date: Thursday, June 22, 2023 2:28:09 PM 

 

Good afternoon, 
 

Please see the email below from Maureen McCullough regarding the City of Hollister’s Draft General 
Plan. 

 
Ambur 

Get Involved In Community Planning! 
General Plan Update Hollister2040.org|generalplan@hollister.ca.gov 

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPT. REGULAR PUBLIC HOURS 
Monday – Thursday  8:30a - 12:00p, 1:00p - 4:30p 
Friday – Sunday CLOSED 

 
ALL Planning Applications require an appointment with a City Planner for submittal. 

 
From: Maureen McCullough  
Sent: Wednesday, June 21, 2023 6:33 PM 
To: GeneralPlan <generalplan@hollister.ca.gov> 
Subject: Commenting on Hollister 2040 Plan - 4-Way Stops on Sunnyslope Road 

 
Hello, 

 
Regarding the Hollister 2040 Plan to include widing Sunnyslope Road to four lanes from El 
Toro Drive to Fairview Road (page C-25, under table C3 Network Improvements), I would 
like to advocate 4-Way Stops installed at the intersection of Dry Creek Road, Cerra Vista 
Drive and Sunnyslope Road; and at the intersection of Highland Drive and Sunnyslope Road. 

 
Currently traffic exceeds the speed limit on Sunnyslope Road, increasing the road to four lanes 
without 4-Way Stops will only exacerbate the existing problem. 

 
Thank you, 

 
Maureen McCullough 



Sent: Thursday, June 29, 2023 1:46 PM 
To: GeneralPlan <generalplan@hollister.ca.gov> 
Subject: Hollister General Plan - ALPP EIR 

 
I would like to express my opinions on the HOLLISTER General Plan - 
ALPP EIR 

 
1. I believe there is a lack of Public Out Reach to stake holders in our 

community and I am recommending more time be allowed to 
promote more outreach. 

2. On the subject of PRESERVATION OF AGRICULTURE LAND, the ratio 
of 2:1 is two high, currently the city of Hollister, San Benito County 
and Monterey County are at 1:1 ratio. I do not see the need to 
change it. 
Raising the ratio to a 2:1, dramatically increases the cost of 
Commercial and housing in our city, and drives new development 
away from the city to our county and to neighboring counties. We 
need to be doing everything in our power to promote commercial 
activity which in turn provide local jobs. 

3. The 200 foot buffer zone has no exemptions or flexibility, all 
parcels and locations would be different. This has to be modified. 
The 200 foot buffer zone is another ordinance that ends up raising 
costs of all projects, making them unaffordable. 

Thank you for your time and attention, Graham Mackie, long 
time resident. 



-----Original Message----- 
From: Clementine Jones [  
Sent: Thursday, June 29, 2023 6:15 PM 
To: GeneralPlan <generalplan@hollister.ca.gov> 
Subject: Sunnyslope 

 
Hello, 

 
Regarding the Hollister 2040 Plan to include widing Sunnyslope Road to four lanes from El Toro Drive 
to Fairview Road (page C-25, under table C3 Network Improvements), I would like to advocate 4- 
Way Stops installed at the intersection of Dry Creek Road, Cerra Vista Drive and Sunnyslope Road; 
and at the intersection of Highland Drive and Sunnyslope Road. 

 
Currently traffic exceeds the speed limit on Sunnyslope Road, increasing the road to four lanes 
without 4-Way Stops will only exacerbate the existing problem. 

 
Thank you, 

 
Copied from another Sunnyslope rd resident Sent from my iPhone 



June 29, 2023

Hollister City Council
375 Fifth Street
Hollister, CA 95023

Subject: Extension of Public Outreach and Comment Period for City of
Hollister 2040 General Plan

Monterey Bay Economic Partnership (MBEP) writes to request an extension
of the public comment period for the City of Hollister 2040 General Plan. It is
crucial to ensure a diverse range of voices are heard and considered,
including stakeholders from the development community whose input might
better inform General Plan Land Use policies.

Policies such as the 2:1 agricultural mitigation policy (Policy OS-2.1) and the
inclusionary housing ordinance (Action LU-2.1) warrant further analysis for
their feasibility and potential impacts, particularly considering the Regional
Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA) for Hollister of 4,163. Increasing
mitigation requirements increases the cost of development and may raise the
barrier to affordable development. Similarly, a flat 20% inclusionary
requirement without concessions for impact fees or density bonuses or other
incentive programs may make it difficult to produce affordable housing. We
recommend conducting a more thorough analysis of their impacts on housing
production, specifically affordable housing production.

Additionally, the City of Hollister must ensure that the General Plan update
accommodates the 6th Cycle Housing Element. Submitting and adopting a
General Plan before updating the Housing Element – especially with policies
bearing on housing production – risks a time and cost-intensive process of
further updates to the General Plan in the future.

We are happy to extend our services and resources in the convening of
stakeholders and analysis of policy to ensure a 2040 General Plan that meets
the needs of the City for generations to come. Please feel free to contact
Director of Housing and Community Development Policy Gabriel Sanders at
gsanders@mbep.biz.

Sincerely,

Tahra Goraya, MA, MPA
President & CEO

3180 Imjin Road, Suite 102

Marina, CA 93933 831.915.2806



Page | 1 

Maria L. Gomes -  - Hollister, CA 95023 -  
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

June 28, 2023 

City of Hollister Development Services Department 

Planning Division 

339 Fifth Street, Hollister, CA  95023 

generalplan@hollister.ca.gov 

To the Planning Division, 

I write on behalf of my mother Maria Gomes, who, since 1969 has lived within 200 yards of her 

current home at  Buena Vista Road.  My father, Joe Gomes, who passed away almost seven years 

ago, farmed and lived on the property from 1969 until his passing.  While I don’t live in Hollister now, I 

spent the first 18 years of my life on the same property.  The property’s APN is 

In 1969, my father and his business partner, Manuel Pereira purchased two parcels of farmland 

that included my mom’s current property.  It was farmed as a single parcel.  That land got water from a 

well located on the property that had been in existence since before the property was purchased.   In 1994 

the partnership came to an end, and the property was divided into two relatively similar sized parcels 

between my father and his former business partner.  Mr. Pereira took a portion of the land to the east, and 

my parents took the western portion, where my mom currently lives.  This split created a unique zig-zag 

line separating the two parcels, which I would not expect to be approved today.  The well was included in 

Mr. Pereira’s parcel and we continued to, and still do, get water from that same well.   Mr. Pereira’s 

portion of the original parcel was subsequently sold, brought into the sphere of influence, recently 

annexed to the City, and has been approved for the development of 130 duplex and triplex units.   

Due to the unique characteristics of my mother’s property, from a planning perspective we believe it 

makes sense that it should be included within the Sphere of Influence as residential property.   

While my parents land provided a home base for their apricot farming business, we no longer 

farm apricots on the land but lease it to a farmer who grows various row crops.  The rent we receive from 

the farming is very small.  My mother has significant concerns that the current Draft 2040 General Plan 

will detrimentally impact her property’s value and negatively affect her long-term well-being.  We have 



Page | 2 

submitted written letters to the GPAC Committee in the past, but I want to highlight some key issues that 

were not addressed in those letters. 

 

In the 2005 Hollister General Plan, my mother’s property was designated, and others along Buena 

Vista, as Low-Density Residential, a designation allowing 1 to 8 units/net acre (Attachment #1 – 

Existing General Plan Map).  While her property was not included in the Sphere of Influence, it is 

immediately adjacent to the Sphere of Influence line and within Hollister’s Planning Area.  The property 

was also included within “Phase 4” of the City’s 2005 General Plan Phasing Strategy (Attachment #2 – 

2005 General Plan Phasing Strategy), so my parents understood and hoped that the property would likely 

be added into the City’s Sphere of Influence sometime in the future.  Further, In Table B-4 to the 2005 

General Plan, her property is listed among “Vacant Residential Land in the General Plan Planning Area” 

and is described as potentially allowing 78 to 104 dwelling units (Attachment #3 - Table B-4).  

 

The Draft 2040 General Plan Land Use Map (Attachment #4) would change the designation of 

my mother’s property from LDR to agricultural, and severely diminish the perceived value of her home 

and property that has been a constant since at least 2005.  In short, its value would roll backwards.   

Another issue is the well that services my mom’s property.  That well is now located in Hollister, not the 

County.  Not only does the well provide water for my mother, but it also provides water for two homes on 

her property.  The well frequently has problems, which my mother is responsible for handling.    When 

there is a problem, my mom has deal with it.  At 78, addressing these problems is very taxing on her.  

When the current development to the east of our land is complete, my mom will have to enter that 

residential community to address problems with the well.  (Attachment #5).  I don’t know if there are 

any regulations discouraging the City well from servicing County property, but from a practical 

perspective I can tell you that it makes little sense.   

 

Once the development to the east of my mom’s property is complete, she will have Hollister 

homes to the south and east.  I understand that inclusion in the Sphere does not guarantee that my mom’s 

land can be developed.  However, without inclusion in the Sphere of Influence in the 2040 General Plan, 

it will be 17 years before my mom’s property could be included in the Sphere and development explored.  

During that time, she will be left with no choice but to continue to rent the land for farming and have to 

address issues with the well.  At 78, that situation is far from ideal. 

 



Page | 3 

We understand that the City has to make choices on how it grow and has mandates from the State 

of California to add housing.  While the decision of where to add housing is for the City, we think the 

inclusion of my mother’s property in the Sphere has logical and pragmatic support. 

 

For all of these reasons, I ask that you include my mom’s property in the 2040 plan’s Sphere of 

Influence and maintain the residential designation given to the property in 2005.  This will provide for the 

chance at annexation, which would also give Hollister a clean City limit line and eliminate the zig-zag 

property line and unusual well situation that resulted from a split of the parcel nearly thirty years ago.   

 

Regards, 

 

Allan Gomes 

On behalf of Maria Gomes 

 



 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 1 – Existing General Plan Map 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 2 – 2005 General Plan Phasing Strategy 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 3 – Table B-4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

       

 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

  

   

    

  

  

   

  

  

  

  

  

  

Table B-4

Vacant residential land in General Plan Planning Area

 

18-22-10 LDR Phase 4 Buena Vista 5.17 5.17 30 41

18-22-12 LDR Phase 4 Buena Vista 5 5 30 40

18-22-7 LDR Phase 4 Buena Vista 2.31 2.31 12 18

19-10-14 LDR Phase 4 Buena Vista 4.83 4.83 24 39

19-10-18 LDR Phase 4 Buena Vista 5 5 30 40

19-10-19 LDR Phase 4 Buena Vista 24.51 24.51 147 196

19-10-20 LDR Phase 4 Buena Vista 5.31 5.31 30 42

19-10-21 LDR Phase 4 Buena Vista 5.01 5.01 30 40

19-11-19 LDR Phase 4 Buena Vista 33.58 33.58 201 269

19-11-22 LDR Phase 4 Buena Vista 39.23 39.23 235 314

19-11-26 LDR Phase 4 Buena Vista 12.92 12.92 78 103

19-11-28 LDR Phase 4 Buena Vista 41.88 41.88 251 335

19-11-30 LDR Phase 4 Buena Vista 2.3 2.3 12 18

19-11-32 LDR Phase 4 Buena Vista 13.9 13.91 78 104

200.95 200.96 1188.72 1599

 

19-23-2 LDR No Phase Buena Vista 4.85 4.85 29 38.8

19-23-3 LDR No Phase Buena Vista 5 5 30 40

19-23-10 LDR No Phase Buena Vista 2 2 12 16

19-23-19 LDR No Phase Buena Vista 4.3 4.3 26 35

19-23-20 LDR No Phase Buena Vista 4 4 24 32

19-23-21 LDR No Phase Buena Vista 5 5 30 40

29-23-22 LDR No Phase Buena Vista 4.5 4.5 27 36

19-23-23 LDR No Phase Buena Vista 9 9 54 72

19-24-20 LDR No Phase Bidgevale 4 4 24 32

42.69 42.69 256.14 341.52

Medium Density Residential

Annex

General   Sphere Average Maximum

APN Plan Phase  Street Acres Acres 10 du/ac 12 du/ac

19-11-31 MDR Phase 4 Buena Vista 5 5 50 60

High Density Residential

Annex

General   Sphere Average Maximum

APN Plan Phase Street Acres Acres 24 du/ac 40 du/ac

19-13-12 HDR Phase 1 NorthSt. Area 31 31 744 1085

19-13-10 HDR Phase 4 NorthSt. Area 20.46 20.46 491 716

19-13-11 HDR Phase 4 NorthSt. Area 31 31 744 1085

19-13-21 HDR Phase 4 NorthSt. Area 15 15 360 525

19-13-25 HDR Phase 4 NorthSt. Area 20 20 480 700

Total HDR 117.46 117.46 2819 4111



 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 5 





 



State of California—Business, Transportation and Housing Agency GAVIN NEWSOM, Governor 

DEPARTMENT OF CALIFORNIA HIGHWAY PATROL 

Safety, Service, and Security  An Internationally Accredited Agency 
 

 

Hollister-Gilroy Area 
740 Renz Lane 
Gilroy, CA 95020 
(408) 427-0700 
 
June 21, 2023 
 
File No.: 725.14548.17803 
 
 
 
City of Hollister 
339 Fifth Street 
Hollister, CA 95023 
Attention: Eva Kelly, Interim Planning Manager 
 
SCH: 2021040277 
 
I was recently requested to review the Notice of Environmental Impact document from the State 
Clearinghouse (SCH) related to the Hollister 2040 General Plan.  After reviewing                
SCH# 2021040277, as well as the information and procedures outlined in General Order 41.2, 
Environmental Impact Documents, the Hollister-Gilroy Area does not believe the addition of 
bicycle paths within the City of Hollister will adversely affect traffic-related matters in the area.  
The Hollister-Gilroy Area is opposed to the bus-on-shoulder concept of this project.  Motorists 
involved in traffic crashes, experiencing medical emergencies, or who have mechanical troubles, 
are instructed to move to the shoulder and out of the traffic lanes.  Peace officers respond to 
these incidents make all efforts to move the involved vehicles off the freeway or to the right 
shoulder to minimize secondary traffic crashes and the associated risks.  When officers make 
traffic stops on the freeway, drivers pull to the shoulder and stop, as they are instructed to do in 
driving classes and per California Vehicle Code §21806.  Based on past experiences in            
San Benito and Santa Clara counties, if busses (or other vehicles) are allowed to drive on the 
shoulder, other motorists will undoubtedly follow suit, creating an additional lane and removing 
the availability of the shoulder for true emergencies.  Busses driving on the shoulders, and the 
inevitable vehicles which follow them, may cause confusion for other motorists and result in an 
increase of traffic related crashes in the area.  Additionally, Appendix F, exhibit 5, identifies a 
Class III Bicycle Path along SR-25.  These scenarios have the potential of making the roadways 
more dangerous and increasing liability for the State and all involved government agencies.  
Authorizing any vehicle to drive on the shoulder will cause an undue safety hazard to the 
motoring public, road workers, and peace officers working in the area.  If the bus-on-shoulder 
program were to progress, additional discussion would be needed to develop proper procedures 
regulating specific times or scenarios which would allow busses to use the shoulder as well as 
the speeds at which they would be allowed to travel.  The Hollister-Gilroy CHP Area has 
concerns with this overall project.  



City of Hollister  
Page 2 
June 21, 2023 

Safety, Service, and Security  An Internationally Accredited Agency 

 

The Hollister-Gilroy Area supports the construction of a Class I Bicycle Path adjacent to the 
existing railway.  The Hollister-Gilroy Area recommends additional safety measures be 
considered for the proposed bicycle path along the existing railway to ensure the safety of the 
bicyclist and the passenger/freight trains.  
 
If you have any questions, please contact our office at (408) 427-0700. 

Sincerely, 
 
 
 
P. COOPER, Captain 
Commander 



 
 
 
 

 
TO:  Christi Hopper 
  City of Hollister Planning Department 
FROM: Geary Coats 
DATE:  5/28/23 
 
SUBECT: Hollister General Plan Update 
 
Good afternoon Ms. Hopper; 
 
I want to thank you and the Planning Commission for the opportunity to present 
my comments on the North Gateway Commercial Land Use Designation and  
the allowable uses.  I am respectfully requesting to amend the allowable uses 
within the North Gateway Commercial Designation by permitting industrial uses 
along with the existing uses. 

 
“The North Gateway Commercial designation is intended to foster an attractive 
entry to the City of Hollister by featuring commercial and service-oriented 
businesses along with high-employment uses such as office parks.  The design 
guidelines described in the “Special Planning Area” section of this element 
stipulates additional criteria that development within the North Gateway must 
meet.” 

 
The current North Gateway Commercial designation (NGC), limits land uses to 
commercial and/or office use.  With the existing approved Regional Center at 
Hwy 25 and San Felipe Road; any other commercial center in the NGC will be in 
direct competition.  At the present time there is not adequate residential use 
support to require this amount of commercial development. This type of 
Commercial land use is already provided for in current centers (Hwy 25 and 
Sunnyslope Road).  In addition to the existing centers (Target, Ace Hardware, 
Nob Hill etc..) there is an existing, under used regional site, at the old K Mart 
property.  The existing commercial sites, along with the old K-Mart property, 
provide adequate commercial development to meet the needs of the 
surrounding residentially designated lands.  The location of these new, large 
scale commercial projects, need to be close to the city’s residential centers.  
Putting larger scale commercial projects on the north side of town (NGC) does 
not provide convenient access availability to the city’s residential centers. 

 
The current land use element provides for “Specific Plan / Area Plan Overlay – 
this designation is intended to identify areas that require special planning 

LAND PLANNING • ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING • ENTITLEMENT/PROJECT MANAGEMENT • BRANDING 

P  831.250.7192 
F  831.250.7193 

PO BOX 1356 
CARMEL, CA. 93921 

COATSCONSULTING@GMAIL.COM 
 



attention to promote a mix of land uses that remain flexible enough to adjust to 
changing market demands.” 
Allowing the use of a Specific Plan or Area Plan Overlay, will permit a property of 
sufficient size (5 acres or larger) to propose a mixed-use plan.  This plan will need 
to address the “Gateway” importance, but not limit the site’s potential of 
providing uses that may be varied, while at the same time providing for the 
creation of larger employment opportunities. 
  
In the northern Hollister General Plan Area, a very new and important land use 
trend has begun.  Area and Regional industrial uses have located in the corridor 
between San Felipe Road, Hwy 25 and Hwy 156 Bypass.  It is easy to see the 
reason for the draw to this area: 
 
 Ease of access to Hwy’s 101 & Hwy 5   
 Parcel sizes adequate to allow “large scale” users to develop 
 Accessibility to the Hollister airport  
 Additional land for development of support industrial uses.  
 

A very large benefit will be the job creation.  These types of industrial services will 
employee large numbers, and will look to Hollister, San Benito County, and 
reverse commuters from Santa Clara County to staff these jobs.  Since “job 
creation” is a key element of the North Gateway Commercial designation, we 
need to allow industrial/job creators as allowable uses.  I am concerned that if 
the allowable uses are not expanded to include “Industrial” job creators, the 
city will end up with underutilized properties having vacant in-line commercial 
strip centers, thus missing the clean industrial job creators of the future. 
 
I  request the City General Plan Committee, Planning Commission and City 
Council amend the allowable uses within the North Gateway Commercial 
Designation to include Industrial uses.  Alternatively, a means of allowing a 
mixed-use project of Commercial, Office and Industrial uses will be to utilize an 
Area Plan or Specific Plan as an “Overlay” use in the North Gateway 
Commercial Designation, as previously discussed in the current land use 
element. 
 
I would also like to request  to be notified of when the General Plan Update 
Committee and the Planning Commission are meeting to discuss possible 
amendments to the City General Plan, so that I am able to present our 
approach for discussion and consideration. 
 
Respectfully Submitted; 

Geary 
Geary Coats 
Principal 
 

 



James K. Churchill 
 

Montrose, Colorado 81401 
 

 
July 18, 2023 
 
Christine Hopper, Development Services Director 
City of Hollister Development Services  
339 Fifth Street 
Hollister, CA 95023 
 
Re: 2040 Draft General Plan Update  
 
Dear Ms. Hopper, 
The Churchill family has owned property in San Benito County for more than 75 years.  It is with 
interest that I have reviewed the Draft General Plan Update, the proposed Agriculture Lands 
Preservation Program, and the proposed Climate Action Plan. 
 
I have the following questions and comments regarding these three documents: 
 
Chapter 17.13 – Agricultural Lands Preservation Program 
There are several requirements which are extreme and create an undue hardship on the 
property owner of agriculture land. These extreme conditions will also act to limit growth of all 
types due to the inability of the agricultural land owner to comply. 
Concern: 17.13.030- B. 4 - Agricultural Lands: All lands which in the reasonable judgment of the 
City of Hollister have the physical characteristics and yield potential to qualify as one of the 
classifications in Section 17.13.030.B.2. Whether or not the land under consideration is 
currently used for agricultural production shall not be a criterion in this determination. 
Concern – The four recognized classifications are adequate and a 5th “City Opinion” is 
excessive.  The four classifications rely on recognized criteria and are sufficient for making a 
determination on specific land.  
Concern: 17.13.050  - Overall Requirement: Before any Development Project that involves 
conversion of one (1) acre or more of Agricultural Land to uses other than Agricultural Uses 
may occur, Agricultural Conservation Easements on other Agricultural Lands that Comply with 
criteria established in Section 17.13.090 shall be dedicated to the City of Hollister or to an 
Easement Holder selected by the City of Hollister, at a rate of at least two(acres) of Agricultural 
Land for each one (1) acre of Agricultural Land to be converted [2:1 ratio] 
Response: What is the nexus that would require twice as much mitigation as impact? This is not 
reasonable. 



Concern: 17.13.090 - Eligible Lands: To Achieve the purpose of this chapter, lands proposed for 
acquisition of Agricultural Conservation Easements shall share the characteristics of Agricultural 
Land and meet the following criteria: 
A. The lands shall be located in the City of Hollister Planning Area, as defined in the City of 
Hollister General Plan. 
Concern: Limiting eligible land to those properties which are in the City Planning Area will 
ensure that the Developer will be forced to pay top dollar for a limited commodity. Further 
criteria in the new program will severely limit the properties that are actually available for 
mitigation. 
D. Where a dedication of Twenty (20) or more acres is required, lands shall be composed 
of legal parcels of twenty net acres or more in size. Parcels less than twenty net acres in size 
shall only be allowed for dedication if merged to meet the minimum size requirement prior to 
execution of the Agricultural Conservation Easement. 
Concern: the requirement that parcels be a minimum size of twenty acres or be adjacent 
parcels, capable of being merged will further reduce the opportunities to locate properties to 
satisfy the mitigation. If preservation is the goal, does the size really matter? 
 
In Summary: This program creates a situation where almost any vacant land could be deemed 
subject to mitigation, at double the impact. Trying to locate a suitable property is further 
hindered by limiting location and requiring a minimum size of 20 acre parcels. If the goal is to 
discourage development, this is an effective tool. 
 
Climate Action Plan 
Concern: How are the origins of Green House Gas determined?  Who will make these 
decisions? Is a project responsible for determining their impacts or will the City? 
 
2040 General Plan Update 
Section 3 – Land Use 
3.3 Land Use Designations 
Comment – section 3.3.3 precludes single family detached homes from the Medium Density 
Residential category.  If a housing product is able to meet the density, it should not be 
excluded. This also applies to Policy LU-2.7. Section 3.3.9 details the uses under General 
Commercial. The Churchill property (Hillcrest and Fairview) is proposed for this use. The land 
use designation is reasonable, however, trying to direct the type of commercial to be a regional 
attraction or community destination (such as Santana Row) is not realistic. Commercial Brokers 
have advised that they would not be able to bring those types of business to the Churchill 
property.  That vision also seems to be in conflict with supporting the downtown business area 
and those existing merchants. 
3.4 Special Planning Areas 
Comment – Figure LU-4 shows the Churchill property is included in the Meridian Street 
Extension Planning Area. The majority of the owners in this planning area have no interest in 



selling their property or annexing into the City. The requirement for a specific plan is going to 
make it nearly impossible to get group consensus on future uses of the area which will cause a 
hardship for the Churchill property.  The Churchill property is anxious to annex now, but is 
potentially prevented from doing so by the expense and timing of securing a specific plan for 
this 250 acre (+/-) area, of which the Churchill project is only 23 acres. The Churchill property 
should be excluded from the Specific Plan, but kept as General Commercial.  At a minimum, the 
requirement for a Specific Plan should be deferred to after annexation, but prior to approval of 
a development project (see Action LU-13.2) 
3.6 Land Use and Community Design Element Goals, Policies, and Actions 
Comment – Policy LU-1.7 requires a Specific Plan on annexation requests over 20 acres, or any 
non-residential use regardless of size.  20 acres is too small to require a Specific Plan and should 
be applicable to larger parcels with more potential for development. A single property owner 
with more than 20 acres should not be subject to a Specific Plan as there are other planning 
tools for the City to use to get a project they want. Non-residential properties should be 
allowed to proceed without a Specific Plan if they are smaller than 25 acres – especially 
commercial as most of the site will be parking.   
Comment – Action LU-13.1 calls for the City to prepare a cost analysis for the implementation 
of the Meridian Street bridge. The costs for a bridge should not be placed solely on new 
development. This is an improvement that would benefit all residents as they travel through 
town and should be paid for by all residents. 
3.6.16 Community Design 
Comment – Policy LU-16.1 discourages the use of franchise architecture and/or corporate 
branding.  The Churchill property has a General Commercial land use designation. There is a 
concern that this type of restriction will keep certain national businesses (Sprouts, Trader Joes) 
from coming to Hollister if they are not allowed to use proven architecture and branding.  This 
part of the policy should be removed. Policy LU-18.9 requires 48” box trees for street trees.  
Most arborists agree that planting large box trees is not the best idea. Tree roots in a large box 
tend to grow much slower than tree roots from smaller containers. The result is not only slower 
overall growth of the tree but less drought tolerant. Trees that have been transplanted or 
transferred from large containers tend to go into shock, the roots are less aggressive, meaning 
less overall growth. The proposed policy goes against current thinking by the experts. The larger 
sizes are also harder to find in quantities that would be needed to fill in a landscape strip. 
 
Section 4 – Circulation 
Figure C-1 – Roadway Classifications – Is it accurate to depict Fairview Road as a highway? Table 
C-1 shows an association of Commercial use with an Arterial/Major collector Street.  Figure LU-
2 proposes the property at the corner of Hillcrest and Fairview as General Commercial. 
Surrounding uses along Fairview are residential. 
4.1.5.1 Transportation Demand Management states the City will prepare a list of TDM 
strategies for new development projects to reduce VMT generated from the development. 



Policy C-1.4 – Transportation Demand Management – Reduce single-occupant vehicle usage 
using TDM strategies. 
Comment: What are examples of TDM strategies? How would these strategies be implemented 
if a project is located in a more rural setting? Is it reasonable to expect a rural resident to avoid 
using their car and how can a developer influence that decision? It seems likely that a rural 
resident would require their single occupancy vehicle to visit a commercial property that sold 
products. 
4.3.2 Circulation System Improvements 
Action C-2.2 - Meridian Street Extension –  
Comment: How will this study be funded?  How will the costs be shared by all city residents? It 
is unfair to straddle the owners of the study area with the expense of the study and possibly the 
improvements. 
4.3.4 Roadway Standards 
Policy C-4.6 Transportation Demand Management Requirements – Require new or existing 
developments that meet specific size capacity and/or context conditions to implement TDM 
strategies. 
Comment: What are the strategies? What criteria will be used to determine which 
developments are subject to this policy? How can existing development be required to 
participate.  This policy is very vague and needs more information/explanation of its goal. 
 
Section 7 – Natural Resource and Conservation  
Comment: Section 7.2.1 lists multiple policies for ensuring enhanced habitat for native plants 
and animals (Goal NRC1). Policy NRC-1.7 is written to require an impact fee by the County for 
every home or acre developed, if the property is within San Joaquin Kit Fox habitat area 
boundaries.  There should be no assessment if there are no species detected during the 
preconstruction surveys. Will projects within the City limits be subject to the San Benito County 
Habitat Conservation Plan? 
Does Policy MRC-1.8 requires site assessments within critical habitat areas, to evaluate project 
potential for negative impact on CTS and CRLF. Is a 2nd peer review only required when the 
habitat is high quality? If not, it should be limited to this scenario.  Is this policy suggesting that 
lengthy, time consuming protocol studies are the only way to confirm absence? Is this 
precluding the opportunity to acquire a Take Permit if habitat is not “high quality”?  
Section 7.2.3 (Air Quality) includes policy NRC-3.8 which requires Commercial and Industrial 
Projects exceeding 10,000 sf to be zero emissions operations – including the facilities 
themselves and associated fleets.  Our state is not prepared to supply the electric energy 
necessary to achieve these measures. It is not reasonable to expect a business to control the 
engine types on vehicles that deliver supplies to their facility. This is a business killer! Are we 
trying to discourage those tax dollars? 
Figure NRC-3 Illustrates locations of Special-Status Animal Species and Critical Habitat?  At what 
point will this exhibit be updated to reflect existing conditions? For example, the Santana Ranch 





From: Talli Robinson
To: Erica Fraser; Christine Hopper; Eva Kelly
Cc: Ross Doyle; Dr. Christopher Churchill; Jennifer Churchill; John Churchill; Jim Churchill
Subject: RE: Churchill Property Designation
Date: Friday, August 4, 2023 9:33:06 AM

Good Morning,
Please see the email below from Mr. Jim Churchill.  He would like to add an additional comment to 
those already provided for the 2040 General Plan Update. He is not in favor of the proposed land use 
(noted in the draft update of the general plan) for his property at the corner of Hillcrest and 
Fairview.

Thank you,

Talli Robinson

Senior Planner

RUGGERI-JENSEN-AZAR
ENGINEERS - PLANNERS - SURVEYORS

8055 Camino Arroyo
Gilroy, CA 95020
T: (408) 848-0300 x227
D: (408) 848-0308
F: (408) 848-0302
trobinson@rja-gps.com

Electronic Media Disclaimer
These plans and files are provided in an electronic format as a courtesy only.  Information exchanged 
by electronic media can deteriorate, alter by conversion, be damaged, lost or modified 
unintentionally or otherwise. Therefore, use of this electronic data by anyone other than Ruggeri-
Jensen-Azar (RJA) shall be at the sole risk of such user and without liability or legal exposure to RJA. 
The recipient is responsible for verifying the accuracy of data against the governing most current 
hard copy documentation, and if there are any differences between the two, the signed hard copy 
documents shall control.  Furthermore, users will comply with the State Business and Professions 
Code Chapters 7 & 15. Any such use governed by these codes will be performed by, or under the 
responsible charge of a qualified/licensed individual as set forth therein. Recipient assumes all risks 
and expense in the use, changing or modification of data and revisions or updating of hard copy 
documents.

From: Jim Churchill [] 
Sent: Monday, July 24, 2023 4:24 PM



To: Christine Hopper <christine.hopper@hollister.ca.gov>
Cc: Erica Fraser <efraser.4leaf@hollister.ca.gov>; Eva Kelly <eva.kelly@hollister.ca.gov>; Talli 
Robinson <trobinson@rja-gps.com>; Ross Doyle <RDoyle@rja-gps.com>; Dr. Christopher Churchill 
<>; Jennifer Churchill <>; John Churchill
<>
Subject: Churchill Property Designation

I have made several inquiries as to the viability of providing  a "Barnyard" approach to the 
Churchill property.  All responses have replied with a negative.  Hollister, or the County of 
San Benito, does not have a population or affluence that would  support such a
community/development.  Nor will it have a surrounding population for years to come.

1. In view of this, I am asking to change the land designation from "General Commercial" to 
"Mixed Use/ Commercial".

The Churchill's envisions about 110 apartments, minimum, along with sufficient parking.  The 
apartments should be 2-3 stories.  Parking would be covered with solar panels.  In addition, 
some units may have a lesser number of detached garages or storage units for cars and 
electrical charging.   There are also available charging stations for individual use in the 
outdoor covered parking spaces.  

Some of the commercial properties will be two stories for business tenants.  Commercial 
details and types of business will be designed and presented to planning prior to construction.

All available rooftop space will have solar.  Electrical charging will be available to shoppers.  

Jim Churchill



From: Ambur Cameron
To: Carey Stone; David Early
Cc: Eva Kelly; Christine Hopper
Subject: FW: Hollister GP 2040, CAP, and ALPP EIR
Date: Monday, July 3, 2023 1:16:16 PM

Good afternoon Carey and David,

Please see the email below form Kristina Chaves-Wyatt on behalf of the San Benito Business Council
providing comment on  
the City of Hollister General Plan 2040, Climate Action Plan, Agricultural Plans Preservation Program
and Draft Environmental Impact Report.  

Thank you,

Ambur

Get Involved In Community Planning!
General Plan Update Hollister2040.org|generalplan@hollister.ca.gov

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPT. REGULAR PUBLIC HOURS
Monday – Thursday       8:30a - 12:00p, 1:00p - 4:30p
Friday – Sunday              CLOSED

ALL Planning Applications require an appointment with a City Planner for submittal.

From: San Benito County Business Council [mailto:kristina@sbcbusinesscouncil.com] 
Sent: Friday, June 30, 2023 4:38 PM
To: GeneralPlan <generalplan@hollister.ca.gov>
Subject: Hollister GP 2040, CAP, and ALPP EIR

Good afternoon,

I am writing on behalf of the San Benito County Business Council to provide comments on the City of
Hollister General Plan 2040, Climate Action Plan, Agricultural Plans Preservation Program and Draft
Environmental Impact Report.  

Established in 2001, the Business Council is a 501(c) 6 non-profit member-based organization
representing over 45 local and regional municipal agencies, businesses, trade organizations and
major employers representing more than 6000 employees in the Monterey Bay, Central Coast and
South Bay Regions.

Our current member & organizational goals include; 1) Retention, expansion, job creation and



growth of existing businesses, 2) EDC 2017-2022 Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy
(CEDS) Implementation, Supporting development of 2023-2028 CEDS - Supporting new
business attraction, 3) Improving Infrastructure: Measure G Implementation- road and highway
improvements, broadband, energy, education, housing, water & wastewater, tackling blight & litter,
and 4) Building relations with elected officials, staff, regional organizations and community.
 
There has been a major lack of community outreach and engagement as described in the
consultants Scope of Work (i.e., two community outreach events referred in scope, presentations,
staff reports). Many of our residents lack access to internet, lack knowledge on how to operate the
Zoom application and in many cases were unaware that the virtual meetings were taking place.  
 
On many occasions, community members that posed questions and concerns at the General Plan
Public Advisory Committee Meeting were rebuffed, ignored and subjected to condescending
behavior by officials, committee members and consultants.
 
We respectfully request and would support the City’s efforts to host at least one large-scale, in-
person community workshop to present the Draft General Plan and EIR- including “general plan 101”
education and workstations with detailed information on each element, the proposed Agricultural
Plans Preservation Program (ALPP) and Climate Action Plan (CAP). EJ-2 states, “Promote civic
engagement in the public decision-making process.”
 
Stakeholder groups, especially in agriculture (i.e, the San Benito County Farm Bureau) were not
targeted for outreach and engagement. Please conduct this engagement to inform and encourage
community participation.
 
Phone calls and emails to the City regarding the Plan were not returned, responded to.
 
We are concerned that the EIR was prepared prior to draft General Plan review by the public, the
City Planning Commission and City Council. Please extend the review and comment period on the
Draft General Plan for 60-days and pause work on the EIR until the plan is completed to ensure that
the impacts of the final Plan are evaluated, the Draft EIR presented to the public followed by time to
prepare and submit comments.
 
Additional consideration should be made for habitat conservation and mitigation measures already
in place (i.e, California Tiger Salamander). Additional consideration may also be revisited for joining
the County’s efforts underway to develop a Habitat Conservation Plan.
 
Consider extending the Sphere of Influence further outward to the Urban Service Area or even the
Planning Area to help support longer term, comprehensive planning, public utilities and services.
This is especially important apply City codes and standards for curbs, gutters, sidewalks, roads and
parks.
 
Regarding the 2:1 proposed ALPP, please consider matching San Benito County’s 1:1 policy as that
ratio best adheres to 1.3.7 “maintain productive and VIABLE ag land.”
 



Additionally, any lands within the Plan that have low density or zoning other than agriculture cannot
be re-zoned/downzoned to agriculture as investments and planning have been in place for other
uses.
 
Lands are only productive and viable for agricultural production if the commodities are marketable,
when food safety programs can be implemented, where adequate, high-quality water is readily
available and ag/urban interfaces (dust, noise, ag inputs, employees, heavy equipment traffic) can be
avoided.
 
Furthermore, the proposed ALPP, in addition to the 200-foot buffer requirement and the VMT
presents major obstacles to job growth and meeting our housing needs. These policies do not
confirm to 1.3.2 “attracting employment generating uses” and “range of housing choices.”
 
Local job creation reduces commuting and reduces/eliminates traffic.
 
Consider adding educational attraction to 3.4.1 North Gateway Special Planning Area.
 
Evaluate the opportunities and implications of the California Opportunity Zone and high-wage job
creation in 3.4.2 West Gateway Special Planning Area.
 
Extend the Buena Vista Road Special Planning Area west to SR156 to help ensure continuity with
planning future growth in an area with existing infrastructure and access to current and planned
regional transportation networks.
 
Thank you for the opportunity to provide comments and for your consideration of our questions,
concerns and ideas.
 
Please don’t hesitate to reply with any questions, concerns or needs.
 
Sincere regards,
Kristina
Kristina Chavez Wyatt
Executive Director, San Benito County Business Council
341 First Street Hollister, CA 95023
831.524.0408 / 831.637.6637 fax
Kristina@SBCBusinessCouncil.com
SBCBusinessCouncil.com
Please consider the environment before printing this email.



 

“Provide a safe and reliable transportation network that serves all people and respects the environment”

CALTRANS DISTRICT 5 
50 HIGUERA STREET  |  SAN LUIS OBISPO, CA 93401-5415 
(805) 549-3101 |  FAX (805) 549-3329  TTY 711 
www.dot.ca.gov  
 
 
June 30, 2023 
                                                                                                                         SBt/VAR  
                                                                                                                         SCH#2021040277 
 
 
Eva Kelly, Interim Planning Manager 
City of Hollister 
339 Fifth Street  
Hollister, CA 95023 
 
COMMENTS FOR THE DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT (DEIR) – HOLLISTER 2040 
GENERAL PLAN, CLIMATE ACTION PLAN (CAP), AND AGRICULTURE LANDS 
PRESERVATION PROGRAM, HOLLISTER, CA 

Dear Ms. Kelly:   
 
The California Department of Transportation (Caltrans), District 5, Development 
Review, has reviewed the Hollister 2040 General Plan, Climate Action Plan, and 
Agricultural Lands Preservation Program DEIR which builds off the existing 2005 
General Plan to provide a framework for land use, transportation, and conservation 
decisions through the horizon year of 2040. Caltrans offers the following comments in 
response to the DEIR: 
 

1. Caltrans looks forward to working with the City of Hollister on future transit and 
complete streets concepts located within state right of way. The state views all 
transportation improvements as opportunities to improve safety, access, and 
mobility for all users and recognizes bicycle, pedestrian, and transit modes as 
integral elements of the transportation network. Early coordination with Caltrans, 
in locations that may affect both Caltrans and the City of Hollister, is 
encouraged. 
 

2. We support Goal C-1 and the policies to help reduce VMT (vehicle miles 
traveled) to insignificant levels. The listed policies will help appropriately balance 
the needs of congestion management with statewide goals related to 
multimodal transportation, promotion of public health through active 
transportation, and reduction of greenhouse gas emissions. Caltrans 
encourages the city to begin working on these policies as soon as possible to 
find the best local based practices to best alleviate VMT in the region.  
 



Eva Kelly, Interim Planning Manager 
June 30, 2023 
Page 2 
 
 

“Provide a safe and reliable transportation network that serves all people and respects the environment”

3. Further, we support the Predefined VMT Mitigation Bank to lower VMT. The bank 
should complement State goals to promote equitable transportation outcomes, 
advance multi-modal transportation strategies, and advance innovative 
technology and systems as a corollary to new land use projects.  
 

4. Caltrans appreciates Policy C-4.6 TDM Requirements which requires new or 
existing developments that meet specific conditions to implement 
transportation demand management (TDM) strategies and other single vehicle 
occupancy reduction methodologies which will be monitored. TDM monitoring 
should be supported with long term maintenance of effort. Measures that are 
more useful to consider include transit and micro-mobility pass discounts, 
carpool matching and incentives, bike facilities at workplaces, vanpools, and 
emergency-ride-home services for non-driving employees. 
 

5. Additional traffic studies will be needed for any operational changes on the 
state highway system (SHS). For example, any proposed changes to the type of 
intersection control would require an Intersection Control Evaluation (ICE) to be 
performed. 

 
Thank you for the opportunity to review and comment on the proposed project. If 
you have any questions, or need further clarification on items discussed above, 
please contact me at (805) 835-6543 or email christopher.bjornstad@dot.ca.gov. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Chris Bjornstad 
Associate Transportation Planner 
District 5 Land Development Review 
 
 
 





 


	0. August 10, 2023_PC Agenda
	1. Staff Report_General Plan Update
	Planning Commission
	Staff Report
	August 10, 2023
	Item 1

	2. Staff Report_General Plan Update_Placeworks
	Memorandum
	Update on Draft General Plan Process
	Summary of the Draft General Plan
	Proposed Sphere of Influence Change
	Proposed Land Use Changes

	Summary of the Draft Climate Action Plan
	Summary of the Draft Agricultural Preservation Program
	Overview of Community Engagement Process
	Community Input on the Draft Plans
	Overview of the Draft Environmental Impact Report
	Next Steps


	3. Attach1_DraftPlanComments - UPDATED
	Attach1_DraftPlanComments - UPDATE
	1_CalOES_041423
	2_AMBAG_041223
	3_City of Hollister_GP 2040 DEIR_AMBAG Comments_June 2023
	4_CityofHollister_BIAComments_2040GeneralPLanUpdate_6.15.23
	2023_04_Thompson_Joseph_Redacted
	2023_0417_Sywak_041723_Redacted
	2023_0424_Sywak_Redacted
	2023_0508_Boyer_050823_Redacted
	2023_0508_Williams_050823_Redacted
	2023_0511_Avidano_Redacted
	2023_0515_Shaninian_051523_Redacted
	2023_0519_Khan_051923_Redacted
	2023_0520_DuBois_Redacted
	2023_0522_Zhang_052223_Redacted
	2023_0530_Safranek_053023_Redacted
	2023_0531_Varner_053123_Redacted
	2023_0601_Mistretta_060123_Redacted
	2023_0602_Garcia_Redacted

	Vance_062723_Redacted
	Tennenbaum_063023_Redacted
	Ltr City of Hollister re_ General Plan Update EIR(4047537.1)
	Exhibit JKJ (1)

	Sywak_042423_Redacted
	Shaninian_051523_Redacted
	Pack_062523_Redacted
	Nohr_062823_Redacted
	Nijmeh_062223_Redacted
	Nohr_063023_Redacted
	McCullough_062123_Redacted
	Goraya_062923_Redacted
	Gomes_062923_Redacted
	Cooper_062123_Redacted
	Coats_061623_Redacted
	Churchill_072423_Redacted
	ChavezWyatt_070323_Redacted
	Bjornstad_063023_Redacted
	Avidano_051123_Redacted




